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July 3, 2020
BSE Limited National Stock Exchange of India Limited
Floor 25, P. J. Towers Exchange Plaza
Dalal Street, Fort Bandra Kurla Complex
Mumbai - 400 001 Bandra (E)

Mumbai - 400 051

Dear Sirs,

Sub: Notice of Meeting of the Secured Creditors convened pursuant to the
directions of the National Company Law Tribunal, Allahabad Bench

Pursuant to Regulation 30 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, we wish to inform you that pursuant to the Order of the National
Company Law Tribunal, Allahabad Bench passed on June 9, 2020 as corrected by the
Order dated June 15, 2020 under Section 230(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Act’)
in the Company Application No. 101/ALD/2020, a meeting of the Secured Creditors of
Jubilant Life Sciences Limited is being convened at the Registered Office of the Company
at Bhartiagram, Gajraula, District Amroha-244223, Uttar Pradesh on Saturday, August 8,
2020 at 2:00 P.M. for the purpose of considering and, if thought fit, approving with or
without modification(s), the Composite Scheme of Arrangement between HSB Corporate
Consultants Private Limited, Jubilant Stock Holding Private Limited, SSB Consultants &
Management Services Private Limited, JCPL Life Science Ventures and Holdings Private
Limited, JSPL Life Science Services and Holdings Private Limited, Jubilant Life Sciences
Limited and Jubilant LSI Limited and their respective shareholders and creditors under
Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the Act.

Persons entitled to attend and vote at the meeting, may vote in person or by proxy at the
meeting or through postal ballot, provided that all proxies in the prescribed form shall be
deposited at the registered office of Jubilant Life Sciences Limited at Bhartiagram,
Gajraula, District Amroha-244223, Uttar Pradesh not later than 48 hours before the
meeting.

We are enclosing herewith the copy of the notice of the Meeting. The said notice is also
available on the Company's website www.jubl.com.
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We request you to take the same on record.
Thanking you,

Yours faithfully,
For Jubilant Life Sciences Limited

RAJIV g
Date:
I%H'A Iél Iffi"'%?"fosvmv
ajiv Sha
Company Secretary

Encl: As above
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JUBILANT LIFE SCIENCES LIMITED
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Registered Office: Bhartiagram, Gajraula, District Amroha - 244 223, Uttar Pradesh, India
Phone: +91-5924-267200; E-mail: investors@jubl.com; Website: www.jubl.com

NOTICE - SECURED CREDITORS

Registered Office : Bhartiagram, Gajraula, Distt. Amroha - 244 223, Uttar Pradesh
Tel No. : +91-5924-267200

CIN : L24116UP1978PLC004624

E-mail : investors@jubl.com

MEETING OF THE SECURED CREDITORS OF JUBILANT LIFE SCIENCES LIMITED

(Convened pursuant to order dated June 9, 2020, as corrected by Order dated June 15, 2020 passed by Hon’ble National
Company Law Tribunal, Allahabad Bench)

MEETING:

Day : | Saturday

Date : |August 8, 2020

Time : 12.00 PM.

Venue : | Bhartiagram, Gajraula, District Amroha - 244 223, Uttar Pradesh
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FORM NO. CAA.2
[Pursuant to Section 230(3) and Rule 6]

BEFORE THE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL
ALLAHABAD BENCH

(Company Application No. 101/ALD/2020)
In the matter of Companies Act, 2013

And

In the matter of Sections 230-232 and Section 66 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016

And
IN THE MATTER OF COMPOSITE SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT BETWEEN
HSB CORPORATE CONSULTANTS PRIVATE LIMITED
.....Applicant Co. No. 1/ “Transferor Company 1”
And
JUBILANT STOCK HOLDING PRIVATE LIMITED
.. Applicant Co. No. 2/ “Transferor Company 2”
And
SSB CONSULTANTS & MANAGEMENT SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
...Applicant Co. No. 3/ “Transferor Company 3”
And
JCPL LIFE SCIENCE VENTURES AND HOLDINGS PRIVATE LIMITED
...Applicant Co. No. 4/ “Transferor Company 4”
And
JSPL LIFE SCIENCE SERVICES AND HOLDINGS PRIVATE LIMITED
...Applicant Co. No. 5/ “Transferor Company 5”
And
JUBILANT LIFE SCIENCES LIMITED
.....Applicant Co. No. 6/ “Transferee Company/ Demerged Company”
And
JUBILANT LSI LIMITED
........... Applicant Co. No. 7/ “Resulting Company”
And

their respective Shareholders and Creditors



JUBILANT LIFE SCIENCES LIMITED
(CIN:L24116UP1978PLC004624)

A company incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956, having its Registered Office at — Bhartiagram, Gajraula,
District Amroha - 244223, Uttar Pradesh, India
............ Applicant Company No. 6/ “Transferee Company/Demerged Company”

NOTICE CONVENING THE MEETING OF THE SECURED CREDITORS OF JUBILANT LIFE SCIENCES LIMITED
(APPLICANT COMPANY NO. 6/“TRANSFEREE COMPANY/DEMERGED COMPANY”) PURSUANT TO THE ORDER
DATED JUNE 9, 2020, AS CORRECTED BY ORDER DATED JUNE 15, 2020 PASSED BY THE HON’BLE NATIONAL
COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL, ALLAHABAD BENCH

Notice is hereby given that the Allahabad Bench of the National Company Law Tribunal, by order dated June 9, 2020, as
corrected by Order dated June 15, 2020, has directed that a meeting of Secured Creditors of the Transferee Company/Demerged
Company shall be held on August 8, 2020 at 2.00 p.m. at the registered office of the Transferee Company/ Demerged Company at
Bhartiagram, Gajraula, District Amroha - 244223, Uttar Pradesh, India for the purpose of considering, and if thought fit, approving
with or without modification(s), the arrangement embodied in the Composite Scheme of Arrangement between HSB Corporate
Consultants Private Limited (“Transferor Company 17), Jubilant Stock Holding Private Limited (“Transferor Company 2”), SSB
Consultants & Management Services Private Limited (“Transferor Company 3”), JCPL Life Science Ventures and Holdings Private
Limited (“Transferor Company 4”), JSPL Life Science Services and Holdings Private Limited (“Transferor Company 5”), Jubilant
Life Sciences Limited (“Transferee Company/Demerged Company”) and Jubilant LSI Limited (“Resulting Company”) and their
respective shareholders and creditors.

In pursuance of the said order and as directed therein, notice is hereby given that a meeting of the Secured Creditors of the Applicant
Company No. 6/ Transferee Company/Demerged Company will be held at its registered office, Bhartiagram, Gajraula, District
Amroha - 244223, Uttar Pradesh, India on Saturday, August 8, 2020 at 2:00 p.m. at which time and place, the Secured Creditors of
the Applicant Company No. 6/ Transferee Company/Demerged Company are requested to attend.

At the meeting, the following resolution will be considered and, if thought fit, passed with or without modification(s):

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 66, 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,
the Rules, Circulars and Notifications made thereunder (including any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof) as may be
applicable, and subject to the provisions of the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company and subject to approval
of the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Bench at Allahabad (“NCLT”) and subject to such other approvals, permissions
and sanctions of regulatory and other authorities, as may be necessary and subject to such conditions and modifications as may be
prescribed or imposed by NCLT or by any regulatory or other authorities, while granting such approvals, permissions and sanctions,
which may be agreed to by the Board of Directors of the Company (hereinafter referred to as the “Board”), the arrangement embodied
in the Composite Scheme of Arrangement between HSB Corporate Consultants Private Limited, Jubilant Stock Holding Private Limited,
SSB Consultants & Management Services Private Limited, JCPL Life Science Ventures and Holdings Private Limited, JSPL Life Science
Services and Holdings Private Limited, Jubilant Life Sciences Limited, and Jubilant LSI Limited and their respective shareholders and
creditors (“Composite Scheme”) placed before this meeting, be and is hereby approved.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorised to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things, as it may, in its
absolute discretion deem requisite, desirable, appropriate or necessary to give effect to this resolution and effectively implement the
arrangement embodied in the Composite Scheme and to accept such modifications, amendments, limitations and/or conditions, if any,
which may be required and/or imposed by the NCLT while sanctioning the arrangement embodied in the Composite Scheme or by any
authorities under law, or as may be required for the purpose of resolving any questions or doubts or difficulties that may arise including
passing of such accounting entries and/or making such adjustments in the books of account as considered necessary in giving effect to
the Composite Scheme, as the Board may deem fit and proper.”

Copies of the said Composite Scheme and of the Statement under Sections 230(3), 232(1), 232(2) and 102 of the Companies Act,
2013 read with Rule 6 of the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016 are annexed to this notice



and can be obtained free of charge from the Registered Office of the Transferee Company/Demerged Company or at the office of its
Advocate, Mr. Rahul Agarwal at Chamber No. 42, High Court, or at his office at 74/62, Lal Bahadur Shastri Marg, Allahabad-211001.

Persons entitled to attend and vote at the meeting, may vote in person or by proxy, provided that proxies in the prescribed form
are deposited at the Registered Office of the Transferee Company/Demerged Company at Bhartiagram Gajraula, District Amroha -
244223, Uttar Pradesh, India not later than 48 hours before the meeting.

Form of Proxy is also annexed to this Notice and can be obtained from the Registered Office of the Transferee Company/Demerged
Company or from the office of the Advocate as mentioned above.

The Tribunal has appointed Shri Pradip Kumar, Advocate as Chairman and Shri Anuj Srivastava, Advocate as Alternate Chairman
of the said meeting and Shri S. K. Gupta, Practicing Company Secretary as Scrutinizer to conduct the voting in a fair and transparent
manner. The above mentioned Scheme, if approved by the Secured Creditors of the Transferee Company/Demerged Company in
their meeting, will be subject to the subsequent approval of the Tribunal.

For Jubilant Life Sciences Limited

Sd/-
Dated:- June 25, 2020 Pradip Kumar
Place:- Allahabad Chairman appointed for meeting

Notes:

1. Acreditor entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote instead of himself / herself
and such a proxy so appointed need not be a Secured Creditor of the Company. The form of proxy duly completed should be
deposited at the registered office of the Applicant Company No. 6/Transferee Company/Demerged Company not later than 48
hours before the time fixed for the aforesaid meeting.

2. All alterations made in the Form of Proxy should be initialed by the Secured Creditor.
3. The Form of Proxy can be obtained free of charge from the registered office of the Transferee Company/Demerged Company.

4. The Notice is being sent to all the secured Creditors, whose names appear in the records of the Transferee Company/Demerged
Company as on January 31, 2020.

5. The voting rights of the Secured Creditors shall be in proportion to the outstanding amount due by Transferee Company/
Demerged Company as on January 31, 2020.

6.  Secured Creditors are requested to bring their Identification Card to facilitate identification at the venue of the meeting.

7. A secured creditor or his proxy is requested to bring a copy of the notice to the meeting and produce it at the entrance of the
meeting venue, along with the attendance slip duly completed and signed. The queries, if related to the Composite Scheme
should be sent to the Applicant Company No. 6/“Transferee Company/Demerged Company” in the name of the Company
Secretary, at the registered Office of the Applicant Company No. 6/ “Transferee Company /Demerged Company” so as to reach
the Applicant Company No. 6/ “Transferee Company/Demerged Company” at least seven days before the meeting.

8. The material documents referred to in the accompanying Explanatory Statement shall be open for inspection by the Secured
Creditors at the registered office of the Transferee Company/ Demerged Company between 11.00 a.m. and 1.00 p.m. on all
working days (except Saturdays, Sundays and Public Holidays) upto the date of the meeting.

9. The Notice convening the aforesaid meeting will be published through advertisement in ‘Financial Express’ and ‘Hindustan
Times English newspapers and ‘Jansatta’ and ‘Hindustan, vernacular newspapers, having wide circulation in District Gautam
Budh Nagar and District Amroha where the Corporate Office and Registered Office of the Transferee Company/Demerged
Company and other Applicant Companies (as applicable) is situated, respectively.



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

A Postal Ballot Form along with self-addressed postage pre-paid envelope is also enclosed. Secured Creditors are requested to
carefully read the instructions printed in the enclosed Postal Ballot Form. Secured creditors who wish to vote through Postal
Ballot Form can also download the Postal Ballot Form from the Transferee Company’s/Demerged Company’s website i.e. www.
jubl.com or seek duplicate Postal Ballot Form from the Transferee Company/Demerged Company.

Secured creditors shall fill in the requisite details and send the duly completed and signed Postal Ballot Form in the enclosed
self-addressed postage pre-paid envelope to the Scrutinizer so as to reach the Scrutinizer on or before 05:00 p.m. on Friday,
August 7, 2020. Postal Ballot Form, if sent by courier or by registered post/speed post/hand delivery at the expense of the
Secured Creditor will also be accepted. Any Postal Ballot Form received after the said date and time period shall be treated as
invalid.

Incomplete, unsigned, improperly or incorrectly tick marked Postal Ballot Forms will be rejected by the Scrutinizer.
The vote on Postal Ballot cannot be exercised through proxy.

The Postal Ballot Form should be completed and signed by the Secured Creditor. Holder(s) of Power of Attorney (“POA”)
on behalf of a Secured Creditor may vote on the Postal Ballot mentioning the registration number of the POA with the
Transferee Company/ Demerged Company or enclosing a copy of the POA authenticated by a notary. In case of amounts held
by companies, societies etc., the duly completed Postal Ballot Form should be accompanied by a certified copy of the Board
Resolution/ authorization giving the requisite authority to the person voting on the Postal Ballot Form.

The Tribunal has appointed Shri S. K. Gupta, Practicing Company Secretary as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the ballot forms
and to conduct the voting at the venue of the meeting in a fair and transparent manner.

The Scrutinizer will submit his report to the Chairman of the meeting after completion of the scrutiny of the votes cast by the
Secured Creditors of the Transferee Company/ Demerged Company through (i) Postal Ballot and (ii) ballot/polling paper/
electronic voting at the venue of the meeting. The Scrutinizer’s decision on the validity of the vote cast via (i) Postal Ballot and
(ii) ballot/polling paper/electronic voting at the venue of the meeting shall be final.

The Secured Creditors of the Transferee Company/Demerged Company can opt for only one mode for voting i.e. by Postal
Ballot or voting at the venue of the meeting.

The Secured Creditors of the Transferee Company/Demerged Company attending the meeting who have not cast their votes
through Postal Ballot shall be entitled to exercise their votes at the venue of the meeting.



BEFORE THE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL
ALLAHABAD BENCH

(DISTRICT: GAUTAM BUDH NAGAR)

In the matter of Companies Act, 2013
And

In the matter of Sections 230 to 232, Section 66 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies
(Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016

And
IN THE MATTER OF
HSB CORPORATE CONSULTANTS PRIVATE LIMITED
...Applicant Co. No. 1/ “Transferor Company 1”
And
JUBILANT STOCK HOLDING PRIVATE LIMITED
.. Applicant Co. No. 2/ “Transferor Company 2”
And

SSB CONSULTANTS & MANAGEMENT SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
.. Applicant Co. No. 3/ “Transferor Company 3”
And
JCPL LIFE SCIENCE VENTURES AND HOLDINGS PRIVATE LIMITED
... Applicant Co. No. 4/ “Transferor Company 4”
And
JSPL LIFE SCIENCE SERVICES AND HOLDINGS PRIVATE LIMITED
.. Applicant Co. No. 5/ “Transferor Company 5”
And
JUBILANT LIFE SCIENCES LIMITED
... Applicant Co. No. 6/ “Transferee Company/Demerged Company”
And
JUBILANT LSI LIMITED
... Applicant Company No. 7/ “Resulting Company”
And
THEIR RESPECTIVE SHAREHOLDERS AND CREDITORS



JUBILANT LIFE SCIENCES LIMITED
(CIN: L24116UP1978PLC004624)

A company incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 and having its registered office at Bhartiagram,
Gajraula, District Amroha- 244223, Uttar Pradesh

... Applicant Co. No. 6/ “Transferee Company/Demerged Company”

Statement under Sections 230(3), 232 (2) and 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 6 of the Companies (Compromises,
Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016 (“Explanatory Statement”)

1.

Pursuant to the order dated June 9, 2020, as corrected by Order dated June 15, 2020 passed by Allahabad Bench of National
Company Law Tribunal in Company Application No. 101/ALD/2020, meeting of the secured creditors of Jubilant Life
Sciences Limited is being convened and held at the registered office at Bhartiagram, Gajraula, District Amroha- 244223,
Uttar Pradesh for the purpose of considering and if thought fit, approving, with or without modification(s), the proposed
Composite Scheme of Arrangement (the ‘Scheme’) amongst HSB Corporate Consultants Private Limited, Jubilant Stock Holding
Private Limited, SSB Consultants & Management Services Private Limited, JCPL Life Science Ventures and Holdings Private
Limited, JSPL Life Science Services and Holdings Private Limited, Jubilant Life Sciences Limited and Jubilant LSI Limited
and their respective Shareholders and Creditors under Section 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) (including any
statutory modification or re-enactment or amendment thereof) read with the Rules thereunder.

A copy of the Composite Scheme setting out in detail terms and conditions of the Scheme, inter-alia, providing for the
proposed Composite Scheme of Arrangement is attached to the Explanatory Statement and forms part of this Statement as
Annexure-1.

Background of HSB Corporate Consultants Private Limited:-

i.  HSB Corporate Consultants Private Limited was incorporated on January 29, 2013 under the provisions of the
Companies Act, 1956. The Corporate Identification Number of the Applicant Company No. 1/ Transferor Company 1 is
U74120UP2013PTC054821 and its registered office is situated at Plot No. 1A, Sector-16A, Noida, Gautam Buddha Nagar,
Uttar Pradesh - 201301. The Applicant Company No. 1/ Transferor Company 1 is inter alia engaged in the business of
making, holding and nurturing investments in life sciences businesses.

ii.  The share capital structure of the Applicant Company No. 1/ Transferor Company 1 as on March 31, 2020 is as under:

Authorized Share Capital Amount (in Rs.)
10,000 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each 1,00,000
Total 1,00,000
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital Amount (in Rs.)
10,000 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each 1,00,000
Total 1,00,000

iii. The main objects of the Applicant Company No. 1/ Transferor Company 1 are set out in the Memorandum of Association,
but are extracted as under:-

(a) To provide Project Management and Engineering Consultancy services in the area of Chemical, Civil Structural,
Electrical, Electronics, Instrumentation, Mechanical, Computer and Systems Engineering.

(b) To carry on the business of and to act as traders, dealers, agents, distributors, representatives, stockists, importers,
exporters, entitlement negotiation, suppliers and commission agents of products and commodities and materials in any
form or shape manufactured or supplied by any company firm, association of persons, body etc.

(c) To provide consultancy and to act as management consultant for the businesses of prospecting, exploring, developing,
opening and working mines, drilling and sinking shafts or wells and to pump, refine etc. and other infrastructure facilities
and to manufacture of fields chemicals.



(d) To carry on the profession of consultants on management, employment, engineering industry and technical matters to
industry and business and to provide consultancy to projects on turn-key basis and to act as consultants in the area of
software services, etc.

4. Background of Jubilant Stock Holding Private Limited:-

i

il.

iii.

Jubilant Stock Holding Private Limited was incorporated on December 15, 2008 under the provisions of the Companies
Act, 1956. The Corporate Identification Number of the Applicant Company No. 2/ Transferor Company 2 is
U52100UP2008PTC043688 and its registered office is situated at Plot No. 1A, Sector-16A, Noida, Gautam Buddha Nagar,
Uttar Pradesh - 201301. The Applicant Company No. 2/ Transferor Company 2 is inter alia engaged in the business of
making, holding and nurturing investments in life sciences businesses.

The share capital structure of the Applicant Company No. 2/Transferor Company 2 as on March 31, 2020 is as under:

Authorized Share Capital Amount (in Rs.)

2,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each 20,00,000
57,30,000 Preference Shares of Rs. 100/- each 57,30,00,000
Total 57,50,00,000
Issued, Subscribed and Paid up Share Capital Amount (in Rs.)

10,000 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each 1,00,000
Total 1,00,000

The main objects of the Applicant Company No. 2/ Transferor Company 2 are set out in Memorandum of Association, but
are extracted as under:-

a.  To carry on the business of investment company and for that purpose to invest, sell, purchase, exchange, surrender,
extinguish, relinquish, subscribe, acquire, undertake, underwrite, hold auction, convert or otherwise deal in any shares,
stocks, debentures, debenture stock, bonds, negotiable instruments, hedge instruments, warrants, certificates, premium
notes, Treasury Bills, obligation inter corporate deposits, call money deposits, public deposits, commercial papers,
options future, money market securities, marketable or non-marketable, securities derivatives, and other instruments
and securities issued, guaranteed or given by any government, semi-government, local authorities, public sector
undertakings, companies, body corporate corporations, co-operative societies, trusts, funds, State, Dominion sovereign,
Ruler, Commissioner, Public body or authority and other organizations entities, persons carrying on business in India
or elsewhere in retail, telecom, food, pharmaceutical, chemicals, media, real estate, broadband services, information
technology, beverages financial consultancy, infrastructure, automobile and any other industries.

5. Background of SSB Consultants & Management Services Private Limited:-

i

ii.

SSB Consultants & Management Services Private Limited was incorporated on January 29, 2013 under the provisions of
the Companies Act, 1956. The Corporate Identification Number of the Applicant Company No. 3/ Transferor Company
3 is U74120UP2013PTC054823 and its registered office is situated at Plot No. 1A, Sector-16A, Noida, Gautam Buddha
Nagar, Uttar Pradesh - 201301. The Applicant Company No. 3/ Transferor Company 3 is inter alia engaged in the business
of making, holding and nurturing investments in life sciences businesses.

The share capital structure of the Applicant Company No. 3/ Transferor Company 3 as on March 31, 2020 is as under:

Authorized Share Capital Amount (in Rs.)
10,000 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each 1,00,000
Total 1,00,000
Issued, Subscribed and Paid up Share Capital Amount (in Rs.)
10,000 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each 1,00,000
Total 1,00,000




iil.

The main objects of the Applicant Company No. 3/ Transferor Company 3 are set out in its Memorandum of Association.

The same are extracted as under:-

To provide project Management and Engineering Consultancy services in the area of Chemical, Civil Structural,
Electrical, Electronics, Instrumentation, Mechanical, Computer and Systems Engineering.

To carry on the business of and to act as traders, dealers, agents, distributors, representatives, stockists, importers,
exporters, entitlement negotiation, suppliers and commission agents of products and commodities and materials in any
form or shape manufactured or supplied by any company firm, association of persons, body etc.

To provide consultancy and to act as management consultant for the businesses of prospecting, exploring, developing,
opening and working mines, drilling and sinking shafts or wells and to pump, refine etc. and other infrastructure facilities
and to manufacture of fields chemicals.

To carry on the profession of consultants on management, employment, engineering industry and technical matters to
industry and business and to provide consultancy to projects on turn-key basis and to act as consultants in the area of
software services, etc.

6. Background of JCPL Life Science Ventures and Holdings Private Limited:-

i

ii.

iil.

JCPL Life Science Ventures and Holdings Private Limited was incorporated on November 21, 2016 under the provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013. The Corporate Identification Number of the Applicant Company No. 4/ Transferor Company
4 is U74999UP2016PTC087833 and its registered office is situated at Plot No. 1A, Sector-16A, Noida, Gautam Buddha
Nagar, Uttar Pradesh - 201301. The Applicant Company No. 4/ Transferor Company 4 is inter alia engaged in the business
of making, holding and nurturing investments in life sciences businesses.

The share capital structure of the Applicant Company No. 4/ Transferor Company 4 on March 31, 2020 is as under :

Authorized Share Capital Amount (in Rs.)
97,40,000 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each 9,74,00,000
2,60,000 preference shares of Rs. 10/- each 26,00,000
Total 10,00,00,000
Issued, Subscribed and Paid up Share Capital Amount (in Rs.)
58,57,489 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each 5,85,74,890
Total 5,85,74,890

The main objects of the Applicant Company No. 4/ Transferor Company 4 are set out in its Memorandum of Association.
They are extracted as under:

a.

To set up, engage, collaborate, acquire, purchase, maintain, open collection centres, Medicare, health care, diagnostic
Centre, run laboratories etc. for the purposes of carrying out pathological investigations of various branches and other
pathological investigations.

To carry on the business of rendering services for sending, receiving within or outside India, for pathological investigation
purposes, human blood, blood products, plasma serum, body fluids, tissues, drugs, powder etc.

To manufacture, formulate, process, develop, refine, import, export, wholesale and/or retail trade all kinds of
pharmaceuticals, antibiotics, drugs, medicines, biological neutraceuticals, healthcare, ayurvedic and dietary supplement
products, medicinal preparations, vaccines, chemical, chemical products, dry salters, mineral waters, wines, cordials,
liquors, soups, broths and other restoratives or foods and also to deal in medicinal goods and to carry on the business
of vialling, bottling, repacking, processing of tablets, capsules, syrups, injections, ointments, etc. and also to carry on the
business of chemists, druggists, and all kinds of pharmaceuticals and allied products.

To carry on the business of manufacture, importers, exporters, stockist, consignment agents, sole selling agents,
commission agents, dealers in all kinds of pharmaceuticals, medicals or pathological sachets, equipment, disposable
syringes, life saving devices, drugs and pharmaceutical medical and chemical preparations used for human beings.
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e.  To carry on the business of an investment company and for that purpose to invest in, acquire, underwrite, subscribe for,
hold, shares, bond, stocks, securities, debentures of other entities.

7. Background of JSPL Life Science Services and Holdings Private Limited:-

i

ii.

iii.

JSPL Life Science Services and Holdings Private Limited was incorporated on November 15, 2016 under the provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013. The Corporate Identification Number of the Applicant Company No. 5/ Transferor Company
5 is U74999UP2016PTC087691 and its registered office is situated at Plot No. 1A, Sector-16A, Noida, Gautam Buddha
Nagar, Uttar Pradesh - 201301. The Applicant Company No. 5/ Transferor Company 5 is inter alia engaged in the business
of making, holding and nurturing investments in life sciences businesses.

The share capital structure of the Applicant Company No. 5/ Transferor Company 5 on March 31, 2020 is as under :

Authorized Share Capital Amount (in Rs.)
97,40,000 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each 9,74,00,000
2,60,000 preference shares of Rs. 10/- each 26,00,000
Total 10,00,00,000
Issued, Subscribed and Paid up Share Capital Amount (in Rs.)
89,45,428 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each 8,94,54,280
Total 8,94,54,280

The main objects of the Applicant Company No. 5/ Transferor Company 5 are set out in its Memorandum of Association.
They are extracted as under:

a.  To set up, health care, diagnostic Centre, Pharmacy Store, health aids and to conduct, manage, administer, own, run
laboratories and other pathological investigations.

b.  Tocarry on the business of rendering services for sending, receiving within or outside India, for pathological investigation
purposes human blood, blood products, plasma serum, body fluids, tissues, drugs, powder, etc.

c.  To manufacture, formulate, process etc. all kinds of pharmaceuticals, antibiotics, drugs, medicines, biological
neutraceuticals, healthcare, ayurvedic and dietary supplement products, medicinal preparations, vaccines, chemicals,
chemical products etc. and to carry on the business of vialling, bottling repacking, processing of tablets capsules, syrups,
injections, ointments, etc. and also to carry on the business of chemists, druggists, etc. and all kinds of pharmaceuticals
and allied products.

d.  To carry on the business of manufacture, importers, exporters, stockiest, consignment agents, sole selling agents,
commission agents, dealers in all kinds of pharmaceuticals, medicals or pathological sachets, equipment, disposable
syringes, life saving devices, drugs and pharmaceutical, medical and chemical preparations used for human beings.

e.  To carry on the business of an investment company and for that purpose to invest in, acquire, underwrite, subscribe for,
hold, shares, bond, stocks, securities, debentures of other entities.

8. Background of Jubilant Life Sciences Limited:-

i

Jubilant Life Sciences was incorporated on June 21, 1978 under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. The
Corporate Identification Number of the Applicant Company No. 6/ Transferee Company/ Demerged Company is
124116UP1978PLC004624 and its registered office is situated at Bhartiagram Gajraula, District Amroha-244223, Uttar
Pradesh. The Applicant Company No. 6/ Transferee Company/ Demerged Company is a listed company and its Equity
Shares are listed on the Indian Stock Exchanges, namely BSE Limited and the National Stock Exchange of India Limited.

The Demerged Company is an integrated global pharmaceutical and life sciences company engaged in the following
businesses:

a. Under the pharmaceuticals business, the Demerged Company, through its wholly owned subsidiary, Jubilant
Pharma Limited, is engaged, directly or indirectly, through its subsidiaries, in the manufacture and supply of active
pharmaceutical ingredients (APIs), solid dosage formulations, radiopharmaceuticals, allergy therapy products and
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iii.

iv.

contract manufacturing of sterile injectables and non-sterile products through six United States Food and Drug
Administration (USFDA) approved manufacturing facilities in the United States, Canada and India and a network
of over 50 radio-pharmacies in the United States;

The drug discovery and development solutions business, provides proprietary in-house innovation and collaborative
research and partnership for out-licensing through two world class research centers in India;

India branded pharmaceuticals business. This business has been sold by the Demerged Company effective from
March 31, 2020; and

The life science ingredients business comprises of specialty intermediates, nutritional products and life science
chemicals businesses through five manufacturing facilities in India and includes its subsidiaries mentioned under S.
No. 5 of Schedule I of the Scheme.

The share capital structure of the Applicant Company No. 6/ Transferee Company/ Demerged Company on March 31,

2020 is as under:
Authorized Share Capital Amount (in Rs.)
65,50,00,000 equity shares of Re. 1/- each 65,50,00,000
Total 65,50,00,000
Issued, Subscribed and Paid up Share Capital Amount (in Rs.)
15,92,81,139 equity shares of Re. 1/- each 15,92,81,139
Total 15,92,81,139

The main objects of the Applicant Company No. 6 / Transferee Company/ Demerged Company are set out in its
Memorandum of Association. They are extracted as under:

a.

To manufacture, fabricate, produce, prepare extract, process and finish, import, export, buy, sell, install, survey, estimate,
transport, refine and generally carry on business or deal or traffic in Vinyl Acetate Monomer, Acetaldehyde, Acetic Acid,
Acetic Anhydride, Ethyl Alcohol, Ethyl Acetate, Polyvinyl Acetate and other chemicals and chemical products of any
nature and kind whatsoever.

To manufacture, fabricate, produce, prepare, extract, process and finish, import, export, buy, sell, instal, survey,
estimate and generally carry on business of types of Polymers and Co-polymers of Vinyl Acetate Monomer Acealate to
Polymer and Vinyl Chloride Monomer, Polyvinyl Alcohol, Polyvinyl Acetals including Polyvinyl formal and Polyvinyl
butyral, Ethylene-Vinyl Alcohol Co-polymer, Ethylene Vinyle, Synthetic resins, emulsions and latexes for use in Paints
and building products, Adhesives, Paper Coatings, Textiles, Binders, Wire Enamel, Floorings, Phonographic records,
Speciality coatings, Forest wood products or any other use.

To carry on the business as manufacturers, dealers, importers, processors, buyers, sellers, stockists, distributors of all
kinds of Chemicals, Insecticides, Granulation Fertilizers, Fertilizers, Pesticides and other germ killing materials and all
light and heavy Industrial Chemicals, Alkalies, Acids, Gases, Sulphates, Superphosphates, Sulphuric Acid Medicines,
Drugs, Tannins, essences, pharmaceuticals, photographic, sizing, medicinal, chemical, industrial and other preparations
and articles, mineral and other waters, cement, oils, paints, pigments and varnishes, compounds, dye-stuffs, organic or
mineral, basic and intermediates, paints and colours, printing inks, dry salters.

To carry on the business to manufacture, produce, refine, process, formulate, mix or prepare, deal in, import and export of
any agricultural chemicals, fertilizers manures, their mixtures and formulations, chemicals source materials, ingredients,
mixtures, derivates and compounds thereof and products of which any of the foregoing constitutes an ingredient, in the
production of which any of the foregoing is used, including but not limited to fertilizers and agricultural and industrial
chemicals of all kinds, and industrial and other preparations or products arising from or required in the manufacture,
refining of any kind of fertilizer, manure, their mixture, their mixture and formulations.

12



To carry on the business of manufacturers, producers, refiners, processors, miners, exporters, importers, buyers and
sellers of and dealers in and with all and any fats, vermifuges, fungicides, insecticides germicides, dips sprays, disinfecting
preparations, fumigators, medicines and remedies of all kinds for agricultural, trees, plantations, gardening and other
purposes or as remedies for human and animals and whether produced from vegetable, mineral, gaseous or any other
matters or substances by and any process whether chemical, mechanical, electrical.

To fix atmospheric nitrogen by synthetic ammonia or by any other process and to manufacture its derivative compounds
and to refine and manufacture, manipulate, import, export and deal in Salt and marine minerals and other derivatives,
by-products and compounds.

To carry on the business of manufacturing ammonia, ammonium sulphate, urea, ammonium nitrate, ammonium
phosphate and any other fertilizers, fertilizer mixtures, chemicals including petrochemicals and gases or any other allied
product or any compounds thereof by any process and of selling, distributing or applying such fertilizers and chemicals or
gases, substances and compounds or any of them to such purposes as the company may from time to time think desirable.

To manufacture, fabricate, produce, prepare, extract, process and finish, import, export, buy sell, instal, survey, estimate
transport, refine and generally carry on the business or deal or traffic in Ethylene, n-butanol, 2-ethylhexanol, paracetic
acid, panatacrythritol, pyridines, chloral, 1.3-butylene glycol, trimethlolpropane, Cellulose Acetate including its fibres
and Plastics, Acetic Esters, photographic chemicals, food additives, Monochloro Acetic Acid, Carboxy Methyl Cellulose,
perfumers, explosives, aspiring, synthetic drugs, detergents, surface coatings, beverages, agro-chemicals, Terepthalic acid,
sodium Acetate.

(i) To purchase, manufacture, produce, boil, refine, import, export, sell and generally deal in sugar, sugar candy,
jaggery, sugarbeet, sugarcane, molasses, chemicals based on molasses, chemical based on alcohol produced from
molasses, syrups, melada, alcohol including alcohol produced from molasses, spirits, bagasse, bagasse board, paper
board and all products, by products, intermediates, other products which are required or produced by the sugar
industry and to acquire or manufacture machinery for any of the above purposes;

(ii) To purchase, manufacture, produce, import, export, sell and generally deal in all the products which use or require
directly or indirectly and sugar product, by product intermediates such as bagasse, steam, molasses, paper, chemicals
or any other similar product:

(iii) To cultivate, plants, produce, and raise or purchase sugarcane, sorghum, sugarbeet sago, palmyra juice and other
crops or raw materials and to transact such other work or business as may be proper, necessary or desirable in
connection with the above objects or any of them.

(iv) To produce, generate, sell captively consume or otherwise dispose off power.

To carry on the business of creation, writing, design and development, improve sale, purchase, sub-contract deal, in
shared services, business process outsourcing including Human Resource, accounting, IT Services and other business
processes, IT-enabled services, information technology enabled services including establishment of call centers, medical
transcription center, data bank, Software Development data processing center or such other services which can be
rendered with the help of computers and IT.

To Carry on the business of all types of services marketing, trading, distribution and consultancy in the area of other
software and systems, covering areas of general management (including Human Resource), enterprise management,
strategic management, financial, administrative, resource, reengineering, software design and development, Enterprises
Resource Planning, material resource Planning, Internet, Internet and WE related services, quality management,
Virtual market methodologies, information management and dissemination, all and every type of software and service
connected to computers and microprocessor based systems.

(i) To engage in business activities related to Research and Development for drugs, pharmaceuticals, nutraceuticals
and biopharmaceuticals, medicines, diagnostics, drug discovery and drug development including genomics,
proteomics, pharmacology, bio-technology, bio-informatics, molecular biology, medicinal chemistry, organic and
inorganic chemistry, molecular drug design, computational chemistry, X-ray crystallography, process chemistry,
formulations, clinical and preclinical trials, toxicity study, Bio-equivalence and ADME studies, Pharmacokinetics
etc. and scale up of process know how, for the Company’s own purpose or contract work.
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(ii) To apply for, purchase, acquire, sell, lease, dispose off, use for company’s own use or for others, import, export,
invent, protect, prolong, any secret formula, know-how, process, design, patent rights, licences, protection and
concessions, manufacturing process for the manufacture of drugs, pharmaceuticals, chemicals, food products or of
any plant or equipment and other intellectual property rights and to spend money on experimenting, testing and
improving and patents, inventions, intellectual properties, rights which the company may acquire or propose to
acquire and develop.

(iii) To provide services and/or products to healthcare organizations, research institutions, patients and consumers.

(iv) To use information technology tools and techniques to work with existing chemical and biological data, information
as well as to generate information on the genomics and proteomics of living organs including human beings through
research and study.

(v) To carry on the business of Manufacturer, Exporter, Importer, Whole Sale and Retail Sellers, Dealers in and to do
Research and Development products and its intermediates.

(vi) To carry on all types of activities in connection with designing, developing, updating and maintaining knowledge
bases for biological target identification and prioritization, lead identification and optimization for drug discovery
and development.

(vii) To ensure data management, compliance and International regulatory affairs for the foregoing objects.

m. (i) To manufacture, blend, distil, extract, refine, formulate, acquire, process, cultivate, import, export, buy, sell, stock,
distribute, broker and generally to deal in:

(a) All types of medicines-whether allopathic, homoeopathic, Ayurvedic, Unani or others for human and animal
use, intermediates, bulk drugs, Active Pharmaceutical Ingredients (API) and finished dosage forms for animal
and human use.

(b) All types of chemicals, organic, inorganic, fine or biochemicals or any other intermediates, ingredients and
formulations and derivatives thereof and consumer products based thereon, pharmaceuticals, diagnostics, bio
pharmaceuticals, bio modulators, nutraceuticals, agrochemicals, acids, cosmetics, dyes, detergents, veterinary
products, fertilizers, herbicides, pesticides, rodenticides, insecticides, plant growth activators/regulators, foods
products, food/feed additives etc.

(c) All enzymes and other products from animal, microbial and plant sources, vegetable and herbal extracts.

(d) Surgical instruments, injectables, oils, perfumes, vaccines, hospital requisites, tinctures, extracts, capsules,
syrups, tablets, ointments, tonics, alkaloids, steroids, diagnostic products and equipments, appliances and
accessories.

(ii) To do innovation, design, develop process and technology in respect of any of the above and subject the same to
commercial exploitation.

(iii) To grow, cultivate, plant, crush, utilise, manufacture, blend, distill, extract, refine, formulate, acquire, process, bottle,
pack, repack, preserve, import, export, buy, sell, stock, distribute, to act as brokers, contractors, sub-contractors or
agents for others and generally to deal in herbs and plants of every description and nature.

(iv) To establish laboratory and related infrastructure for the Research and development of products needed for
Company’s business and to do contract research and manufacturing.

(v) To engage into all kinds of business activities related to research and development in all fields of pharmaceuticals
and life sciences including but not limited to genomics, pharmaceuticals, molecular discovery, drug development,
biotechnology, diagnostics, informatics services, data management, bio-equivalence studies, pharmacokinetics,
clinical trials, clinical researches, Active Pharmaceutical Ingredients and pharmaceuticals, and to render contract /
consultancy services and to do contract / toll manufacturing in all or any of the areas mentioned above or ancillary
or incidental thereto and healthcare services including medical transcription, insurance, out-patient care, hospitals
and emergency services.
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(i)

(ii)

(iii)

To brew, distil, bottle, pack, can, preserve, dehydrate, manufacture, produce, blend, extract, refine, formulate,
compound, process, cultivate, import, export, buy, sell, stock, distribute, broker and generally to deal in:

a) Alcohol of all types including potable alcohol, industrial alcohol, extra neutral alcohol, absolute alcohol,
liquors of every description including without limitation, Indian made foreign liquors, country liquors, wines,
whiskies, gin, rum, brandy, spirits, beers, rectified spirits, whether produced from sugarcane juice, sugarcane
molasses, grains, fruits, hops, molasses from beetroot or any other cellulosic material;

b)  Products or by-products of all or any of the above whether intoxicating or not;

To carry on all or any of the businesses at (a) and (b) above, either for its own benefit or on behalf of or as
contractors or agents of others, as exporters, importers, distillers, commission agents, contractors, warehousemen,
bottlers, bottle makers, bottle stopper makers, potters, manufacturers of and dealers in aerated and mineral waters
and other drinks, licensed victualers, beer house keepers, yeast dealers etc.

To grow, cultivate, pack, can, preserve, dehydrate, produce, compound, process, import, export, buy, sell, stock,
distribute, to act as brokers, contractors, sub-contractors or agents for others and generally to deal in porter, malt,
hops, corn, grain, meal yeast carbonic acid gas, fruits, herbs, vegetables, plants, grapes, mustard, pickles, sauces,
condiments of all kinds, cocoa, coffee, preserves, and all other commodities and things and by-products from all or
any of the above whether intoxicating or not.

To set up, promote, develop, encourage, organize, operate and maintain or assist in the formation of all or any kind
of infrastructure facilities and services including but not limited to the establishment of Special Economic Zone(s),
Free Trade Zone(s), Export Processing Zone(s), Industrial Estate(s), Information Technology Park(s), Software Park(s),
Biotechnology Park(s), Electronic Hardware Technology Park(s), Parks for bio and chemo informatics/clinical research/
chemistry services or any other such Zone/Park/Estate in any part of the country or abroad in accordance with the
policies of the Government of India or any other Government or its department(s) or any agency or any regulatory body
formed in this regard and to undertake and carry on all such activities as may for the time being be permitted to be
carried on in such Zone(s)/ Park(s)/Estate(s) or other infrastructure facilities including but not limited to the following.

(@)

(ii)

(iii)

To undertake, construct, re-construct, build, erect, fabricate, develop, organize, re-organize, maintain, operate,
alter, improve, repair, decorate, establish, furnish, buy, sell, own, let, sub-let, take or give on hire or lease, acquire,
demolish, dispose of, exchange, transfer or otherwise deal in:

a)  houses, lands, plots, buildings, hereditaments, flats, recreational centers, parks and gardens, hotels, cinema
halls, multiplexes, shopping malls, markets, commercial establishments, factories, godowns, warehouses,
structures and immovable properties of any tenure or description;

b) infrastructure facilities including docks, harbours, wharves, canals, water courses, reservoirs, embankments,
irrigation, reclamations, railways, roadways, tramways and other transport systems, drainage and other
sanitary works, roads, highways, bridges, tunnels, barrages, fly-overs, airports, airways, cargo movement and
management systems, cargo handling equipments, ports, industrial parks, water supply projects, irrigation
projects, inland water ways and inland ports, water treatment systems, solid waste management systems,
sanitation and sewerage systems and any other public facilities of a similar nature;

c) all essential infrastructural inputs as may be necessary including installations of water, gas, electric and other
supply works;

d) any project for acquiring/providing telecommunication services, security services and other services of similar
kind or nature;

To organize, undertake and carry on the business of contract builders, earthwork, masonry and general construction
contractors and haulers;

To sell, lease or otherwise transfer properties on such terms as may be decided and to carry on business as estate
agents and estate managers and to collect rents, repair, look after and manage immovable properties of or for any
persons, firms and companies, governments and States as well as of this Company;
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(iv) To render consultancy and / or other services or to enter into any arrangement by way of turnkey project or
otherwise involving the supply of technical, civil, financial, administrative or for any other such matter in relation
to setting up of Special Economic Zone(s), Information Technology Park(s), Software Park(s), Industrial Estate(s)
or any other such Zone/Park/Estate.

9.  Background of Jubilant LSI Limited:-

1.

Jubilant LSI Limited was incorporated on October 23, 2019 under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. The
Corporate Identification Number of the Applicant Company No. 7/ Resulting Company is U24299UP2019PLC122657
and its registered office is situated at Bhartiagram, Gajraula, District Amroha — 244 223, Uttar Pradesh, India.

The Applicant Company No. 7/ Resulting Company was incorporated to undertake the business of the life science
ingredients segment.

The share capital structure of the Applicant Company No. 7/ Resulting Company on March 31, 2020 is as under:

Authorized Share Capital Amount (in Rs.)
20,00,00,000 equity shares of Re. 1/- each 20,00,00,000
Total 20,00,00,000
Issued, Subscribed and Paid up Share Capital Amount (in Rs.)
5,00,000 equity shares of Re. 1/- each 5,00,000
Total 5,00,000

The main objects of the Applicant Company No. 7/ Resulting Company are set out in its Memorandum of Association.

They are extracted as under:

a.

To manufacture, fabricate, produce, prepare extract, process and finish, import, export, buy, sell, install, survey, estimate,
transport, refine and generally carry on business or deal or traffic in Vinyl Acetate Monomer, Acetaldehyde, Acetic Acid,
Acetic Anhydride, Ethyl Alcohol, Ethyl Acetate, Polyvinyl Acetate and other chemicals and chemical products of any
nature and kind whatsoever.

To manufacture, fabricate, produce, prepare, extract, process and finish, import, export, buy, sell, instal, survey,
estimate and generally carry on business of types of Polymers and Co-polymers of Vinyl Acetate Monomer Acealate to
Polymer and Vinyl Chloride Monomer, Polyvinyl Alcohol, Polyvinyl Acetals including Polyvinyl formal and Polyvinyl
butyral, Ethylene-Vinyl Alcohol Co-polymer, Ethylene Vinyle, Synthetic resins, emulsions and latexes for use in Paints
and building products, Adhesives, Paper Coatings, Textiles, Binders, Wire Enamel, Floorings, Phonographic records,
Speciality coatings, Forest wood products or any other use.

To carry on the business as manufacturers, dealers, importers, processors, buyers, sellers, stockists, distributors of all
kinds of Chemicals, Insecticides, Granulation Fertilizers, Fertilizers, Pesticides and other germ killing materials and all
light and heavy Industrial Chemicals, Alkalies, Acids, Gases, Sulphates, Superphosphates, Sulphuric Acid Medicines,
Drugs, Tannins, essences, pharmaceuticals, photographic, sizing, medicinal, chemical, industrial and other preparations
and articles, mineral and other waters, cement, oils, paints, pigments and varnishes, compounds, dye-stuffs, organic or
mineral, basic and intermediates, paints and colours, printing inks, dry salters.

To carry on the business to manufacture, produce, refine, process, formulate, mix or prepare, deal in, import and export of
any agricultural chemicals, fertilizers manures, their mixtures and formulations, chemicals source materials, ingredients,
mixtures, derivates and compounds thereof and products of which any of the foregoing constitutes an ingredient, in the
production of which any of the foregoing is used, including but not limited to fertilizers and agricultural and industrial
chemicals of all kinds, and industrial and other preparations or products arising from or required in the manufacture,
refining of any kind of fertilizer, manure, their mixture, their mixture and formulations.

To carry on the business of manufacturers, producers, refiners, processors, miners, exporters, importers, buyers and
sellers of and dealers in and with all and any fats, vermifuges, fungicides, insecticides germicides, dips sprays, disinfecting
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preparations, fumigators, medicines and remedies of all kinds for agricultural, trees, plantations, gardening and other
purposes or as remedies for human and animals and whether produced from vegetable, mineral, gaseous or any other
matters or substances by and any process whether chemical, mechanical, electrical.

To fix atmospheric nitrogen by synthetic ammonia or by any other process and to manufacture its derivative compounds
and to refine and manufacture, manipulate, import, export and deal in Salt and marine minerals and other derivatives,
by-products and compounds.

To carry on the business of manufacturing ammonia, ammonium sulphate, urea, ammonium nitrate, ammonium
phosphate and any other fertilizers, fertilizer mixtures, chemicals including petrochemicals and gases or any other allied
product or any compounds thereof by any process and of selling, distributing or applying such fertilizers and chemicals or
gases, substances and compounds or any of them to such purposes as the company may from time to time think desirable.

To manufacture, fabricate, produce, prepare, extract, process and finish, import, export, buy sell, instal, survey, estimate
transport, refine and generally carry on the business or deal or traffic in Ethylene, n-butanol 2-ethylhexanol, paracetic
acid, panatacrythritol, pyridines, chloral, 1.3-butylene glycol, trimethlolpropane, Cellulose Acetate including its fibres
and Plastics, Acetic Esters, photographic chemicals, food additives, Monochloro Acetic Acid, Carboxy Methyl Cellulose,
perfumers, explosives, aspiring, synthetic drugs, detergents, surface coatings, beverages, agro-chemicals, Terepthalic acid,
sodium Acetate.

(i) To purchase, manufacture, produce, boil, refine, import, export, sell and generally deal in sugar, sugar candy,
jaggery, sugarbeet, sugarcane, molasses, chemicals based on molasses, chemical based on alcohol produced from
molasses, syrups, melada, alcohol including alcohol produced from molasses, spirits, bagasse, bagasse board, paper
board and all products, by products, intermediates, other products which are required or produced by the sugar
industry and to acquire or manufacture machinery for any of the above purposes;

(ii) To purchase, manufacture, produce, import, export, sell and generally deal in all the products which use or require
directly or indirectly and sugar product, by product intermediates such as bagasse, steam, molasses, paper, chemicals
or any other similar product:

(iii) To cultivate, plants, produce, and raise or purchase sugarcane, sorghum, sugarbeet sago, palmyra juice and other
crops or raw materials and to transact such other work or business as may be proper, necessary or desirable in
connection with the above objects or any of them.

(iv) To produce, generate, sell captively consume or otherwise dispose off power.

To carry on the business of creation, writing, design and development, improve sale, purchase, sub-contract deal, in
shared services, business process outsourcing including Human Resource, accounting, I T Services and other business
processes IT-enabled services, information technology enabled services including establishment of call centers, medical
transcription center, data bank, Software Development data processing center or such other services which can be
rendered with the help of computers and IT.

To Carry on the business of all types of services marketing, trading, distribution and consultancy in the area of other
software and systems, covering areas of general management (including Human Resource), enterprise management,
strategic management, financial, administrative, resource, reengineering, software design and development, Enterprises
Resource Planning, material resource Planning, Internet, Internet and WE related services, quality management,
Virtual market methodologies, information management and dissemination, all and every type of software and service
connected to computers and microprocessor based systems.

(i) To engage in business activities related to Research and Development for drugs, pharmaceuticals, nutraceuticals
and biopharmaceuticals, medicines, diagnostics, drug discovery and drug development including genomics,
proteomics, pharmacology, bio-technology, bio-informatics, molecular biology, medicinal chemistry, organic and
inorganic chemistry, molecular drug design, computational chemistry, X-ray crystallography, process chemistry,
formulations, clinical and preclinical trials, toxicity study, Bio-equivalence and ADME studies, Pharmacokinetics
etc. and scale up of process know how, for the Company’s own purpose or contract work.
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(i)

(iii)
(iv)

(v)

(vi)

To apply for, purchase, acquire, sell, lease, dispose off, use for company’s own use or for others, import, export,
invent, protect, prolong, any secret formula, know-how, process, design, patent rights, licences, protection and
concessions, manufacturing process for the manufacture of drugs, pharmaceuticals, chemicals, food products or of
any plant or equipment and other intellectual property rights and to spend money on experimenting, testing and
improving and patents, inventions, intellectual properties, rights which the company may acquire or propose to
acquire and develop.

To provide services and/or products to healthcare organizations, research institutions, patients and consumers.

To use information technology tools and techniques to work with existing chemical and biological data, information
as well as to generate information on the genomics and proteomics of living organs including human beings through
research and study.

To carry on the business of Manufacturer, Exporter, Importer, Whole Sale and Retail Sellers, Dealers in and to do
Research and Development products and its intermediates.

To carry on all types of activities in connection with designing, developing, updating and maintaining knowledge
bases for biological target identification and prioritization, lead identification and optimization for drug discovery
and development.

(vii) To ensure data management, compliance and International regulatory affairs for the foregoing objects.

m. (i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

To manufacture, blend, distill, extract, refine, formulate, acquire, process, cultivate, import, export, buy, sell, stock,
distribute, broker and generally to deal in:

a)  All types of medicines-whether allopathic, homoeopathic, Ayurvedic, Unani or others for human and animal
use, intermediates, bulk drugs, Active Pharmaceutical Ingredients (API) and finished dosage forms for animal
and human use.

b) All types of chemicals, organic, inorganic, fine or biochemicals or any other intermediates, ingredients and
formulations and derivatives thereof and consumer products based thereon, pharmaceuticals, diagnostics, bio
pharmaceuticals, bio modulators, nutraceuticals, agrochemicals, acids, cosmetics, dyes, detergents, veterinary
products, fertilizers, herbicides, pesticides, rodenticides, insecticides, plant growth activators/regulators, foods
products, food/feed additives etc.

c) All enzymes and other products from animal, microbial and plant sources, vegetable and herbal extracts.

d)  Surgical instruments, injectables, oils, perfumes, vaccines, hospital requisites, tinctures, extracts, capsules,
syrups, tablets, ointments, tonics, alkaloids, steroids, diagnostic products and equipments, appliances and
accessories.

To do innovation, design, develop process and technology in respect of any of the above and subject the same to
commercial exploitation.

To grow, cultivate, plant, crush, utilise, manufacture, blend, distill, extract, refine, formulate, acquire, process, bottle,
pack, repack, preserve, import, export, buy, sell, stock, distribute, to act as brokers, contractors, sub-contractors or
agents for others and generally to deal in herbs and plants of every description and nature.

To establish laboratory and related infrastructure for the Research and development of products needed for
Company’s business and to do contract research and manufacturing.

To engage into all kinds of business activities related to research and development in all fields of pharmaceuticals
and life sciences including but not limited to genomics, pharmaceuticals, molecular discovery, drug development,
biotechnology, diagnostics, informatics services, data management, bio-equivalence studies, pharmacokinetics,
clinical trials, clinical researches, Active Pharmaceutical Ingredients and pharmaceuticals, and to render contract /
consultancy services and to do contract / toll manufacturing in all or any of the areas mentioned above or ancillary
or incidental thereto and healthcare services including medical transcription, insurance, out-patient care, hospitals
and emergency services.
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(i)

(ii)

(iii)

To brew, distil, bottle, pack, can, preserve, dehydrate, manufacture, produce, blend, extract, refine, formulate,
compound, process, cultivate, import, export, buy, sell, stock, distribute, broker and generally to deal in:

a) Alcohol of all types including potable alcohol, industrial alcohol, extra neutral alcohol, absolute alcohol,
liquors of every description including without limitation, Indian made foreign liquors, country liquors, wines,
whiskies, gin, rum, brandy, spirits, beers, rectified spirits, whether produced from sugarcane juice, sugarcane
molasses, grains, fruits, hops, molasses from beetroot or any other cellulosic material;

b)  Products or by-products of all or any of the above whether intoxicating or not;

To carry on all or any of the businesses at (a) and (b) above, either for its own benefit or on behalf of or as
contractors or agents of others, as exporters, importers, distillers, commission agents, contractors, warehousemen,
bottlers, bottle makers, bottle stopper makers, potters, manufacturers of and dealers in aerated and mineral waters
and other drinks, licensed victualers, beer house keepers, yeast dealers etc.

To grow, cultivate, pack, can, preserve, dehydrate, produce, compound, process, import, export, buy, sell, stock,
distribute, to act as brokers, contractors, sub-contractors or agents for others and generally to deal in porter, malt,
hops, corn, grain, meal yeast carbonic acid gas, fruits, herbs, vegetables, plants, grapes, mustard, pickles, sauces,
condiments of all kinds, cocoa, coffee, preserves, and all other commodities and things and by-products from all or
any of the above whether intoxicating or not.

To set up, promote, develop, encourage, organize, operate and maintain or assist in the formation of all or any kind
of infrastructure facilities and services including but not limited to the establishment of Special Economic Zone(s),
Free Trade Zone(s), Export Processing Zone(s), Industrial Estate(s), Information Technology Park(s), Software Park(s),
Biotechnology Park(s), Electronic Hardware Technology Park(s), Parks for bio and chemo informatics/clinical research/
chemistry services or any other such Zone/Park/Estate in any part of the country or abroad in accordance with the
policies of the Government of India or any other Government or its department(s) or any agency or any regulatory body
formed in this regard and to undertake and carry on all such activities as may for the time being be permitted to be
carried on in such Zone(s)/ Park(s)/Estate(s) or other infrastructure facilities including but not limited to the following:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

To undertake, construct, re-construct, build, erect, fabricate, develop, organize, re-organize, maintain, operate,
alter, improve, repair, decorate, establish, furnish, buy, sell, own, let, sub-let, take or give on hire or lease, acquire,
demolish, dispose of, exchange, transfer or otherwise deal in:

a)  houses, lands, plots, buildings, hereditaments, flats, recreational centers, parks and gardens, hotels, cinema
halls, multiplexes, shopping malls, markets, commercial establishments, factories, godowns, warehouses,
structures and immovable properties of any tenure or description;

b) infrastructure facilities including docks, harbours, wharves, canals, water courses, reservoirs, embankments,
irrigation, reclamations, railways, roadways, tramways and other transport systems, drainage and other
sanitary works, roads, highways, bridges, tunnels, barrages, fly-overs, airports, airways, cargo movement and
management systems, cargo handling equipments, ports, industrial parks, water supply projects, irrigation
projects, inland water ways and inland ports, water treatment systems, solid waste management systems,
sanitation and sewerage systems and any other public facilities of a similar nature;

c) all essential infrastructural inputs as may be necessary including installations of water, gas, electric and other
supply works;

d) any project for acquiring/providing telecommunication services, security services and other services of similar
kind or nature;

To organize, undertake and carry on the business of contract builders, earthwork, masonry and general construction
contractors and haulers;

To sell, lease or otherwise transfer properties on such terms as may be decided and to carry on business as estate
agents and estate managers and to collect rents, repair, look after and manage immovable properties of or for any
persons, firms and companies, governments and States as well as of this Company;
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(iv)

To render consultancy and / or other services or to enter into any arrangement by way of turnkey project or
otherwise involving the supply of technical, civil, financial, administrative or for any other such matter in relation
to setting up of Special Economic Zone(s), Information Technology Park(s), Software Park(s), Industrial Estate(s)
or any other such Zone/Park/Estate.

10. RATIONALE FOR THE SCHEME

11.

10.1.1.1

10.1.1.2

10.1.1.3

10.1.1.4

10.1.1.5

The amalgamation of the Transferor Companies into the Transferee Company shall provide the following
benefits:

@

(ii)

(iii)

Currently, a significant portion of the Promoters” shareholding in the Transferee Company is held indirectly,
through a multi-tier structure. The proposed amalgamations will result in simplification and streamlining of the
shareholding structure of the Transferee Company by elimination of shareholding tiers and simplification of a
large part of indirect Promoters’” shareholding into a clearer structure directly identifiable with the Promoters;

Further, such a simplified direct holding structure is expected to bring greater transparency in the Promoters’
shareholding and demonstrate Promoters’ direct commitment and engagement with the Transferee Company;,
from the perspective of its shareholders; and

The proposed simplification of holding structure will also make it simpler for the Transferee Company to
identify its ultimate beneficial owner for various applicable know your customer (KYC) requirements.

The demerger of the LSI Undertaking of the Demerged Company into the Resulting Company shall provide the
following benefits:

@

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Creation of a separate, distinct and focussed entity housing the LSI Undertaking leading to greater operational
efficiencies for the LSI Undertaking;

Independent setup of each of the undertaking of the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company will
ensure required depth and focus on each of the companies and adoption of strategies necessary for the growth of
the respective companies. The structure shall provide independence to the management in decisions regarding
the use of their respective cash flows for dividends, capital expenditure or other reinvestment in their respective
businesses;

Unlocking of value for shareholders of the Demerged Company by transfer of the LSI Undertaking, which
would enable optimal exploitation, monetization and development of both, Residual Undertaking and the LSI
Undertaking by attracting focused investors having the necessary ability, experience and interests in this sector
and by allowing pursuit of inorganic and organic growth opportunities in such businesses; and

Enabling the business and activities to be pursued and carried on with greater focus and attention through two
separate companies each having its own separate administrative set up and dedicated management.

That the implementation of this Scheme is aimed at protecting and maximizing value for the shareholders of the

Transferee Company as well as the creditors and all other stakeholders.

The restructuring under this Scheme would enable focused business approach for maximization of benefits to all
stakeholders and capitalize on the opportunity for the growth.

That in view of the aforementioned reasons, it is considered desirable and expedient to amalgamate the Transferor
Companies into the Transferee Company/ Demerged Company; and further demerge the LSI undertaking of the
Transferee Company/ Demerged Company into the Resulting Company, on a going concern basis.

SALIENT FEATURES OF THE SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT

The salient features of the Scheme of Arrangement are as under:

AMALGAMATION OF THE TRANSFEROR COMPANIES INTO THE TRANSFEREE COMPANY

a. Upon the Effective Date and with effect from the Merger Appointed Date, the Transferor Companies shall stand
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amalgamated and all their respective Assets, Liabilities, rights and obligations, as applicable, be transferred to and vested
in the Transferee Company on a going concern basis without any requirement of a further act or deed so as to become
as and from the Merger Appointed Date, the Assets, Liabilities, interests and obligations, as applicable, of the Transferee
Company.

Further, consequent to the above, the number of equity shares held by the Transferor Company 1, Transferor Company 2
and Transferor Company 3 in the Transferee Company shall be issued to Transferor Company 4 and Transferor Company
5. Subsequently, the number of shares held by the Transferor Company 4 and Transferor Company 5 in the Transferee
Company shall be issued to the shareholders of the Transferor Company 4 and Transferor Company 5.

Upon the Effective Date and with effect from the Merger Appointed Date, all Assets of the Transferor Companies, as are
movable in nature or are incorporeal property or are otherwise capable of transfer by manual delivery or by endorsement
and delivery shall stand transferred to and vested in the Transferee Company and shall become the property and an
integral part of the Transferee Company (to the extent permissible under Applicable Law).

Upon the Effective Date and with effect from the Merger Appointed Date, all Liabilities of the Transferor Companies
shall, without any requirement of a further act or deed, be transferred to, or be deemed to be transferred to the Transferee
Company so as to become from the Merger Appointed Date, the Liabilities of the Transferee Company and the Transferee
Company undertakes to meet, discharge and satisfy the same.

Upon the Effective Date and with effect from the Merger Appointed Date and subject to the provisions of this Scheme, all
contracts, deeds, bonds, lease deeds, agreements entered into with various persons, arrangements and other instruments
of whatsoever nature in relation to the Transferor Companies and to which the Transferor Companies, as applicable, are a
party or to the benefit of which the Transferor Companies, as applicable, may be eligible, and which are subsisting or have
effect as on the Effective Date, shall continue in full force and effect on or against or in favour of, as the case may be, of the
Transferee Company and may be enforced as fully and effectually as if, instead of the Transferor Companies, as applicable,
the Transferee Company has been a party or beneficiary or obligee thereto or there under, in all cases subject to the terms
and provisions of such contracts, deeds, bonds, lease deeds, agreements, arrangements or instruments.

Upon this Scheme becoming effective, the respective employees of the Transferor Companies as on the Effective Date, if
any, shall be deemed to have become employees of the Transferee Company, without any interruption of service and on
the basis of continuity of service and terms and conditions no less favourable than those applicable to them with reference
to the Transferor Companies on the Effective Date.

Upon this Scheme becoming effective, legal or other proceedings, if any (including before any court, statutory or quasi-
judicial authority or tribunal), by or against any of the Transferor Companies, whether pending on the Merger Appointed
Date, or which may be instituted any time in the future (irrespective of whether they relate to periods on or prior to the
Merger Appointed Date) and in each case relating to the Transferor Companies (“Transferor Company Proceeding(s)”)
shall be continued and enforced by or against the Transferee Company after the Effective Date, to the extent permissible
under Applicable Law and in accordance with this Scheme.

If any Transferor Company Proceeding(s) is/ are pending, the same shall not abate, be discontinued or in any way be
prejudicially affected by reason of this Scheme and the proceedings may be continued, prosecuted and enforced, by or
against the Transferee Company in the same manner and to the same extent as they would or might have been continued,
prosecuted and enforced by or against the respective Transferor Companies, as applicable, as if this Scheme had not been
made.

Upon the Effective Date and with effect from the Merger Appointed Date, all taxes and duties payable by the Transferor
Companies (including under the IT Act, Central Excise Act, 1944, Finance Act, 1994, Customs Act, 1962, goods and
services tax laws and all other Applicable Laws), accruing and relating to the Transferor Companies, from the Merger
Appointed Date onwards, including but not limited to advance tax payments, tax deducted at source credits, minimum
alternate tax credit, any refund and claims shall, for all purposes, be treated as advance tax payments, tax deducted at
source credits or refunds and claims, as the case may be, of the Transferee Company.

Upon this Scheme becoming effective, all unutilized credits and exemptions, benefit of carried forward losses/ unabsorbed
depreciation and other statutory benefits, including in respect of income tax (including but not limited to tax deducted
at source, tax collected at source, advance tax, minimum alternate tax credit etc.), cenvat, customs, value added tax, sales
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tax, value added tax, service tax, goods and services tax, etc. to which the Transferor Companies are entitled to, shall be
available to and vest in the Transferee Company, without any requirement of a further act or deed.

k. All the expenses incurred by the Transferor Companies and the Transferee Company in relation to the amalgamation of
the Transferor Companies with the Transferee Company as per this Scheme, including stamp duty expenses, if any, shall
be allowed as deduction to the Transferee Company in accordance with Section 35DD of the IT Act over a period of 5
years beginning with the previous year in which this Scheme becomes effective.

l.  Any refund under the tax laws due to the Transferor Companies consequent to the assessments made on the Transferor
Companies, and for which no credit is taken in the accounts as on the date immediately preceding the Merger Appointed
Date shall belong to and be received by the Transferee Company.

m. The Transferor Companies may be entitled to various incentive schemes and pursuant to this Scheme, it is declared
that the benefits under all such schemes and policies pertaining to the Transferor Companies, as applicable, shall stand
transferred to and vested in the Transferee Company and all benefits, entitlements and incentives of any nature whatsoever
including benefits under the income tax, excise duty, value added tax, sales tax, service tax, goods and services tax,
exemptions, concessions, remissions, subsidies and other incentives, to the extent statutorily available, shall be claimed by
the Transferee Company.

n. The transfer of Assets and Liabilities to, and the continuance of proceedings by or against, the Transferee Company as
envisaged in this Scheme shall not affect any transaction or proceedings already concluded by the Transferor Companies
on or before the Merger Appointed Date and after the Merger Appointed Date, till the effectiveness of this Scheme to
the end and intent that the Transferee Company accepts and adopts all acts, deeds and things done and executed by the
Transferor Companies in respect thereto as done and executed on behalf of itself.

DEMERGER OF THE LSI UNDERTAKING OF THE DEMERGED COMPANY INTO THE RESULTING COMPANY

a.  Upon the Effective Date as referred in the Scheme and with effect from the Demerger Appointed Date, the LSI Undertaking
of the Demerged Company shall stand demerged and be transferred to and vested in the Resulting Company on a going
concern basis without any requirement of any further act, instrument or deed so as to become as and from the Demerger
Appointed Date, the undertaking of the Resulting Company, and to vest in the Resulting Company, all the Assets,
Intellectual Property, Liabilities, rights, title, interest or obligations of the LSI Undertaking therein.

b.  Upon the Effective Date and with effect from the Demerger Appointed Date, all Assets pertaining to the LSI Undertaking
that are movable in nature or are intangible in nature, as identified and applicable or are otherwise capable of transfer by
manual or constructive delivery or by endorsement and delivery, shall stand transferred to and vested in the Resulting
Company and shall become the property and an integral part of the Resulting Company (to the extent permissible under
Applicable Law) without any further act, instrument or deed.

c.  Upon the Effective Date and with effect from the Demerger Appointed Date, all Liabilities relating to the LSI Undertaking
(more particularly described in Clause 1.14(viii) of Part A of the Scheme) shall stand transferred, or be deemed to have
been transferred to the Resulting Company so as to become from the Demerger Appointed Date, the Liabilities of the
Resulting Company and the Resulting Company undertakes to meet, discharge and satisfy the same.

d.  Upon the Effective Date and with effect from the Demerger Appointed Date and subject to the provisions of this Scheme,
all contracts, deeds, bonds, agreements entered into with various persons including independent consultants, subsidiaries/
associate/joint venture companies and other shareholders of such subsidiaries/ associate/ joint venture companies,
arrangements and other instruments of whatsoever nature in relation to the LSI Undertaking, to which the Demerged
Company is a party or to the benefit of which the Demerged Company may be eligible, and which are subsisting or have
effect immediately before the effectiveness of this Scheme, shall continue in full force and effect on or against or in favour
of, as the case may be, the Resulting Company and may be enforced as fully and effectually as if, instead of the Demerged
Company, the Resulting Company had been a party or beneficiary or obligee thereto or there under.

e. All governmental approvals and other consents, registrations, permissions, quotas, rights, authorisations, scrips,
entitlements, no-objection certificates and licenses, approvals, including those relating to tenancies, privileges, powers
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and facilities of every kind and description of whatsoever nature, to which the Demerged Company is a party or to the
benefit of which the Demerged Company may be entitled to use and which may be required to carry on the operations of
the LSI Undertaking, and which are subsisting or in effect immediately prior to the effectiveness of this Scheme, shall be,
and remain, in full force and effect in favour of the Resulting Company and may be enforced as fully and effectually as if,
the Resulting Company had been a party, a beneficiary or an obligee thereto.

The Resulting Company shall be entitled to undertake and carry out the business pertaining to the LSI Undertaking
pursuant to the effectiveness of this Scheme on its own account, pending the transfer of any approvals and other consents,
permissions, registrations, quotas, rights, authorisations, entitlements, no-objection certificates and licenses, privileges,
powers and facilities of every kind and description, that may be required under Applicable Law in the name of the
Resulting Company and would be entitled to make any applications, requests and the like in this regard.

Upon this Scheme becoming effective, the employees of the LSI Undertaking as on the Effective Date, if any, shall be
deemed to have become employees of the Resulting Company, without any interruption of service and on the basis of
continuity of service and on the same terms and conditions as those applicable to them with reference to the Demerged
Company as on the Effective Date. The services of such employees, if any, with the Demerged Company up to the Effective
Date shall be taken into account for the purposes of all benefits to which the employees, may be eligible under Applicable
Law.

Upon this Scheme becoming effective, legal or other proceedings, if any (including before any court, statutory or quasi-
judicial authority or tribunal), by or against the Demerged Company, whether pending on the Demerger Appointed Date,
or which may be instituted any time in the future (irrespective of whether they relate to periods on or prior to the Demerger
Appointed Date) and in each case relating to the LSI Undertaking (“Demerger Proceeding(s)”) shall be continued and
enforced by or against the Resulting Company after the Effective Date, to the extent legally permissible. To the extent
such Demerger Proceedings cannot be taken over by the Resulting Company, such proceedings shall be pursued by the
Demerged Company as per the instructions of and entirely at the costs and expenses of the Resulting Company.

Upon the Effective Date and with effect from the Demerger Appointed Date, all taxes and duties payable by the Demerged
Company (including under the IT Act, Customs Act, 1962, Central Excise Act, 1944, state sales tax laws, Central Sales Tax
Act, 1956, value added tax/ sales tax, service tax, goods and services tax laws, foreign trade policy and all other Applicable
Laws), accruing and relating to the LSI Undertaking from the Demerger Appointed Date onwards, including but not
limited to tax deducted at source, tax credits, advance taxes and deposits, minimum alternate tax credits, any refund
and claims shall, for all purposes, be treated as tax deducted at source or refunds and claims, advance taxes and deposits,
minimum alternate tax credits, as the case may be, of the Resulting Company.

Upon the Effective Date, all unutilized credits and exemptions, benefit of carried forward losses/ unabsorbed depreciation
and other statutory benefits, including in respect of income tax (including but not limited to tax deducted at source, tax
collected at source, advance tax, minimum alternate tax credit etc.), cenvat, customs, value added tax, sales tax, service
tax, goods and services tax etc. relating to the LSI Undertaking to which the Demerged Company is entitled to shall be
available to and vest in the Resulting Company, without any requirement of any further act or deed.

Upon the Effective Date, the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company are permitted to revise and file their
respective income tax returns, withholding tax returns, including tax deducted at source certificates, sales tax/value added
tax returns, service tax returns, GST returns and other tax returns for the period commencing on and from the Demerger
Appointed Date, and to claim refunds/credits, pursuant to the provisions of this Scheme.

Any refund under the tax laws due to the Demerged Company pertaining to the LSI Undertaking consequent to the
assessments made on the Demerged Company and for which no credit is taken in the accounts as on the date immediately
preceding the Demerger Appointed Date shall belong to and be received by the Resulting Company.

The transfer of Assets and Liabilities to, and the continuance of proceedings by or against, the Resulting Company as
envisaged in Part C of the Scheme shall not affect any transaction or proceedings already concluded by the Demerged
Company on or before the Demerger Appointed Date and after the Demerger Appointed Date till the effectiveness of
this Scheme, to the end and intent that the Resulting Company accepts and adopts all acts, deeds and things done and
executed by the Demerged Company in respect thereto as done and executed on behalf of itself.
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ii.

ii.

iv.

Vi.

That the Scheme of Arrangement is not intended, in any manner, to have any beneficial effect on the material interest,
if any, of the Directors of any of the Applicant Companies, except to the extent of their shareholdings, if any.

That the Scheme will not adversely affect the rights or interest of any creditor (whether secured or unsecured) of the
Applicant Companies or their respective shareholders, in any manner whatsoever.

That the Scheme of Arrangement does not involve any compromise with the creditors of any of the Applicant
Companies in any manner whatsoever. As such, the Scheme of Arrangement does not in any manner adversely affect

the interests of any of the creditors of the Applicant Companies. Due provisions have been made for payment of all

their liabilities as and when the same fall due in the usual course.

That the Auditors of the Applicant Companies have not disclosed any mismanagement in its affairs.

The Scheme is specifically conditional upon and subject to:-

a.

The approval of the Scheme by the respective requisite majority in number and value of the shareholders and/or
creditors (where applicable) of the Companies in accordance with Section 230-232 of the Companies Act, 2013;

The Scheme being sanctioned by the Tribunal in terms of Section 230-232, Section 66 and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013;

Certified copies of the order of the Tribunal sanctioning this Scheme being filed with the relevant Registrar of
Companies by Applicant Companies as per the provisions of the Act;

If any part of the Scheme is found to be unworkable or unviable for any reason whatsoever (subject to the
decision of the Board of Directors of the Companies), the same shall not affect the validity and implementation
of the other part/s and/or provision of the Scheme.

The Scheme provides for:-

@)

(ii)

(iif)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

amalgamation of HSB Corporate Consultants Private Limited, Jubilant Stock Holding Private Limited, SSB
Consultants & Management Services Private Limited, JCPL Life Science Ventures and Holdings Private Limited,
JSPL Life Science Services and Holdings Private Limited (Transferor Companies) with and into the Jubilant Life
Sciences Limited (Transferee Company);

dissolution without winding up of HSB Corporate Consultants Private Limited, Jubilant Stock Holding Private
Limited, SSB Consultants & Management Services Private Limited, JCPL Life Science Ventures and Holdings
Private Limited, JSPL Life Science Services and Holdings Private Limited (Transferor Companies); and

transfer of the authorized share capital from HSB Corporate Consultants Private Limited, Jubilant Stock
Holding Private Limited, SSB Consultants & Management Services Private Limited, JCPL Life Science Ventures
and Holdings Private Limited, JSPL Life Science Services and Holdings Private Limited (Transferor Companies)
to the Jubilant Life Sciences Limited (Transferee Company).

the demerger of the LSI Undertaking of the Jubilant Life Sciences Limited (Demerged Company) and vesting of
the same in the Jubilant LSI Limited (Resulting Company);

The name of Jubilant Life Sciences Limited (Demerged Company) shall be changed to “Jubilant Pharmaceuticals
Limited” or such other name as may be decided by the Board of Directors of the Demerged Company.

After the change at (v) above, the name of Jubilant LSI Limited (Resulting Company) shall be changed to
“Jubilant Life Sciences Limited” or such other name as may be decided by the Board of Directors of the Resulting
Company.

(vii) In addition, this Scheme also provides for various other matters consequential or otherwise integrally connected

herewith.
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12.

THE FEATURES SET OUT ABOVE BEING ONLY SALIENT FEATURES OF THE SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT,
THE SECURED CREDITORS OF THE APPLICANT COMPANY NO. 6/ TRANSFEREE COMPANY/DEMERGED
COMPANY ARE REQUESTED TO READ THE ENTIRE ARRANGEMENT TO GET THEMSELVES FULLY
ACQUAINTED WITH THE PROVISIONS THEREOF.

DIRECTORS, PROMOTERS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:
i)  The Scheme would not have any effect on the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Applicant Companies.

ii) As far as equity shareholders of the Transferee Company/ Demerged Company are concerned, pursuant to the Scheme,
all of them will get equity shares in the Resulting Company and there will be no change in the economic interest of any of
the equity shareholders of the Transferee Company/ Demerged Company pre and post Scheme.

iii) The details of the present Directors and the Key Managerial Personnel (KMPs) of the 7 Applicant Companies and

shareholding pattern is as follows:

As on date, list of Promoters and Directors of Transferor Company No. 1

Sr. No. | Name Promoter/ Director |Residential/ Registered Office Address
1 Mr. Takesh Mathur Director Flat no. 765, Pocket - E, Near Sanjay Park,
Mayur Vihar Phase II, Delhi - 110091
2 Mr. Sreenivasan Natarajan Director B-201, New MIG Flat, Mayur Vihar Phase - III,
East Delhi, Delhi- 110096
3 JSPL Life Science Services and Promoter Plot 1A, Sector 16A, Gautam Buddha Nagar,
Holdings Private Limited Noida-201 301, Uttar Pradesh, India.
CIN U74999UP2016PTC087691
4 Mr. Hari Shanker Bhartia Promoter 2, Amrita Shergill Marg, New Delhi - 110003,
(on behalf of JSPL Life Science India
Services and Holdings Private
Limited)

As on date, list of Promoters and Directors of Transferor Company No. 2

Sr. No. | Name Promoter/ Director |Residential/ Registered Office Address
1 Mr. Hari Shanker Bhartia Managing Director |2, Amrita Shergill Marg, New Delhi - 110003,
India
2 Mr. Priyavrat Bhartia Managing Director |19, Friends Colony (West), New Delhi - 110065,
India
3 Ms. Aashti Bhartia Whole Time Director |2, Amrita Shergill Marg, New Delhi - 110003,
India
4 Mr. Takesh Mathur Director Flat no. 765, Pocket - E, Near Sanjay Park,
Mayur Vihar Phase II, Delhi - 110091
5 Mr. Parveen Kumar Goyal Director G-203, Prateek Laurel, Sector - 120,
Noida - 201301, Uttar Pradesh
6 JCPL Life Science Ventures and Promoter Plot No. 1A, Sector-16A, Noida, Gautam Buddha
Holdings Private Limited Nagar, Uttar Pradesh - 201301.
CIN U74999UP2016PTC087833
7 JSPL Life Science Services and Promoter Plot No. 1A, Sector-16A, Noida, Gautam Buddha
Holdings Private Limited Nagar, Uttar Pradesh - 201301.
CIN U74999UP2016PTC087691
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As on date, list of Promoters and Directors of Transferor Company No. 3

behalf of JCPL Life Science
Ventures and Holdings Private
Limited),

Sr. No. | Name Promoter/ Director |Residential/ Registered Office Address
1 Mr. Shyam Sunder Bhartia Director 27 Claymore Road # 04-02, The Claymore,
Singapore 229544
2 Mr. Parveen Kumar Goyal Director G-203, Prateek Laurel, Sector - 120,
Noida - 201301, Uttar Pradesh
3. JCPL Life Science Ventures and Promoter Plot No. 1A, Sector-16A, Noida,
Holdings Private Limited Gautam Buddha Nagar, Uttar Pradesh - 201301.
CIN U74999UP2016PTC087833
4 Mr. Shyam Sunder Bhartia (on Promoter 27 Claymore Road # 04-02, The Claymore,

Singapore 229544

As on date, list of Promoters and Directors of Transferor Company No. 4

Sr. No. | Name Promoter/ Director |Residential/ Registered Office Address
1 Mr. Takesh Mathur Director Flat no. 765, Pocket - E, Near Sanjay Park,
Mayur Vihar Phase II, Delhi - 110091
2 Mr. Parveen Kumar Goyal Director G-203, Prateek Laurel, Sector - 120,
Noida - 201301, Uttar Pradesh
3 SPB Trustee Company Private Promoter Plot No.1A, Sector-16A, Noida, Gautam Buddha
Limited & SS Trustee Company Nagar, Uttar Pradesh 201301.
Private Limited
CIN U74120UP2013PTC054736
(Jointly on behalf of Shyam Sunder
Bhartia Family Trust)
4 Mr. Shyam Sunder Bhartia Promoter 27 Claymore Road # 04-02, The Claymore,
(on behalf of Shyam Sunder Bhartia Singapore 229544
Family Trust)

As on date, list of Promoters and Directors of Transferor Company No. 5

Sr. No. | Name Promoter/ Director |Residential/ Registered Office Address
1 Mr. Takesh Mathur Director Flat no. 765, Pocket - E, Near Sanjay Park,
Mayur Vihar Phase II,
Delhi - 110091
2 Mr. Parveen Kumar Goyal Director G-203, Prateek Laurel, Sector - 120,
Noida - 201301, Uttar Pradesh
3 HSB Trustee Company Private Promoter Plot No.1A, Sector-16A, Noida, Gautam
Limited & HS Trustee Company Buddha Nagar, Uttar Pradesh 201301.
Private Limited
CIN U74120UP2013PTC054727
(Jointly on behalf of Hari Shanker
Bhartia Family Trust)
4. Mr. Hari Shanker Bhartia (On Promoter 2, Amrita Shergill Marg, New Delhi - 110003,
behalf of Hari Shanker Bhartia India
Family Trust)
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As on date, list of Promoters and Directors of Transferee Company/Demerged Company

Sr. No.

Name

Promoter/ Director

Residential/ Registered Office Address

1.

Mr. Shyam Sunder Bhartia

Chairman and
Promoter

27 Claymore Road # 04-02, The Claymore,
Singapore 229544

Limited

2. Mr. Hari Shanker Bhartia Co-chairman and 2, Amrita Shergill Marg, New Delhi - 110003,
Managing Director India
and Promoter
3. Mr. S. Sridhar Director D-905, Ashok Towers, Dr. S.S. Rao Road, Parel,
Mumbai - 400012, India
4, Ms. Sudha Pillai Director D-241, 2nd Floor, Sarvodaya Enclave,
New Delhi - 110017, India
5. Dr. Ashok Misra Director 68, Adarsh Vista, Basavanagar,
Bangalore - 560037, India
6. Mr. Sushil Kumar Roongta Director D-91, The Pinnacle, DLF Phase-V, Opp.,
DLEF Golf Course Gurgaon - 122009,
Haryana, India
7. Mr. Vivek Mehra Director B-314 New Friends Colony New Delhi -110065,
India
8. Mr. Arun Seth Director A-7 Geetanjali Enclave, South Delhi,
New Delhi - 110017, India
9. Mr. Priyavrat Bhartia Director and Promoter |19, Friends Colony (West),
New Delhi - 110065, India
10. Mr. Arjun Shanker Bhartia Director 2, Amrita Shergill Marg,
New Delhi - 110003, India
11. Mr. Rajesh Kumar Srivastava Whole-time Director | Villa-7, ATS One Hamlet, Sector-104,
Noida-201304, Uttar Pradesh, India
12. Mr. Anant Pande Whole-time Director | A-3/610 Towers Silver City, Sector 93, Dadri,
Noida- 201304, Uttar Pradesh, India
13. Ms. Kavita Bhartia Promoter 2, Amrita Shergill Marg, New Delhi - 110003,
India
14. Mr. Shamit Bhartia Promoter 19, Friends Colony (West),
New Delhi — 110065, India
15. Jaytee Private Limited Promoter Plot No. 1A, Sector-16A, Noida - 201301,
Uttar Pradesh, India
16. Nikita Resources Private Limited | Promoter Plot No. 1A, Sector-16A, Noida - 201301,
Uttar Pradesh, India
17. VAM Holdings Limited Promoter Plot No. 1A, Sector-16A, Noida - 201301,
Uttar Pradesh, India
18. Jubilant Stock Holding Private Promoter Plot No. 1A, Sector-16A, Noida - 201301,
Limited Uttar Pradesh, India
19. HSB Corporate Consultants Private | Promoter Plot No. 1A, Sector-16A, Noida - 201301,

Uttar Pradesh, India
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Sr. No. | Name Promoter/ Director Residential/ Registered Office Address
20. SSB Consultants and Management | Promoter Plot No. 1A, Sector-16A, Noida - 201301,
Services Private Limited Uttar Pradesh, India
21. MAV Management Advisors LLP | Promoter Plot No. 1A, Sector-16A, Noida - 201301,
Uttar Pradesh, India
22. Jubilant Enpro Private Limited Promoter Plot No. 1A, Sector-16A, Noida - 201301,
Uttar Pradesh, India
23. Jubilant Consumer Private Limited | Promoter A-42, Sector-80, Noida, Gautam Buddha Nagar
- 201304, Uttar Pradesh, India
24, Jubilant Advisors LLP Promoter Plot No. 1A, Sector-16A, Noida - 201301,
Uttar Pradesh, India
25. Torino Overseas Limited Promoter 3rd Floor Geneva Place, Waterfront Drive P O
Box 3175, Road Town Tortola, British Virgin
Islands
26. Cumin Investments Limited Promoter 3rd Floor Geneva Place, Waterfront Drive P O
Box 3175, Road Town Tortola, British Virgin
Islands
27. Rance Investment Holdings Promoter 3rd Floor Geneva Place, Waterfront Drive P O
Limited Box 3175, Road Town Tortola, British Virgin
Islands
28. Miller Holdings Pte. Limited Promoter 27 Claymore Road # 04-02, The Claymore,

Singapore 229544

As on date, list of Promoters and Directors of Resulting Company

Sr. No. | Name Promoter/ Director | Residential/ Registered Office Address
1. Mr. Rajesh Kumar Srivastava Director Villa-7, ATS One Hamlet, Plot No.1, Sector-104,
Noida-201304, Uttar Pradesh
2. Mr. Anant Pande Director A-3/610 Tower-5, Silver City, Sector 93, Dadri,
Noida- 201304, Uttar Pradesh
3. Mr. Arun Kumar Sharma Director House No. 55 Shankar Vihar New Delhi-110092
4. Jubilant Life Sciences Limited Promoter Bhartiagram Gajraula, District Amroha-

244223, Uttar Pradesh

As on date, Shareholding Pattern of Transferor Company No. 1

Sr. No. Particulars Number of shares % holding
1 Promoter and Promoter Group

JSPL Life Science Services and Holdings Private Limited 9,999 99.99
Mr. Hari Shanker Bhartia 1 0.01
(on behalf of JSPL Life Science Services and Holdings Private
Limited)

2 Public - -
Total 10,000 100.00
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As on date, Shareholding Pattern of Transferor Company No. 2

Sr. No. Particulars Number of shares % holding
1 Promoter and Promoter Group
JCPL Life Science Ventures and Holdings Private Limited 5,000 50.00
JSPL Life Science Services and Holdings Private Limited 5,000 50.00
2 Public - -
Total 10,000 100.00
As on date, Shareholding Pattern of Transferor Company No. 3
Sr. No. Particulars Number of shares % holding
1 Promoter and Promoter Group
JCPL Life Science Ventures and Holdings Private Limited 9,999 99.99
Mr. Shyam Sunder Bhartia 1 0.01
(on behalf of JCPL Life Science Ventures and Holdings Private
Limited )
2 Public - -
Total 10,000 100.00
As on date, Shareholding Pattern of Transferor Company No. 4
Sr. No. Particulars Number of shares % holding
1 Promoter and Promoter Group
SPB Trustee Company Private Limited & SS Trustee Company 58,57,488 100.00
Private Limited (Jointly on behalf of Shyam Sunder Bhartia
Family Trust)
Mr. Shyam Sunder Bhartia (On behalf of Shyam Sunder Bhartia 1 0.00
Family Trust)
2 Public - -
Total 58,57,489 100.00
As on date, Shareholding Pattern of Transferor Company No. 5
Sr. No. Particulars Number of shares % holding
1 Promoter and Promoter Group
HSB Trustee Company Private Limited & HS Trustee Company 89,45,408 100.00
Private Limited (Jointly on behalf of Hari Shanker Bhartia
Family Trust)
Mr. Hari Shanker Bhartia (On behalf of Hari Shanker Bhartia 20 0.00
Family Trust)
2 Public - -
Total 89,45,428 100.00
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As on date, Shareholding Pattern of Transferee Company/Demerged Company

Sr. No. | Name of Shareholder No. of Equity Shares Shareholding
of face value of percentage
Re. 1 each

A. Promoter and Promoter Group

1 Mr. Shyam Sunder Bhartia 13,99,925 0.88
2 Mr. Hari Shanker Bhartia 3,60,885 0.23
3 Ms. Kavita Bhartia 10,285 0.01
4 Mr. Priyavrat Bhartia 3,085 0.00
5 Mr. Shamit Bhartia 1,29,245 0.08
6 Jaytee Private Limited 7,600 0.00
7 Nikita Resources Private Limited 35,04,540 2.20
8 Jubilant Stock Holding Private Limited 2,13,61,992 13.41
9 HSB Corporate Consultants Private Limited 1,92,78,979 12.10
10 SSB Consultants and Management Services Private Limited 2,15,87,665 13.55
11 MAV Management Advisors LLP 50,11,400 3.15
12 Jubilant Enpro Private Limited 28,31,000 1.78
13 Miller Holdings Pte. Limited 52,30,455 3.28
14 Jubilant Consumer Private Limited - 0.00
15 Jubilant Advisors LLP - 0.00
16 Torino Overseas Limited - 0.00
17 Cumin Investments Limited - 0.00
18 Rance Investment Holdings Limited - 0.00
19 VAM Holdings Limited - 0.00
Total (A) 8,07,17,056 50.68
B. Public Shareholding 7,85,64,083 49.32
Grand Total (A+B) 15,92,81,139 100.00

As on date, Shareholding Pattern of Resulting Company
Sr. No. | Name of Shareholder No. of Equity Shares Shareholding
of face value of percentage
Re. 1 each
1. Jubilant Life Sciences Limited 4,99,994 100.00
2. Jubilant Life Sciences Limited jointly with Mr. Mahesh Jain 1 0.00
3. Jubilant Life Sciences Limited jointly with Mr. Ambuj Jain 1 0.00
4. Jubilant Life Sciences Limited jointly with Mr. Arun Kumar 1 0.00
Sharma
5. Jubilant Life Sciences Limited jointly with Mr. Rajiv Shah 1 0.00
6. Jubilant Life Sciences Limited jointly with Mr. Rajesh Kumar 1 0.00
Srivastava

7. Jubilant Life Sciences Limited jointly with Mr. Ashwani Malhotra 1 0.00
Total 5,00,000 100.00
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14. GENERAL

a.  Therights and interests of the Equity Shareholders and Creditors of HSB Corporate Consultants Private Limited, Jubilant
Stock Holding Private Limited, SSB Consultants & Management Services Private Limited, JCPL Life Science Ventures and
Holdings Private Limited, JSPL Life Science Services and Holdings Private Limited, Jubilant Life Sciences Limited and
Jubilant LSI Limited will not be prejudicially affected by the Scheme as no sacrifice or waiver is, at all called from them
nor their rights sought to be modified in any manner.

b.  There are no winding up proceedings pending against the Applicant Companies as on date.

c.  The following additional documents will be open for inspection to the equity shareholders, unsecured creditors and
secured creditors (as may be applicable) of HSB Corporate Consultants Private Limited, Jubilant Stock Holding Private
Limited, SSB Consultants & Management Services Private Limited, JCPL Life Science Ventures and Holdings Private
Limited, JSPL Life Science Services and Holdings Private Limited, Jubilant Life Sciences Limited and Jubilant LSI Limited
at their registered offices between 11.00 am to 1.00 pm on all working days, except Saturday, Sunday and Public Holidays
upto the date of meeting:

i.  Papers and proceedings in Company Application No. 101/ALD/2020 including certified copy of the Order of the
Allahabad Bench of the National Company Law Tribunal in the said application directing the convening and holding
of the meetings of the secured creditors of the Applicant Company No. 6/ Transferee Company/Demerged Company;

ii. Memorandum and Article of Association of the Applicant Companies;

iii. Report on Share Exchange Ratio/Share Entitlement Ratio issued by B.B. & Associates, Chartered Accountant.

iv. Register of Directors and Shareholders of the Applicant Companies;

v.  Copies of the resolution passed by respective Board of Directors of the Applicant Companies approving the Scheme;

d. Tt is confirmed that a copy of the draft Scheme has been filed by the Transferor Companies, Transferee Company/
Demerged Company and the Resulting Company, respectively, with the Registrar of Companies, Uttar Pradesh pursuant
to Section 232(2)(b) of the Act.

e. Acopyofthe Scheme, Explanatory Statement and Form of Proxy may be obtained free of charge on any working day (except
Saturday, Sunday and Public Holidays) from the registered office of the Companies or from the office of its Advocate,
Rahul Agarwal, having office at Chamber No. 42, High Court OR 74/62, Lal Bahadur Shastri Marg, Allahabad-211001.

. This statement may be treated as an Explanatory Statement under Section 230 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule
6 of Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016 and Section 102 and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and corresponding Section 393 of the Companies Act, 1956 and other applicable
provisions of Companies Act, 1956.

FOR JUBILANT LIFE SCIENCES LIMITED

Sd/-
Dated:- June 25, 2020 Pradip Kumar
Place:-Allahabad Chairman appointed for the meeting
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Annexure - 4

Ref: NSE/LIST/22429 1l January 31, 2020

The Company Secretary
Jubilant Life Sciences Limited
Bhartiagram Gajraula,

District Amroha,

Uttar Pradesh - 244223

Kind Attn.: Mr. Rajiv Shah
Dear Sir,

Sub: Observation Letter for Draft Composite Scheme of Arrangement for Amalgamation
and Demerger involving Amalgamation of HSB Corporate Consultants Private Limited,
Jubilant Stock Holding Private Limited, SSB Consultants & Management Services Private
Limited, JCPL Life Science Ventures and Holdings Private Limited, JSPL Life Science
Services and Holdings Private Limited, Jubilant Life Sciences Limited and subsequently
Demerger of LSI Undertaking of Demerged Company into Jubilant LSI Limited and their
respective shareholders and creditors.

We are in receipt of Draft Composite Scheme of Arrangement (‘the Scheme’) for Amalgamation
and Demerger involving Amalgamation of HSB Corporate Consultants Private Limited
(Transferor Company 1), Jubilant Stock Holding Private Limited (Transferor Company 2), SSB
Consultants & Management Services Private Limited (Transferor Company 3), JCPL Life Science
Ventures and Holdings Private Limited (Transferor Company 4), JSPL Life Science Services and
Holdings Private Limited (Transferor Company 5), Jubilant Life Sciences Limited (Transferee
Company / Demerged Company) and subsequently Demerger of LSI Undertaking of Demerged
Company into Jubilant LSI Limited (Resulting Company) and their respective shareholders and
creditors vide application dated November 26, 2019.

Based on our letter reference no Ref: NSE/LIST/22429 submitted to SEBI and pursuant to SEBI
Circular No. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March 10, 2017 (‘Circular’), SEBI vide letter dated
January 30, 2020, has given following comments:

a. The Company shall ensure that a statement is inserted in the scheme by the Company that it
is in compliance with Minimum Public Shareholding (MPS) requirement on fully diluted basis.

b. The Company shall ensure that additional information and undertakings, if any, submitted by
the Company, after filing the Scheme with the Stock Exchange, and from the date of the receipt
of this letter is displayed on the website of the listed company.

¢. The Company shall duly comply with various provisions of the Circular.

d. The Company is advised that the observations of SEBI/Stock Exchanges shall be incorporated
in the petition to be filed before National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) and the company is
obliged to bring the observations to the notice of NCLT. sy

Signer: Rajendra P Bhosale
Date: Fri, Jan 31, 2020 19:31:39 IST
Location: NSE

Mational Stock Exchange of India Limited | Exchangs Plaza, C-1, Block G, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (E), Mumbsai— 400 051,
India +91 22 26598100 | www.nssindia.com | CIN Us7120MH1992PLC069TES
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e. The Company shall ensure that applicable information pertaining to unlisted companies - HSB
Corporate Consultants Private Limited, Jubilant Stock Holding Private Limited, SSB
Consultants & Management Services Private Limited, JCPL Life Science Ventures and
Holdings Private Limited, JSPL Life Science Services and Holdings Private Limited and
Jubilant LSI Limited are included in abridged prospectus as per specified format.

f. Itisto be noted that the petitions are filed by the company before NCLT after processing and
communication of comments/observations on draft scheme by SEBI/ stock exchange. Hence,
the company is not required to send notice for representation as mandated under section
230(5) of Companies Act, 2013 to SEBI again for its comments/observations/ representations.

It is to be noted that the petitions are filed by the company before NCLT after processing and
communication of comments/observations on draft scheme by SEBI/ stock exchange. Hence, the
company is not required to send notice for representation as mandated under section 230(5) of
Companies Act, 2013 to National Stock Exchange of India Limited again for its
comments/observations/ representations.

Based on the draft scheme and other documents submitted by the Company, including undertaking
given in terms of Regulation 11 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, we conveyed our “No-
objection” in terms of Regulation 94 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, so as to enable the
Company to file the draft scheme with NCLT.

However, the Exchange reserves its rights to raise objections at any stage if the information
submitted to the Exchange is found to be incomplete/ incorrect/ misleading/ false or for any
contravention of Rules, Bye-laws and Regulations of the Exchange, Listing Regulations,
Guidelines / Regulations issued by statutory authorities.

The validity of this “Observation Letter” shall be six months from January 31, 2020, within which
the scheme shall be submitted to NCLT.

Yours faithfully,
For National Stock Exchange of India Limited
Rajendra Bhosale

Manager

P.S. Checklist for all the Further Issues is available on website of the exchange at the following
URL http://www.nseindia.com/corporates/content/further _issues.htm

This Document is Digitally Signed

Signer: Rajendra P Bhosale
Date: Fri, Jan 31, 2020 19:31:39 IST
Location: NSE
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Annexure - 6

December 27, 2019

To,

The General Manager,
Department of Corporate Services,
BSE Limited,

P.J. Towers, Dalal Street,

Mumbai - 400 001

Dear Madam and Sir,

Subiect: Application as pber Resulation 37 SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure

Corporate Consultants Private Limited Company 1). Jubilant Stock Holding

With reference to the above captioned subject, we wish to inform that that the documents of the
Scheme were disseminated on the portal of BSE Limited on December 4, 2019. As per Para 6 of
Annexure-I of the SEBI Circular no. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March 10,2017, the Company
shall upload the Report on Complaints within 7 days on expiry of 21 days from the dissemination
of documents required to be submitted under Regulation 37 of the SEBI Listing Regulations which
expired on December 25, 2019. We are hereby submitting the Report for your kind perusal.

We request you to take the same on record.
Thanking You,

Yours Faithfully,
For Jubilant Life Sciences

L. RMh

Company Secretary

A Jubilant Bhartia Company

OUR VALUES
Jubilant Life Sciences Limited Regd Office:
1-A, Sector 16-A, Bhartiagram, Gajraula
Noida-201 301, UP, India Distt Amroha - 244 223,
Tel:+91 120 4361000 UP India
Fax:+91 120 4234895-96 CIN : L24116UP1978PLC004624

www.jubl.com
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REPORT ON COMPLAINTS

PART A
Sr. No. Particulars Number
1 Number of complaints received directly Nil
2. Number of complaints forwarded by Stock Exchanges/ SEBI Nil
3 Total Number of complaints/comments received (1+2) Nil
4 Number of complaints resolved Not Applicable
5 Number of complaints pending Not Applicable
PART B
Sr. No. Name of complainant Date of complaint Status
(Resolved/Pending)
1 Not Applicable
Thanking You,
Yours Faithfully,

For Jubilant Life Sciences Limited

Shah
Company Secretary

Date: December 27, 2019
Place: Noida
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Annexure - 7

January 6, 2020

To,

Manager - Listing Compliance

National Stock Exchange of India Limited
‘Exchange Plaza’

C-1, Block G,

Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (E),
Mumbai - 400 051

Dear Madam and Sirs,

Quhiget: A ication under Remlatinn 27 of tha QERT (Tictina Nhlaatinne and Disclo

Reauirements) Regulations. 2015 (hereinafter to as ‘SEBI Listing Regulations’) for the
of obtain  ‘No-Ob Scheme of

amongst HSB Corporate Consultants Private Limited (Transferor Companv 1). Jubilant Stock

Holding Private Limited (Transferor Company 2). SSB Consultants & Management Services

Private Limited Company 3). JCPL Life Science Ventures and Holdings Private

Limited (Transferor C  panv 4)., JSPL Life Science Services and Holdings Private Limited

Companv) and Jubilant LSI Limited (Resulting Company) (‘Scheme’) under Section 230 to 232

With reference to the above captioned subject, we wish to inform that that the documents of the
Scheme were disseminated on the portal of National Stock Exchange of India Limited on
December 13,2019. As per Para 6 of Annexure-I of the SEBI Circular no. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21
dated March 10, 2017, the Company shall upload the Report on Complaints within 7 days on
expiry of 21 days from the dissemination of documents required to be submitted under Regulation
37 of the SEBI Listing Regulations which expired on January 3, 2020. We are hereby submitting
the Report for your kind perusal.

We request you to take the same on record.
Thanking You,

Yours Faithfully,
For Jubilant Life Sciences Limited

R -
Company Secretary

A Jubilant Bhartia Company

OUR VAWES
Jubilant Life Sciences Limited Regd Office:
1-A, Sector 16-A, Bhartiagram, Gajraula
Noida-201 301, UP, India Distt. Amroha - 244 223,
Tel:+91 120 4361000 UR India
Fax:+91 120 4234895-96 CIN : L24116UP1978PLC004624

www.jubl.com
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REPORT ON COMPLAINTS

PART A
Sr. No. Particulars
1 Number of complaints received directly

[\*

Numbet of complaints forwarded by Stock Lixchanges/ SEBI

3 Total Number of complaints/comments received (1+2)
4 Number of complaints resolved
5 Number of complaints pending
PART B
Sr. No. Name of Complainant Date of Complaint
1 Not Applicable ,_
Thanking You,
Yours Faithfully,

For Jubilant Life Sciences

oS
w} ‘;_
. Rajiv-Shah

Company Secretary

Date: January 6, 2020
Place: Noida
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Number
Nil
Nil
Nil
Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Status
(Resolved/Pending)



REPORT ADOPTED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF JUBILANT LIFE SCIENCES
LIMITED IN ACCORDANCE

1. Background

1.1 The proposed composite scheme of arrangement (“Scheme”) between Jubilant Life Sciences
Limited (“Company” or “JLL”), IISB Corporate Consultants Private Limited (“HSBPL™),
Jubilant Stock Holding Private Limited (“JSHPL™), SSB Consultants & Management Scrvices
Private Limited (“SSBPL”), JCPL Lile Science Ventures and Holdings Private Limited
(“JCPLPL”), JSPL Life Science Services and Holdings Private Limited (“JSPLPL”) (HSBPL,
JSHPL, SSBPL, JCPLPL and JSPLPL hereafter are collectively, the “Transferor Companies™)
and Jubilant LSI Limited (“Resulting Company” or “JLSI”) and their respective shareholders and
creditors under Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
(“Act”) for the amalgamation of the Transferor Companies into the Company (“Amalgamations™)
followed by the demerger of the life science ingredients business undertaking of the Company into
the Resulting Company, on a going concern basis (“Demerger”), was approved by the Board of
Directors of the Company (“Board”) pursuant to resolution dated October 25, 2019.

1.2 The provisions of Section 232(2)(c) of the Act require the Directors of the Company to adopt a
report explaining the effect of the arrangement pursuant to the Scheme on each class of
shareholders, key managerial personnel, promoters and non-promoter shareholders of the Company
and setting out, in particular, the share exchange ratio and specifying any special valuation
difficulties. Such report is required to be circulated to the shareholders and/ or creditors of the
Company, together with the notice(s) of the meeting(s) of the shareholders and/ or creditors of the
Company, if applicable.

1.3 Accordingly, this report of the Board is being made in pursuance of the requirement of Section
232(2)(c) of the Act and in this connection, the following documents were, inter alia, presented/
placed before the Board:

i) the Scheme as approved by the Board pursuant to resolution dated October 25, 2019;

(ii) the report dated October 23, 2019 issued by B.B. & Associates, Chartered Accountants
recommending the share exchange ratios for the proposed Amalgamations and the share
entitlement ratio for the Demerger (“Share Exchange/ Entitlement Report”);

(iii)  the addendum dated November 22, 2019 issued by B.B. & Associates, Chartered
Accounlants o the Share Exchange/ Entitlement Report (“Addendum to the Share
Exchange/ Entitlement Report”);

(iv)  the fairness opinion dated October 23, 2019 issued by Ernst & Young Merchant Banking
Services LLP, a SEBI registered merchant banker on the share exchange ratios for the
proposed Amalgamations and the share entitlement ratio for the Demerger (“Fairness
Opinion”); and

v) the addendum dated November 22, 2019 issued by Ernst & Young Merchant Banking
Services LLP, a SEBI registered merchant banker to the Fairness Opinion (“Addendum
to the Fairness Opinion”).
A Jubilant Bhartia Company

OUR VALUES
Jubilant Life Sciences Limited Regd Office:
1-A, Sector 16-A, Bhartiagram, Gajraula
Noida-201 301, UP, India Distt. Amiohia - 244 223,
Tel:+91 120 4361000 UP India

Fax:+91 120 4234895-96 CIN : L24116UP1978PLC004624
www.jubl.com Rr
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Disclosure a t the effect of the Scheme on following nersons in relation to the Comnanv

1 Employees / Key Managerial Personnel of the Company
Under the Scheme, no rights of the staff and employees of the Company are being
affected.

Further, the key managerial personnel (“KMP”) of the Company shall continue as
the KMPs of the Company upon the Effective Date. Please refer to S. No. 3 below
for details regarding the effect of the Scheme on such KMPs of the Company who
are also shareholders of the Company. Other than the aforesaid, the KMPs of the
Company are not affected pursuant to the Scheme.

It may be noted that in terms of Clause 6.3 of Part C of the Scheme, the existing
provident fund, employee state insurance contribution, gratuity fund, superannuation
fund, the staff welfare scheme and any other schemes or benefits created by the
Company for the employees of the LSI Undertaking, shall be continued on the same
terms and conditions and shall be transferred to the existing provident fund, employee
state insurance contribution, gratuity fund, superannuation fund, staff welfare scheme,
etc., being maintained by the Resulting Company without any requirement of any
separate act or deed/approval. In relation to the employees of the LSI Undertaking, for
whom the Company is making contributions to the government provident fund, the
Resulting Company shall stand substituted for the Company, for all purposes
whatsoever, including relating to the obligation to make contributions to the said fund
in accordance with the provisions of such fund, bye laws, etc. in respect of such
employees.

Further, in terms of Clause 6.4 of Part C of the Scheme, notwithstanding the provisions
of Clauses 6.2 and 6.3 of the Scheme, it is clarified that the assets of the Jubilant
Employee Welfare Trust (“JEWT”), an existing trust administering welfare benefit
schemes for the benefit of the employees of the Company and its group companies,
shall be appropriately split and apportioned on the basis of the remuneration of the
employees (General Manager and above) pertaining to the LSI Undertaking being
transferred and a portion of the funds from the JEWT along with the underlying
obligations in relation to employees transferred to the Resulting Company shall be
transferred to an employee welfare trust to be created by the Resulting Company and
such employee welfare trust created by the Resulting Company shall administer the
employee benefit schemes for the employees of the Resulting Company (including
those employees of the Company pertaining to the LSI Undertaking transferred to the
Resulting Company pursuant to the demerger contemplated under Part D of the
Scheme) by utilizing the funds transferred from the JEWT.

2 Directors of the
The Directors on the Board shall continue as the Directors upon the Effective Date.
3 sharcholders;: Promoters and non- shareholders of the

It may be noted that in terms of the Scheme, the shareholders of the Transferor

Sci
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Companies would be issued shares by the Company in the proportion of 1:1, that is, the
shareholders of the Transferor Companies shall finally be issued an equal number of
shares of the Company as held by the Transferor Companies (in the Company) as on
the Merger Record Date. More specifically:

(i) As part of the Scheme; the same number of shares held by the HSBPL, JSHPL
and SSBPL in the Company shall be issued to their shareholders (i.e., JCPLPL
and JSPLPL).

(ii) Post issue of the shares to the sharecholders of HSBPL, JSHPL and SSBPL (i.c.,
JCPLPL and JSPLPL), the said shares would be cancelled and the shareholders of
JCPLPL and JSPLPL would be issued an equal number of shares by the Company
(in the proportion in which JCPLPL and JSPLPL hold sharcs in the Company).

Consequently, as also mentioned in the Scheme, upon the implementation of the
Scheme, there would neither be any change in the number of shares nor in the
percentage shareholding of the promoters and promoter group on an aggregate basis in
the Company pursuant to the Amalgamations contemplated under Part B of the Scheme.

(M)

HSBPL is a wholly-owned subsidiary of JSPLPL. Further, HSBPL holds 12.10% of the
paid-up equity share capital of the Company.

In terms of Clause 10.2.1(i) of Part B of the Scheme, upon the Effective Date: (a)
the equity shares of the Company held by HSBPL; and (b) the equity shares of HSBPL
(a wholly owned subsidiary of JSPLPL) held by JSPLPL, shall be automatically
cancelled and be of no effect on and from the Effective Date. Simultaneously and
concurrent with such canccllation, the Company shall issue and allot the Merger Shares
(as defined under Clause 1.18 of Part A of the Scheme) such that for 1,92,78,979 (One
Crore Ninety Two Lakh Seventy Eight Thousand Nine Hundred and Seventy Nine
only) fully paid-up equity shares of Re. 1/- each of the Company held by HSBPL as on
the Merger Record Date (as defined under Clause 1.16 of Part A of the Scheme),
1,92,78,979 (One Crore Ninety Two Lakh Seventy Eight Thousand Nine Hundred and
Seventy Nine only) Merger Shares shall be issued and allotted by the Company, free
from all liens, charges, cquitable intercsts, encumbrances and other third party rights of
any nature whatsoever, to each shareholder of HSBPL whose name is recorded in the
register of members of HSBPL as holding shares as of the Merger Record Date.

(if)

The equity shares of JSHPL are held by JCPLPL and JSPLPL in a 50:50 ratio. Further,
JSHPL holds 13.41% of the paid-up equity share capital of the Company.

In terms of Clause 10.2.1(ii) of Part B of the Scheme, upon the Effective Date: (a)
the equity shares of the Company held by JSHPL; (b) the equity shares of JSHPL held
by JCPLPL; and (c) the equity shares of JSHPL held by JSPLPL, shall be automatically
cancelled and he of no effect on and from the Effective Date. Simultaneously and
concurrent with such cancellation, the Company shall issue and allot the Merger Shares
(as defined under Clause 1.18 of Part A of the Scheme) such that for 2,13,61,992 (Two
Crore Thirteen Lakh Sixty One Thousand Ninc Hundred and Ninety Two only) fully

SCi

Y
P
]

160



paid-up equity shares of Re. 1/- each of the Company held by JSHPL as on the Merger
Record Date (as defined under Clause 1.16 of Part A of the Scheme), 2,13,61,992 (Two
Crore Thirteen Lakh Sixty One Thousand Nine Hundred and Ninety Two only) Merger
Shares shall be issued and allotted by the Company, free from all liens, charges,
equitable interests, encumbrances and other third party rights of any nature whatsoever,
to each sharcholder of JSHPL whose name is recorded in the register of members of
JSHPL as holding shares as of the Merger Record Dale.

(iif)

SSBPL is a wholly-owned subsidiary of JCPLPL. Further, SSBPL holds 13.55% of the
paid-up equity share capital of the Company.

In terms of Clause 10.2.1(iii) of Part B of the Scheme, upon the Effective Date: (a)
the equity shares of the Company held by SSBPL; and (b) the equity shares of SSBPL
(a wholly owned subsidiary of JCPLPL) held by JCPLPL, shall be automatically
cancelled and be of no effect on and from the Effective Date. Simultaneously and
concurrent with such cancellation, the Company shall issue and allot the Merger Shares
(as defined under Clause 1.18 of Part A of the Scheme) such that for 2,15,87,665 (Two
Crore Fifteen Lakh FEighty Seven Thousand Six Hundred and Sixty Five only) fully
paid-up equity shares of Re. 1/- each of the Company held by SSBPL as on the Merger
Record Date (as defined under Clause 1.16 of Part A of the Scheme), 2,15,87,665 (Two
Crore Fifteen Lakh Eighty Seven Thousand Six Hundred and Sixty Five only) Merger
Shares shall be issued and allotted by the Company, free from all liens, charges,
equitable interests, encumbrances and other third party rights of any nature whatsoever,
to each shareholder of SSBPL whose name is recorded in the register of members of
SSBPL as holding shares as of the Merger Record Date.

Further, in terms of Clause 10.2.1(iv) of Part B of the Scheme, in the event HSBPL,
JSHPL and/ or SSBPL acquire(s) any additional shares of the Company, without
incurring any additional liability, or there occurs a reduction in the existing
shareholding of HSBPL, JSHPL and/ or SSBPL in the Company, for any reason,
whatsoever, as on the Effective Date, such additional/ reduced number of equity
shares of the Company, as may be held by HSBPL, JSHPL and/ or SSBPL in the
Company as on the Effective Date, shall be issued and allotted to JCPLPL and/ or
JSPLPL, respectively.

(iv)

JCPLPL is a wholly-owned subsidiary of SPB Trustee Company Private Limited and
SS Trustee Company Private Limited on behalf of Shyam Sunder Bhartia Family Trust.
Further, JCPLPL holds 100% of the paid-up equity share capital of SSBPL, which in
turn, holds 13.55% of the paid-up equity share capital of the Company.

In terms of Clause 10.2.2(i) of Part B of the Scheme, upon the Effective Date, the
shares of the Company held by JCPLPL shall be automatically cancelled and be of no
effect on and from the Effective Date. Simultaneously and concurrent with such
cancellation, the Company shall issue and allot the Merger Shares (as defined under
Clause 1.18 of Part A of the Scheme) such that for 3,22,68,661 (Three Crore Twenty
Two Lakh Sixty Eight Thousand Six Hundred and Sixty One only) fully paid-up equity

shares of Re. /- each of the held  JCPLPL as on the Record Date
Sci
c
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(as defined under Clause 1.16 of Part A of the Scheme), 3,22,68,661 (Three Crore
Twenty Two Lakh Sixty Eight Thousand Six Hundred and Sixty One only) Merger
Shares shall be issued and allotted by the Company, free from all liens, charges,
equitable interests, encumbrances and other third party rights of any nature whatsoever,
to each shareholder of JCPLPL whose name is recorded in the register of members of
JCPLPL as holding shares as ot the Merger Record Date.

™

JSPLPL is a wholly-owned subsidiary of HSB Trustee Company Private Limited and
HS Trustee Company Private Limited on behalf of Hari Shanker Bhartia Family Trust.
Further, JSPLPL holds 100% of the paid-up equity share capital of HSBPI,, which in
turn, holds 12.10% of the paid-up equity share capital of the Company.

In terms of Clause 10.2.2(ii) of Part B of the Scheme, upon the Effective Date, the
shares of the Company held by JSPLPL shall be automatically cancelled and be of no
effect on and from the Effective Date. Simultaneously and concurrent with such
cancellation, the Company shall, issue and allot the Merger Shares (as defined under
Clause 1.18 of Part A of the Scheme) such that for 2,99,59,975 (Two Crore Ninety Nine
Lakh Fifty Nine Thousand Nine Hundred and Seventy Five only) fully paid-up equity
shares of Re. 1/- each of the Company held by JSPLPL as on the Merger Record Date
(as defined under Clause 1.16 of Part A of the Scheme), 2,99,59,975 (Two Crore Ninety
Nine Lakh Fifty Nine Thousand Nine Hundred and Seventy Five only) Merger Shares
shall be issued and allotted by the Company, free from all liens, charges, equitable
interests, encumbrances and other third party rights of any nature whatsoever, to each
shareholder of JSPLPL whose name is recorded in the register of members of the
JSPLPL as holding shares as of the Merger Record Date.

Further, in terms of Clause 10.2.2(iii) of Part B of the Scheme, in the event JCPLPL
and/ or JSPLPL acquire(s) any additional shares of the Company (either on account
of the amalgamation of HSBPL, JSHPL and/ or SSBPL or on account of new
purchase of equity shares of the Company), without incurring any additional
liability, or there occurs a reduction in the existing shareholding of JCPLPL and/
or JSPLPL in the Company, for any reason, whatsoever, as on the Effective Date,
such additional/ reduced number of equity shares of the Company, as may be held
by JCPLPL and/ or JSPLPL in the Company as on the Effective Date, shall be
issued and allotted to the shareholders of JCPLPL and/ or JSPLPL, respectively.

Demerger

The Resulting Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company.

In terms of Clause 11.2 of Part C of the Scheme, upon the Effective Date, the shares of
the Resulting Company held by the Company shall be automatically cancelled and be
of no effect on and from the Effective Date. Simultaneously and concurrent with such
cancellation, the Resulting Company shall, issue and allot the Demerger Shares (as
defined under Clause 1.9 of Part A of the Scheme) such that for every | (One only)
fully paid-up equity shares of Re. 1/- (Rupee One only) each of the Company held by
the shareholders of the Company as on the Demerger Record Date (as defined under
Clause 1.8 of Part A of the Scheme), 1 (One only) Demerger Shares shall be issued and
allotted by the Resulting Company, free from all liens, charges, equitable interests,

-
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3.1

encumbrances and other third party rights of any nature whatsoever, to each shareholder
of the Company whose name is recorded in the register of members of the Company as
holding shares as of the Demerger Record Date. Provided however that, the number of
Demerger Shares will be equitably adjusted to reflect appropriately the effect of any
share split, reverse share split, dividend, including any extra-ordinary cash dividend,
reorganization, recapitalization, reclassification, combination, exchange of shares, or
other like change with respect to the Resulting Company’s shares on the books of the
Resulting Company as on the Demerger Record Date.

Further, the Demerger Shares to be issued by the Resulting Company, in terms of
Clausc 11.2 will, subject to approval/ cxemption from SEBI, be listed and/or admitted
to trading on the Stock Exchanges where the equity shares of the Company are listed
and/or admitted to trading in terms of Rule 19(7) of the Securities Contract (Regulation)
Rules, 1957 and other applicable rules/ regulations.

Share Exchange/ Entitlement

The Share Exchange/ Entitlement Report read with the Addendum to the Share Exchange/
Entitlement Report recommends share exchange ratios for the proposed Amalgamations and the
share entitlement ratio for the Demerger as under:

“A of HSBPI.. JSHPL and PL into JLI as in Part B of the Scheme

“1 fully paid equity share of face value of INR 1/- each of JLL to be issued to shareholders of
HSBPL, JSHPL & SSBPL for every 1 fully paid up equity share of face value of INR 1/- each of
JLL held by HSBPL, JSHPL & SSBPL respectively.”

As the number of JLL shares held inter se by HSBPL, JSHPL and SSBPL as of November 20,
2019 have undergone a change, the cancellation and allotment of JLL shares to the
shareholders of HSBPL, JSHPL and SSBPL would be as under.

“1,92,78,979 fully paid up equity shares of face value of INR 1/- each of JLL to be issued to
shareholders of HSBPL for 1,92,78,979 fully paid up equity shares of face value of INR 1/- each
of JLL held by HSBPL.

2,13,61,992 fully paid up equity shares of face value of INR 1/- each of JLL fo be issued to
shareholders of JSSHPL for 2,13,61,992 fully paid up equity shares of face value of INR 1/- each of
JLL held by JSHPL.

2,15,87,665 fully paid up equity shares of face value of INR 1/- each of JLL to be issued to
shareholders of SSBPL for 2,15,87,665 fully paid up equity shares of face value of INR 1/- each of
JLL held by SSBPL.

As stated in our report dated October 23, 2019 and in the Composite Scheme of Arrangement
(Scheme), in the event HSBPL, JSHPL and/ or SSBPL acquire(s) any additional equity shares
of JLL, without incurring any additional liability, or there occurs a reduction in the existing
shareholding of HSBPL, JSHPL and/ or SSBPL in JLL, for any reason, whatsoever, as on the
Effective Date, such additional/ reduced number of equity shares of JLL, as may be held by
HSBPL, JSHPL and/ or SSBPL in JLL as on the Effective Date, shall be issued and allotted to
JSPLPL and/ or JCPLPL, respectively.”

\-
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JCPLPL and JSPLP the Scheme

“1 fully paid equity share of face value of INR 1/- each of JLL to be issued to shareholders of
JCPLPL and JSPLPL for every 1 fully paid up equity share of face value of INR 1/- each of JLL
held by JCPLPL & JSPLPL respectively.”

In view of above share exchange ratio and based on number of JLL shares held by JCPLPL &
JSPLPL post amalgamation of HSBPL, JSHPL & SSBPL into JLL, this results in cancellation and
allotment of JLL shares as follows:-

“3,22,68,661 fully paid up equity shares of fuce value of INR 1/- each of JLL to be issued to
shareholders of JCPLPL for 3,22,68,661 fully paid up equity shares of face value of INR 1/- each
of JLL (v be held by JCPLPL post amalgamation of SSBPL & JSIIL.

“2,99,59,975 fully paid up equity shares of face value of INR 1/- each of JLL to be issued to
shareholders of JSPLPL for 2,99,59,975 fully paid up equity shares of face value of INR 1/- each
of JLL to be held by JSPLPL post amalgamation of JSHPL & HSBPL.

As stated in our report dated October 23, 2019 and in the Scheme, in the event JSPLPL and/ or
JCPLPL acquire(s) any ‘additional equity shares’ of JLL (either on account of amalgamation of
HSBPL, SSBPL and JSHPL under Part B of the Scheme or on account of new purchase of equity
shares of JLL), without incurring any additional liability, ov there occurs a reduction in the
shareholding of JSPLPL and/ or JCPLPL in JLL, for any reason, whatsoever, as on the effective
date, such additional/reduced number of equity shares of JLL, as may be held by JSPLPL and/ or
JCPLPL inJLL as on the effective date shall be issued and allotted to the shareholders of JSPLPL
and/ or JCPLPL, respectively.”

the Scheme

“I(one) fully paid up equity share of face value of INR 1/- each of JLSI for every 1 (one) fully
paid equity share of face value of INR 1/- each held in JLL.””

32 The Fairness Opinion and the Addendum to the Fairness Opinion have been issued in respect of the
Share Exchange/ Entitlement Report and the Addendum to the Share Exchange/ Entitlement
Report, respectively. No special valuation difficulties were reported by the valuers.
4, Adoption of the Report by the Board of Directors
4.1 The Board has adopted this report after noting and considering the information set forth in this
report.
Certified True Copy
For Life Sciences Limited
Sci
Shah
Company Secretary - -
Date: November 25, 2019
Place: Noida
*
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Tel.:+91 120 4361000. Fax: +91 0120 4234881, Email:

S COR O ATECO S LTA TS VA EL TED

Regd. Office: Plot No. 1A, Sector 16A, Noida-201301, UP, INDIA

REPORT ADOPTED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF HSB CORPORATE

CONSUL TE LIMITED IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 232(2%(C) OF THE
1. Background

1.2

1.3

The proposed composite scheme of arrangement (“Scheme™) between HSB Corporate Consultants
Private Limited (“Company” or “HSBPL”), Jubilant Stock Holding Private Limited (“JSHPL"),
SSB Consultants & Management Services Private Limited (“SSBPL”), JCPL Life Science
Ventures and Holdings Private Limited (“JCPLPL”), JSPL Life Science Services and Holdings
Private Limited (“JSPLPL”) (together, the “Transferor Companies”), Jubilant Life Sciences
Limited (“Transferee Company” or “Demerged Company” or “JLL”) and Jubilant LSI Limited
(“Resulting Company”) and their respective shareholders and creditors under Sections 230 to 232
and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) for the amalgamation of the
Transferor Companies into the Transferee Company (“Amalgamations”) followed by the
demerger of the life science ingredients business undertaking of the Demerged Company into the
Resulting Company, on a going concern basis (“Demerger”), was approved by the board of
directors of the Company (“Board”) pursuant to resolution dated 23'* October, 2019.

The provisions of Section 232(2)(c) of the Act require the directors of the Company to adopt a
report explaining the effect of the arrangement pursuant to the Scheme on each class of
shareholders, key managerial personnel, promoters and non-promoter shareholders of the Company
and setting out, in particular, the share exchange ratio, specifying any special valuation difficulties.
Such report is required to be circulated to the shareholders and/ or creditors of the Company,
together with the notice(s) of the meeting(s) of the shareholders and/ or creditors of the Company,
if applicable.

Accordingly, this report of the Board is being made in pursuance of the requirement of Section
232(2)(c) of the Act and in this connection, the following documents were presented/ placed before
the Board:

) the Scheme as approved by the Board pursuant to resolution dated 23' October, 2019;
(i) the report dated October 23, 2019 issued by B.B. & Associates, Chartered Accountants

recommending the share exchange ratios for the proposed Amalgamations and the share
cntitlement ratio for the Demerger (“Share Exchange/ Entitlement Report”); and

(itiy  the addendum dated November 22, 2019 issued by B.B. & Associutes, Churlered
Accountants to the Share Exchange/ Entitlement Report (“Addendum to the Share
Exchange/ Entitlement Report”).

Disclosure about the effect of the Scheme on th

S.No. EFFECT OF THE SCHEME ON
1 Employees / Key Managerial In terms of Clause 5.1 of Part B of the
Personnel of the Company Scheme, upon the Effective Date (as defined

under Clause 1.10 of Part A of the Scheme),
the employees of the Company as on the

165

Annexure - 9

, CIN: U74120UP2013PTC054821



Directors of the Company

Equity shareholders: Promoters of
the Company

Equity shareholders: Non-
promoter sharcholders of the
Company
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Effective Date, if any, shall be deemed to
have become employees of the Transferee
Company, without any interruption of
service and on the basis of continuity of
service and terms and conditions no less
favourable than those applicable to them
with reference to the Company on the
Effective Date. The services of such
employees, if any, with the Company up to
the Effective Date shall be taken into
account for the purposes of all benefits to
which the employees, if any, may be eligible
under applicable law.

Further, in terms of Clause 5.2 of Part B of
the Scheme, upon the Effective Date, all
contributions to funds and schemes in
respect of provident fund, employee state
insurance  contribution, gratuity fund,
superannuation fund, staff welfare scheme
or any other special schemes or benefits
created or existing for the benefit of the
employees of the Company as on the Merger
Appointed Date (as defined under Clause
1.15 of Part A of the Scheme), if any, shall
be made by the Transferee Company in
accordance with the provisions of such
schemes or funds and applicable law.

Moreover, in terms of Clause 12 of Part B
of the Scheme, upon the Effective Date,
the Company shall stand dissolved
without being wound up. In these
circumstances, the key managerial
personnel (“KMP”) of the Company will
cease to be the KMPs of the Com

In terms of Clause 12 of Part B of the
Scheme, upon the Effective Date, the
Company shall stand dissolved without
being wound up and accordingly, the Board
shall cease to exist.

The Company is a wholly-owned subsidiary
of JSPLPL. Further, the Company holds
12.10% of the paid-up equity share capital of
the Transferee Company.

It may be noted that in terms of the Scheme,
the shareholders of the Transferor

Com es would be issued shares the
Pl
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Transferee Company in the proportion of
1:1, that is, the shareholders of the
Transferor Companies shall finally be issued
an equal number of shares of the Transferee
Company as held by the Transferor
Companies (in the Transferee Company) as
on the Merger Record Date. More
specifically:

(i) As part of the Scheme, the same
number of shares held by the Company,
JSHPL and SSBPL in the Transferee
Company shall be issued to their
shareholders  (i.e., JCPLPL and
JSPLPL).

(ii) Post issue of the shares to the
shareholders of the Company, JSHPL
and SSBPL (i.e, JCPLPL and
JSPLPL), the said shares would be
cancelled and the shareholders of
JCPLPL and JSPLPL would be issued
an equal number of shares by the
Transferee Company (in the proportion
in which JCPLPL and JSPLPL hold
shares in the Transferee Company).

Consequently, as also mentioned in the
Scheme, upon the implementation of the
Scheme, there would neither be any change
in the number of shares nor in the percentage
shareholding of the promoters and promoter
group on an aggregate basis in the Transferee
Company pursuant to the Amalgamations
contemplated under Part B of the Scheme.

Further, in terms of Clause 10.2.1(i) of Part
B of the Scheme, upon the Effective Date:
(a) the equity shares of the Transferee
Company held by the Company; and (b) the
equity shares of the Company (a wholly
owned subsidiary of JSPLPL) held by
JSPLPL, shall be automatically cancelled
and be of no effect on and from the Effective
Date. Simultaneously and concurrent with
such cancellation, the Transferee Company
shall, issue and allot the Merger Shares (as
defined under Clause 1.18 of Part A of the
Scheme) such that for 1,92,78,979 (One
Crore Ninety Two Lakh Seventy Eight
Thousand Nine Hundred and Nine



3.1

3.2

only) fully paid-up equity shares of Re. 1/-
each of the Transferee Company held by the
Company as on the Merger Record Date (as
defined under Clause 1.16 of Part A of the
Scheme), 1,92,78,979 (One Crore Ninety
Two Lakh Seventy Eight Thousand Nine
Hundred and Seventy Nine only) Merger
Shares shall be issued and allotted by the
Transferee Company, free from all liens,
charges, equitable interests, encumbrances
and other third party rights of any nature
whatsoever, to each shareholder of the
Company whose name is recorded in the
register of members of the Company as
holding shares as of the Merger Record Date.

Moreover, in terms of Clause 10.2.1(iv) of
Part B of the Scheme, in the event the
Company acquires any additional shares of
the Transferee Company, without
incurring any additional liability, or there
occurs a reduction in the existing
shareholding of the Company in the
Transferee Company, for any reason,
whatsoever, as on the Effective Date, such
additional/ reduced number of equity
shares of the Transferee Company, as may
be held by the Company in the Transferee
Company as on the Effective Date, shall be
issued and allotted to JSPLPL.

Share Exchange/ Entitlement

The Share Exchange/ Entitlement Report read with the Addendum to the Share Exchange/
Entitlement Report recommends a share exchange ratio for the proposed amalgamation of the
Company into the Transfercc Company as under:

“1,92,78,979 fully paid up equity shares of face value of INR 1/- each of JLL to be issued to
shareholders of HSBPL for 1,92,78,979 fully paid up equity shares of face value of INR 1/- each of
JLL held by HSBPL.

As stated in our report dated October 23, 2019 and in the Composite Scheme of Arrangement
(Scheme), in the event HSBPL, JSHPL and/ or SSBPL acquire(s) any additional equity shares of
JLI, without incurring any additional liability, or there occurs a reduction in the existing
shareholding of HSBPL, JSHPL and/ or SSBPL in JLL, for any reason, whatsoever, as on the
Effective Date , such additional/ reduced number of equity shares of JLL, as may be held by HSBPL,
JSHPL and/ or SSBPL in JLL as on the Effective Date, shall be issued and allotted to JSPLPL and/
or JCPLPL, respectively.”

No special valuation difficulties were reported by the valuers.
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4, Adoption of the Report by the Board of Directors

4.1 The Board has adopted this report after noting and considering the information set forth in this
report.

By Order of the Board

For HSB Corporate Consultants Private Limited

DIN :00009338

Date: 25.11.2019
Place: Noida
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Annexure - 10

BY THE JUBILANT
ACCORDANCE OF THE COMP
2013
1. Background
1.1 The proposed composite scheme of arrangement (“Scheme™) between Jubilant Stock Holding

Private Limited (“Company” or “JSHPL”), HSB Corporate Consultants Private Limited
(“HSBPL”), SSB Consultants & Management Services Private Limited (“SSBPL”), JCPL Life
Science Ventures and Holdings Private Limited (“JCPLPL”), JSPL Life Science Services and
Holdings Privale Limiled (“JSPLPL™) (together, the “Transferor Companies”), Jubilant Life
Sciences Limited (“Transferee Company” or “Demerged Company” or “JLL”) and Jubilant LSI
Limited (“Resulting Company”) and their respective shareholders and creditors under Sections
230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) for the
amalgamation of the Transferor Companies into the Transferee Company (“Amalgamations”)
followed by the demerger of the life science ingredients business undertaking of the Demerged
Company into the Resulting Company, on a going concern basis (“Demerger”), was approved by
the board of directors of the Company (“Board”) pursuant to resolution dated 23" October, 2019.

1.2 The provisions of Section 232(2)(c) of the Act require the directors of the Company to adopt a
report explaining the effect of the arrangement pursuant to the Scheme on each class of
shareholders, key managerial personnel, promoters and non-promoter shareholders of the Company
and setting out, in particular, the share exchange ratio, specifying any special valuation difficulties.
Such report is required to be circulated to the shareholders and/ or creditors of the Company,
together with the notice(s) of the meeting(s) of the shareholders and/ or creditors of the Company,
if applicable.

1.3 Accordingly, this report of the Board is being made in pursuance of the requirement of Section
232(2)(c) of the Act and in this connection, the following documents were presented/ placed before
the Board:

i) the Scheme as approved by the Board pursuant to resolution dated 23" October, 2019;

(ii) the report dated October 23, 2019 issued by B.B. & Associates, Chartered Accountants
recommending the share exchange ratios for the proposed Amalgamations and the share
entitlement ratio for the Demerger (“Share Exchange/ Entitlement Report”); and

(iii)  the addendum dated November 22, 2019 issued by B.B. & Associates, Chartered
Accountants to the Share Exchange/ Entitlement Report (“Addendum to the Share
Exchange/ Entitlement Report”).

2. Disclosure about the of the Scheme on the following persons in to the Companv

Employees / Key Managerial In terms of Clause 5.1 of Part B of the
Personnel of the Company Scheme, upon the Effective Date (as defined
under Clause 1.10  Part A the

A Jubilant Bhartia Company
OUR VALUES

Jubilant Stock Holding Private Limited
Corporate & Regd Office : v
Plot No.1-A, Sector - 16 A,

Noida-201 301, U.P, India

Tel:4+91 120 4361000

Fax:4+91 120 4234882

CIN: U52100UP2008PTC043688
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Directors of the Company

Equity shareholders: Promoters of

the Company
Equity shareholders:
promoter  shareholders

Company

of

Non-
the
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the employees of the Company as on the
Effective Date, if any, shall be deemed to
have become employees of the Transferee
Company, without any interruption of
service and on the basis of continuity of
service and terms and conditions no less
favourable than those applicable to them
with reference to the Company on the
Effective Date. The services of such
employees, if any, with the Company up to
the Effective Date shall be taken into
account for the purposcs of all benefits to
which the employees, if any, may be eligibte
under applicable law.

Further, in terms of Clause 5.2 of Part B of
the Scheme, upon the Effective Date, all
contributions to funds and schemes in
respect of provident fund, employee state
insurance  contribution, gratuity fund,
superannuation fund, staff welfare scheme
or any other special schemes or benefits
created or existing for the benefit of the
employees of the Company as on the Merger
Appointed Date (as defined under Clause
1.15 of Part A of the Scheme), if any, shall
be made by the Transferee Company in
accordance with the provisions of such
schemes or funds and applicable law.

Moreover, in terms of Clause 12 of Part B
of the Scheme, upon the Effective Date,
the Company shall stand dissolved
without being wound up. In these
circumstances, the key managerial
personnel (“KMP™) of the Company will
cease to be the KMPs of the Company.

In terms of Clause 12 of Part B of the
Scheme, upon the Effective Date, the
Company shall stand dissolved without
being wound up and accordingly, the Board
shall cease to exist.

The equity shares of the Company are held
by JCPLPL and JSPLPL in a 50:50 ratio.
Further, the Company holds 13.41% of the
paid-up equity share capital of the Transferce
Company.



It may be noted that in terms of the Scheme,
the sharcholders of the Transferor
Companies would be issued shares by the
Transferee Company in the proportion of
1:1, that is, the shareholders of the
Trausleror Companies shall (inally be issued
an cqual number of shares of the Transferee
Company as held by the Transferor
Companies (in the Transferee Company) as
on the Merger Record Date. More
specifically:

i) As part of the Scheme, the same
number of shares held by the
Company, HSBPL and SSBPL in
the Transferee Company shall be
issued to their shareholders (i.e.,
JCPLPL and JSPLPL).

(ii) Post issue of the shares to the
shareholders of the Company,
HSBPL and SSBPL (i.e., JCPLPL
and JSPLPL), the said shares would
be cancelled and the shareholders of
JCPLPL and JSPLPL would be
issued an equal number of shares by
the Transferee Company (in the
proportion in which JCPLPL and
JSPLPL.  hold shares in the
Transferee Company).

Consequently, as also mentioned in the
Scheme upon the implementation of the
Scheme, there would neither be any change
in the number of shares nor in the percentage
shareholding of the promoters and promoter
group on an aggregate basis in the Transferee
Company pursuant to the Amalgamations
contemplated under Part B of the Scheme.

Further, in terms of Clause 10.2.1(ii) of
Part B of the Scheme, upon the Effective
Date: (a) the equity shares of the Transferee
Company held by the Company; (b) the
equity shares of the Company held by
JCPLPL; and (c) the equity shares of the
Company held by JSPLPL, shall be
automatically cancelled and be of no effect
on and from the Effective Date.
Simultaneously and concurrent with such
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cancellation, the Transferee Company shall,
issue and allot the Merger Shares (as defined
under Clause 1.18 of Part A of the Scheme)
such that for 2,13,61,992 (Two Crore
Thirteen Lakh Sixty One Thousand Nine
Hundred and Ninety Two only) fully paid-up
equity shares of Re. 1/- each of the
Transferee Company held by the Company
as on the Merger Record Date (as defined
under Clause 1.16 of Part A of the Scheme),
2,13,61,992 (Two Crore Thirteen Lakh Sixty
One Thousand Nine Hundred and Ninety
T'wo only) Merger Shares shall be issued and
allotted by thc Transferee Company, free
from all liens, charges, equitable interests,
encumbrances and other third party rights of
any nature whatsoever, to each shareholder
of the Company whose name is recorded in
the register of members of the Company as
holding shares as of the Merger Record Date.

Moreover, in terms of Clause 10.2.1(iv) of
Part B of the Scheme, in the event the
Company acquires any additional shares of
the Transferee Company, without
incurring any additional liability, or there
occurs a reduction in the existing
shareholding of the Company in the
Transferee Company, for any reason,
whatsoever, as on the Effective Date, such
additional/ reduced number of equity
shares of the Transferee Company, as may
be held by the Company in the Transferee
Company as on the Effective Date, shall be
issued and allotted to JCPLPL and/ or
JSPLPL, respectively.

Share Exchange/ Entitlement

The Share Exchange/ Entitlement Report read with the Addendum to the Share Exchange/
Entitlement Report recommends a share exchange ratio for the proposed amalgamation of the
Company into the Transferee Company as under:

“2,13,61,992 fully paid up equity shares of face value of INR 1/- each of JLL to be issued to
shareholders of JSHPL for 2,13,61,992 fully paid up equity shares of face value of INR 1/- each of
JLL held by JSHPL.

As stated in our report dated October 23, 2019 and in the Composite Scheme of Arrangement
(Scheme), in the event HSBPL, JSHPL and/ or SSBPL acquire(s) any additional equity shares of
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JLL, without incurring any additional liability, or there occurs a reduction in the existing
shareholding of HSBPL, JSHPL and/ or SSBPL in JLL, for any reason, whatsoever, as on the
Effective Date , such additional/ reduced number of equity shares of JLL, as may be held by HSBPL,
JSHPL and/ or SSBPL in JLL as on the Effective Date, shall be issued and allotied to JSPLPL and/
or JCPLPL, respectively.”

3.2 No special valuation difficulties were reported by the valuers.

4. Adoption of the Report by the Board of Directors

4.1 The Board has adopted this report after noting and considering the information set forth in this
report.

By Order of the Board

For Jubilant Stock Holding Private Limited

Hari Shanker Bhartia
Managing Director
DIN: 00010499

Date: 25" November, 2019
Place: Noida
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Annexure - 11

SSBCO S LTANTS& MA AGE ENTS VICES VATEL TD

Regd. Office: Plot No. 1A, Sector 16A, Noida-201301, UP, INDIA
Tel.:+91 120 4361000. Fax: +91 0120 4234881, Email: , CIN: U74120UP2013PTC054823

T PTED BY THE BOARD OF
CES PRIVATE LIMITED IN A

1. Background

1.1 The proposed composite scheme of arrangement (“Scheme”) between SSB Consultants &
Management Services Private Limited (“Company” or “SSBPL”), HSB Corporate Consultants
Private Limited (“HSBPL”), Jubilant Stock Holding Private Limited (“JSHPL”), JCPL Life
Science Ventures and Holdings Private Limited (“JCPLPL”), JSPL Life Science Services and
Holdings Private Limited (“JSPLPL”) (together, the “Transferor Companies™), Jubilant Life
Sciences Limited (“Transferee Company” or “Demerged Company” or “JLL”) and Jubilant LSI
Limited (“Resulting Company”) and their respective shareholders and creditors under Sections
230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) for the
amalgamation of the Transferor Companies into the Transferee Company (“Amalgamations”)
followed by the demerger of the life science ingredients business undertaking of the Demerged
Company into the Resulting Company, on a going concern basis (“Demerger”), was approved by
the Board of Directors of the Company (“Board”) pursuant to resolution dated 23'¢ October, 2019

1.2 The provisions of Section 232(2)(c) of the Act require the directors of the Company to adopt a
report explaining the effect of the arrangement pursuant to the Scheme on each class of
shareholders, key managerial personnel, promoters and non-promoter shareholders of the Company
and setting out, in particular, the share exchange ratio, specifying any special valuation difficulties.
Such report is required to be circulated to the shareholders and/ or creditors of the Company,
together with the notice(s) of the meeting(s) of the shareholders and/ or creditors of the Company,
it applicable. .

1.3 Accordingly, this report of the Board is being made in pursuance of the requirement of Section
232(2)(c) of the Act and in this connection, the following documents were presented/ placed before
the Board:

(i) the Scheme as approved by the Board pursuant to resolution dated 23™ October, 2019;

(ii) the report dated October 23, 2019 issued by B.B. & Associates, Chartered Accountants
recommending the share exchange ratios for the proposed Amalgamations and the share
entitlement ratio for the Demerger (“Share Exchange/ Entitlement Report™); and

(iii) the addendum dated November 22, 2019 issued by B.B. & Associates, Chartered
Accountants to the Share Exchange/ Entitlement Report (“Addendum to the Share
Exchange/ Entitlement Report”).

2 Disclosure about the effect of t
the Act:
S.No. EFFECT OF THE SCHEME ON

1 Employees / Key Managerial In terms of Clause 5.1 of Part B of the

Personnel of the Company Scheme, upon the Effective Date (as defined

under Clause 1.10 of Part A of the Scheme),

the employees of the Company as on the

8) 1
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Directors of the Company

Equity shareholders: Promoters of
the Company

Equity shareholders: Non-
promoter  shareholders of the
Company
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Effective Date, if any, shall be deemed to
have become employees of the Transferee
Company, without any interruption of
service and on the basis of continuity of
service and terms and conditions no less
favourable than those applicable to them
with reference to the Company on the
Effective Date. The services of such
employees, if any, with the Company up to
the Effective Date shall be taken into
account for the purposes of all benefits to
which the employees, if any, may be eligible
under applicable law.

Further, in terms of Clause 5.2 of Part B of
the Scheme, upon the Effective Date, all
contributions to funds and schemes in -
respect of provident fund, employee state
insurance  contribution, gratuity fund,
superannuation fund, staff welfare scheme
or any other special schemes or benefits
created or existing for the benefit of the
employees of the Company as on the Merger
Appointed Date (as defined under Clause
1.15 of Part A of the Scheme), if any, shall
be made by the Transferee Company in
accordance with the provisions of such
schemes or funds and applicable law.

Moreover, in terms of Clause 12 of Part B
of the Scheme, upon the Effective Date,
the Company shall stand dissolved
without being  wound up. In these
circumstances, the key managerial
personnel (“KMP?™) of the Company will
cease to be the KMPs of the Company.

In terms of Clause 12 of Part B of the
Scheme, upon the Effective Date, the
Company shall stand dissolved without
being wound up and accordingly, thé Board
shall cease to exist.

The Company is a wholly-owned subsidiary
of JCPLPL. Further, the Company holds
13.55% of the paid-up equity share capital of
the Transferee Company.

It may be noted that in terms of the Scheme,

the shareholders of the Transferor
Com be issued shares by the

v
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Transferee Company in the proportion of
1:1, that is, the shareholders of the
Transferor Companies shall finally be issued
an equal number of shares of the Transferee
Company as held by the Transferor
Companies (in the Transferee Company) as
on the Merger Record Date. More
specifically:

) As part of the Scheme, the same
number of shares held by the
Company, HSBPL and JSHPL in
the Transferee Company shall be
issued to their shareholders (i.e.,
JCPLPL and JSPLPL).

(ii) Post issue of the shares to the
shareholders of the Company,
HSBPL and JSHPL (i.e.,
JCPLPL and JSPLPL), the said
shares would be cancelled and
the shareholders of JCPLPL and
JSPLPL would be issued an equal
number of shares by the
Transferee Company (in the
proportion in which JCPLPL and
JSPLPL hold shares in the
Transferee Company).

Consequently, as also mentioned in the
Scheme upon the implementation of the
Scheme, there would neither be any change
in the number of shares nor in the percentage
shareholding of the promoters and promoter
group on an aggregate basis in the Transferee
Company pursuant to the Amalgamations
contemplated under Part B of the Scheme.

Further, in terms of Clause 10.2.1(iii) of
Part B of the Scheme, upon the Effective
Datc: (a) the cquity sharcs of the Transferee
Company held by the Company; and (b) the
equity shares of the Company (a wholly
owned subsidiary of JCPLPL) held by
JCPLPL, shall be automatically cancelled
and be of no effect on and from the Effective
Date. Simultaneously and concurrent with
such the Transferee Company
shall the Me Shares as

(e



3.1

Share Exchange/ Entitlement

defined under Clause 1.18 of Part A of the
Scheme) such that for 2,15,87,665 (Two
Crore Fifteen Lakh Eighty Seven Thousand
Six Hundred and Sixty Five only) fully paid-
up equity shares of Re. 1/- each of the
Transferee Company held by the Company
as on the Merger Record Date (as defined
under Clause 1.16 of Part A of the Scheme),
2,15,87,665 (Two Crore Fifteen Lakh Eighty
Seven Thousand Six Hundred and Sixty Five
only) Merger Shares shall be issued and
allotted by the Transferee Company, free
from all liens, charges, equitable interests,
encumbrances and other third party rights of
any nature whatsoever, to each shareholder
of the Company whose name is recorded in
the register of members of the Company as
holding shares as of the Merger Record Date.

Moreover, in terms of Clause 10.2.1(iv) of
Part B of the Scheme, in the event the
Company acquires any additional shares of
the Transferee Company, without
incurring any additional liability, or there
occurs a reduction in the existing
shareholding of the Company in the
Transferee Company, for any reason,
whatsoever, as on the Effective Date, such
additional/ reduced number of equity
shares of the Transferee Company, as may
be held by the Company in the Transferee
Company as on the Effective Date, shall be
issued and allotted to JCPI.PI..

The Share Exchange/ Entitlement Report read with the Addendum to the Share Exchange/
Entitlement Report recommends a share exchange ratio for the proposed amalgamation of the

Company into the Transferee Company as under:

“2,15,87,665 fully paid up equity shares of face value of INR 1/- each of JLL to be issued to
shareholders of SSBPL for 2,15,87,665 fully paid up equity shares of face value of INR 1/- each of

JLL held by SSBPL.

As stated in our report dated October 23, 2019 and in the Composite Scheme of Arrangement
(Scheme), in the event HSBPL, JSHPL and/ or SSBPL acquire(s) any additional equity shares of
JLL, without incurring any additional liability, or there occurs a reduction in the existing
shareholding of HSBPL, JSHPL and/ or SSBPL in JLL, for any reason, whalsoever, as on the
Effective Date , such additional/ reduced number of equity shares of JLL, as may be held by HSBPL,
JSHPL and/ or SSBPL in JLL as on the Effective Date, shall be to JSPLPL and/
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or JCPLPL, respectively.”
3.2 No special valuation difficulties were reported by the valuers.
4, Adoption of the Report by the Board of Directors

4.1 The Board has adopted this report after noting and considering the information set forth in this
report.

By Order of the Board

nts & Management Services Private Limited

Di
DIN

Date: 25™ November, 2019
Place: Noida
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JCPL Life Science Ventures and Holdings Private Limited

1.1

1.2

1.3

Annexure - 12

Regd. Office: Plot No. 14, Sector 164, Noida, Gautam Buddha Nagar, UP -201301, INDIA

Tel:+91 120 4361000. Fax: +91 0120 4234881,

Email: , CIN: U74999UP2Z016PTC0O87833
Background
The composite scheme of arrangement (“Scheme”) between JCPL Life Science Ventures
and Private Limited (“Company” or “JEPLPL”), HSB Corporate Consultants Private

Limited (“HSBPL”), Jubilant Stock Holding Private Limited (“JSHPL”), SSB Consultants &
Management Services Private Limited (“SSBPL”), JSPL Life Science Services and Holdings
Private Limited (“JSPLPL”) (together, the “Transferor Companies™), Jubilant Life Sciences
Limited (“Tran pany” or Company” or “JLL”) and Jubilant LSI Limited
(“Resulting Co d their re eholders and creditors under Sections 230 to 232
and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) for the amalgamation of the
Transferor Companies into the Transfere
demerger of the life science ingredients busi
Resulting Company, on a going concern b
directors of the Company (“Board”) pursuan

of ompany t
a on each
el, ers of the

and setting out, in particular, the share exchange ratio, specifying any special valuation difficulties.
Such report is required to be circulated to the shareholders and/ or creditors of the Company,
together with the notice(s) of the meeting(s) of the shareholders and/ or creditors of the Company,
if applicable.

gly, this report of the Board is be in pursuance of the requirement of Section
of the Act and in this connection, t ing documents were presented/ placed before
the Board:

@ the Scheme as approved by the Board pursuant to resolution dated 23" Qctober, 2019;

(i) the report dated October 23, 2019 by B ntants
recommending the share exchange for th share
entitlement ratio for the Demerger (¢ e Exc

(iii)  the addendum dated November 22, 2019 issued by B.B. & Associates, Chartered
Accountants to the Share Exchange/ Entitlement Report (“Addendum to the Share
Exchange/ Entitlement Report”).

re the in to
23
S.No. SCHEME
1 Employees / Key Managerial In terms of Clause 5.1 of Part B of the
Personnel of the Company Scheme, upon the Effective Date (as defined

under Clause 1.10  Part A the
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Directors of the Company

Equity shareholders: Promoters of
the Company

Equity  shareholders:  Non-
promoter shareholders of the
Company

the employees of the Company as on the
Effective Date, if any, shall be deemed to
have become employees of the Transferee
Company, without any interruption of
service and on the basis of continuity of
service and terms and conditions no less
favourable than those applicable to them
with reference to the Company on the
Effective Date. The services of such
employees, if any, with the Company up to
the Effective Date shall be taken into
account for the purposes of all benefits to
which the employees, if any, may be eligible
under applicable law. '

Further, in terms of Clause 5.2 of Part B of
the Scheme, upon the Effective Date, all
contributions to funds and schemes in
respect of provident fund, employee state
insurance contribution, gratuity fund,
superannuation fund, staff welfare scheme
or any other special schemes or benefits
created or existing for the benefit of the
employees of the Company as on the Merger
Appointed Date (as defined under Clause
1.15 of Part A of the Scheme), if any, shall
be made by the Transferee Company in
accordance with the provisions of such
schemes or funds and applicable law.

Moreover, in terms of Clause 12 of Part B
of the Scheme, upon the Effective Date,
the Company shall stand dissolved
without being wound up. In these
circumstances, the key managerial
personnel (“KMP”) of the Company will
cease to be the KMPs of the Company.

In terms of Clause 12 of Part B of the
Scheme, upon the Effective Date, the
Company shall stand dissolved without
being wound up and accordingly, the Board
shall cease to exist.

The equity shares of the Company is held by
SPB Trustee Company Private Limited and
SS Trustee Company Private Limited jointly
as trustee on behalf of Shyam Sunder Bhartia
Family Trust. Further, the Company holds
100% of the paid-up equity share capital of
SSBPL & 50% share
AND

Vv
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of JSHPL, which in turn, holds 13.55% &
13.41% of the paid-up equity share capital of
the Transferee Company respectively.

It may be noted that in terms of the Scheme,
the shareholders of the Transferor
Companies would be issued shares by the
Transferee Company in the proportion of
1:1, that is, the shareholders of the
Transferor Companies shall finally be issued
an equal number of shares of the Transferee
Company as held by the Transferor
Companies (in the Transferee Company) as
on the Merger Record Date. More
specifically:

(i) As part of the Scheme, the same
number of shares held by the
HSBPL, JSHPL and SSBPL in the
Transferee Company shall be issued
to their shareholders (i.e., the
Company and JSPLPL).

(ii) Post issue of the shares to the
shareholders of the HSBPL, JSHPL
and SSBPL (i.e., the Company and
JSPLPL), the said shares would be
cancelled and the shareholders of the
Company and JSPLPL would be
issued an equal number of shares by
the Transferee Company (in the
proportion in which the Company
and JSPLPL hold shares in the
Transferee Company).

Consequently, as also mentioned in the
Scheme upon the implementation of the
Scheme, there would neither be any change
in the number of shares nor in the percentage
shareholding of the promoters and promoter
in the Transferee
Amalgamations

of the Scheme.

Further, in terms of Clause 10.2.2(i) of Part
B of the Scheme, upon the Effective Date,
the shares of the Transferee Company held
by the Company shall be automatically
cancelled and be of no effect on and from the
Effective  Date.  Simultaneously and
concurrent with such cancellati the
AND
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3.1

Share Exchange/ Entitlement

Transferee Company shall, issue and allot
the Merger Shares (as defined under Clause
1.18 of Part A of the Scheme) such that for
3,22,68,661 (Three Crore Twenty Two Lakh
Sixty Eight Thousand Six Hundred and Sixty
One only) fully paid-up equity shares of Re.
1/- each of the Transferee Company held by
the Company as on the Merger Record Date
(as defined under Clause 1.16 of Part A of
the Scheme), 3,22,68,661 (Three Crore
Twenty Two Lakh Sixty Eight Thousand Six
Hundred and Sixty One only) Merger Shares
shall be issued and allotted by the Transferee
Company, free from all liens, charges,
equitable interests, encumbrances and other
third party rights of any nature whatsoever,
to each shareholder of the Company whose
name is recorded in the register of members
of the Company as holding shares as of the
Merger Record Date.

Moreover, in terms of Clause 10.2.2(iii) of
Part B of the Scheme, in the event the
Company acquires any additional shares of
the Transferee Company (either on
account of the amalgamation of SSBPL
and/ or JSHPL or on account of new
purchase of equity shares of the Transferee
Company), without incurring any
additional liability, or there occurs a
reduction in the existing shareholding of
the Company in the Transferee Company,
for any reason, whatsoever, as on the
Effective Date, such additional/ reduced
number of equity shares of the Transferee
Company, as may be held by the Company
in the Transferee Company as on the
Effective Date, shall be issued and allotted
to the shareholders of the Company.

The Share Exchange/ Entitlement Report read with the Addendum to the Share Exchange/
Entitlement Report recommends a share exchange ratio for the proposed amalgamation of the

Company into the Transferee Company as under:

“1 fully paid equity share of face value of INR 1/- each of JLL to be issued to shareholders of
JCPLPL and JSPLPL for every 1 fully paid up equity share of face value of INR 1/- each of JLL

held by JCPLPL & JSPLPL respectively.”
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3.2

4.

4.1

In view of above share exchange ratio and based on number of JLL shares held by JCPLPL &
JSPLPL post amalgamation of HSBPL, JSHPL & SSBPL into JLL, this results in cancellation and
allotment of JLL shares as follows:-

“3,22,68,661 fully paid up equity shares of face value of INR 1/- each of JLL to be issued to
shareholders of JCPLPL for 3,22,68,661 fully paid up equity shares of face value of INR 1/- each
of JLL to be held by JCPLPL post amalgamation of SSBPL & JSHPL.

“2,99,59,975 fully paid up equity shares of face value of INR 1/- each of JLL to be issued to
shareholders of JSPLPL for 2,99,59,975 fully paid up equity shares of face value of INR 1/- each
of JLL to be held by JSPLPL post amalgamation of JSHPL & HSBPL.

As stated in our report dated October 23, 2019 and in the Scheme, in the event JSPLPL and/ or

JCPLPL acquire(s) ! equity shares of JLL (either on account of of
HSBPL, SSBPL and Part B of the Scheme or on account of new p ity
shares of JLL), without incurring any additional liability, or there occurs a reduction in the
shareholdi in JLL, for any reason, whatsoever, as on the Effective
Date, such equity shares of JLL, as may be held by JSPLPL and/ or

JCPLPL in JLL as on the Effective Date shall be issued and allotted to the shareholders of JSPLPL
and/ or JCPLPL, respectively.”

No special valuation difficulties were reported by the valuers.
Adoption of the Report by the Board of Directors

The Board has adopted this report after noting and considering the information set forth in this
report.

By Order of the Board

Life Science Ventures and Holdings Private Limited

Parveen Goyal
Director
DIN 05275246

Date: 25 November, 2019
Place: Noida
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S i Science Se cesa o i gs r ateli ite

Regd. Office :1A, Sector-16A, Noida, Gautam Buddha Nager, UP - 201 301, India
Tel.: +91 120 4361000, Fax: +91 120 4234882
Email: corporate_enpro@jepl.com, CIN: U74999DL2016PTC087691

1 Background

1.1 The proposed composite scheme of arrangement (“Scheme”) between JSPL Life Science Services
and Holdings Private Limited (“Company” or “JSPLPL”), HSB Corporate Consultants Private
Limited (“HSBPL”), Jubilant Stock Holding Private Limited (“JSHPL”), SSB Consultants &
Management Services Private Limited (“SSBPL”), JCPL Life Science Ventures and Holdings
Private Limited (“JCPLPL”) (together, the “Transferor Companies”), Jubilant Life Sciences
Limited (“Transferee Company” or “Demerged Company” or “JLL”) and Jubilant LSI Limited
(“Resulting Company”) and their respective shareholders and creditors under Sections 230 to 232
and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) for the amalgamation of the
Transferor Companies into the Transferee Company (“Amalgamations”) followed by the
demerger of the life science ingredients business undertaking of the Demerged Company into the
Resulting Company, on a going concern basis ger”), was d by the board of
directors of the Company (“Board”) pursuant to r dated 23 2019.

1.2 The provisions of Section 232(2)(c) of the Act require the directors of the Company to adopt a
report explaining the effect of the arrangement pursuant to the Scheme on each class of
shareholders, key managerial personnel, promoters and non-promoter shareholders of the Company
and setting out, in particular, the share exchange ratio, specifying any special valuation difficulties.
Such report is required to be circulated to the shareholders and/ or creditors of the Company,
together with the notice(s) of the meeting(s) of the shareholders and/ or creditors of the Company,
if applicable.

1.3 Accordingly, this report of the Board is being made in pursuance of the requirement of Section
232(2)(c) of the Act and in this connection, the following documents were presented/ placed before
the Board:

i) the Scheme as approved by the Board pursuant to resolution dated 23" October, 2019;

(i1) the report dated October 23, 2019 issued by B.B. & Associates, Chartered Accountants
recommending the share exchange ratids for the proposed Amalgamations and the share
entitlement ratio for the Demerger (“Share Exchange/ Entitlement Report”); and

(iii)  the addendum dated November 22, 2019 issued by B.B. & Associates, Chartered
Accountants to the Share Exchange/ Entitlement Report (“Addendum to the Share
Exchange/ Entitlement Report”).

2. the the rsons n to
in the
S.No.
1 Employees / Key Managerial In terms of Clause 5.1 of Part B of the
Personnel of the Company Scheme, upon the Effective Date (as defined
under Clause 1.10 of Part A of the Scheme),
the em of the as on the
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Directors of the Company

Equity shareholders: Promoters of
the Company

Equity  shareholders:  Non-
promoter shareholders of the
Company
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Effective Date, if any, shall be deemed to
have become employees of the Transferee
Company, without any interruption of
service and on the basis of continuity of
service and terms and conditions no less
favourable than those applicable to them
with reference to the Company on the
Effective Date. The services of such
employees, if any, with the Company up to
the Effective Date shall be taken into
account for the purposes of all benefits to
which the employees, if any, may be eligible
under applicable law.

Further, in terms of Clause 5.2 of Part B of
the Scheme, upon the Effective Date, all
contributions to funds and schemes in
respect of provident fund, employee state
insurance contribution, gratuity fund,
superannuation fund, staff welfare scheme
or any other special schemes or benefits
created or existing for the benefit of the
employees of the Company as on the Merger
Appointed Date (as defined under Clause
1.15 of Part A of the Scheme), if any, shall
be made by the Transferee Company in
accordance with the provisions of such
schemes or funds and applicable law.

Moreover, in terms of Clause 12 of Part B
of the Scheme, upon the Effective Date,
the Company shall stand dissolved
without being wound up. In these
circumstances, the key managerial
personnel (“KMP”) of the Company will
cease to be the KMPs of the Company.

In terms of Clause 12 of Part B of the
Scheme, upon the Effective Date, the
Company shall stand dissolved without
being wound up and accordingly, the Board
shall cease to exist.

The Equity Shares of the Company is held by
HSB Trustee Company Private Limited and
HS Trustee Company Private Limited jointly
as trustee on behalf of Hari Shanker Bhartia
Family Trust. Further, the Company holds
100% of the paid-up equity share capital of
HSBPL & 50% of the paid-up equity share

of J which in holds
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12.10% & 13.41% of the paid-up equity
share capital of the Transferee Company
respectively.

It may be noted that in terms of the Scheme,
the shareholders of the Transferor
Companies would be issued shares by the
Transferee Company in the proportion of
1:1, that is, the shareholders of the
Transferor Companies shall finally be issued
an equal number of shares of the Transferee
Company as held by the Transferor
Companies (in the Transferee Company) as
on the Merger Record Date. More
specifically:

(i) As part of the Scheme, the same
number of shares held by the
HSBPL, JSHPL and SSBPL in the
Transferee Company shall be issued
to their shareholders (i.e., the
Company and JCPLPL).

(ii) Post issue of the shares to the
shareholders of the HSBPL, JSHPL
and SSBPL (i.e., the Company and
JCPLPL), the said shares would be
cancelled and the shareholders of the
Company and JCPLPL would be
issued an equal number of shares by
the Transferee Company (in the
proportion in which the Company
and JCPLPL hold shares in the
Transferee Company).

Consequently, as also mentioned in the
Scheme upon the implementation of the
Scheme, there would neither be any change
in the number of shares nor in the percentage
shareholding of the promoters and promoter
group on an aggregate basis in the
Transferee Company pursuant to the
Amalgamations contemplated under Part B
of the Scheme.

Further, in terms of Clause 10.2.2(ii) of
Part B of the Scheme, upon the Effective
Date, the shares of the Transferee Company
held by the Company shall be automatically
cancelled and be of no effect on and from the
Effective Date.  Simultaneously  and



concurrent with such cancellation, the
Transferee Company shall, issue and allot
the Merger Shares (as defined under Clause
1.18 of Part A of the Scheme) such that for
2,99,59,975 (Two Crore Ninety Nine Lakh
Fifty Nine Thousand Nine Hundred and
Seventy Five only) fully paid-up equity
shares of Re. 1/- each of the Transferee
Company held by the Company as on the
Merger Record Date (as defined under
Clause 1.16 of Part A of the Scheme),
2,99,59,975 (Two Crore Ninety Nine Lakh
Fifty Nine Thousand Nine Hundred and
Seventy Five only) Merger Shares shall be
issued and allotted by the Transferee
Company, free from all liens, charges,
equitable interests, encumbrances and other
third party rights of any nature whatsoever,
to each shareholder of the Company whose
name is recorded in the register of members
of the Company as holding shares as of the
Merger Record Date. .

Moreover, in terms of Clause 10.2.2(iii) of
Part B of the Scheme, in the event the
Company acquires any additional shares of
the Transferee Company (either on
account of the amalgamation of HSBPL
and/ or JSHPL or on account of new
purchase of equity shares of the Transferee
Company), without incurring any
additional liability, or there occurs a
reduction in the existing shareholding of
the Company in the Transferee Company,
for any reason, whatsoever, as on the
Effective Date, such additional/ reduced
number of equity shares of the Transferee
Company, as may be held by the Company
in the Transferee Company as on the
Effective Date, shall be issued and allotted
to the shareholders of the Company.

Share Exchange/ Entitlement

The Share Exchange/ Entitlement Report read with the Addendum to the Share Exchange/
Entitlement Report recommends a share exchange ratio for the proposed amalgamation of the
Company into the Transferee Company as under:
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“1 fully paid equity share of face value of INR 1/- each of JLL to be issued to shareholders of
JCPLPL and JSPLPL for every I fully paid up equity share of face value of INR 1/- each of JLL
held by JCPLPL & JSPLPL respectively.”

In view of above share exchange ratio and based on number of JLL shares held by JCPLPL &
JSPLPL post amalgamation of HSBPL, JSHPL & SSBPL into JLL, this results in cancellation and
allotment of JLL shares as follows.-

“3,22,68,661 fully paid up equity shares of face value of INR 1/- each of JLL to be issued to
shareholders of JCPLPL for 3,22,68,661 fully paid up equity shares of face value of INR 1/- each
of JLL to be held by JCPLPL post amalgamation of SSBPL & JSHPL.

“2,99,59,975 fully paid up equity shares of face value of INR 1/- each of JLL to be issued to
shareholders of JSPLPL for 2,99,59,975 fully paid up equity shares of face value of INR 1/- each
of JLL to be held by JSPLPL post amalgamation of JSHPL & HSBPL.

As stated in our report dated October 23, 2019 and in the Scheme, in the event JSPLPL and/ or
JCPLPL acquire(s) any additional equity shares of JLL (either on account of amalgamation of
HSBPL, SSBPL and JSHPL under Part B of the Scheme or on account of new purchase of equity
shares of JLL), without incurring any additional liability, or there occurs a reduction in the
shareholding of JSPLPL and/ or JCPLPL in JLL, for any reason, whatsoever, as on the Effective
Date, such additional/ reduced number of equity shares of JLL, as may be held by JSPLPL and/ or
JCPLPL in JLL as on the Effective Date shall be issued and allotted to the shareholders of JSPLPL
and/ or JCPLPL, respectively.”

3.2 No special valuation difficulties were reported by the valuers.

4, Adoption of the Report by the Board of Directors

4.1 The Board has adopted this report after noting and considering the information set forth in this
report.

By Order of the Board

Life Science Services and Holdings Private Limited

Parveen Kumar
Director
DIN 05275246

Date: 25" November, 2019
Place: Noida
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REPORT ADOPTED BY THE BOARD OF FCTORS OF .JUBILANT LSI LIMITED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH S

1.

{.1

1.2

1.3

Background

The proposed composite scheme of arrangement (“Scheme™) between Jubilant LSI Limited
(“Company” or “JLSI”), HSB Corporate Consultants Private Limited (“HSBPL”), Jubilant Stock
Holding Private Limited (“JSHPL"), SSB Consultants & Management Setvices Private Limited
(“SSBPL”), JCPL Life Science Ventures and Holdings Private Limited (“JCPLPL”), JSPL Life
Science Services and Holdings Private Limited (“JSPLPL”) (HSBPL, JSHPL, SSBPL, JCPLPL
and JSPLPL hercafter arc collectively, the “Transferor Companies™”) and Jubilant Life Sciences
Limited (“Transferec Company” or “Demerged Company” or “JLL”) and their respective
shareholders and creditors under Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) for the amalgamation of the Transferor Companies into the
Transferee Company (“Amalgamations”) followed by the demerger of the life science ingredients
business undertaking of the Demerged Company into the Company, on a going concern basis
(“Demerger”), was approved by the board of directors of the Company (“Board”) pursuant to
resolution dated October 24, 2019.

The provisions of Section 232(2)(c) of the Act require the directors of the Company to adopt a
report explaining the effect of the arrangement pursuant to the Scheme on each class of
shareholders, key managerial personnel, promoters and non-promoter shareholders of the Company
and setting out, in particular, the share exchange ratio, specifying any special valuation difficulties.
Such report is required to be circulated to the shareholders and/ or creditors of the Company,
together with the notice(s) of the meeting(s) of the shareholders and/ or creditors of the Company,
if applicable.

Accordingly, this report of the Board is being made in pursuance of the requirement of Section
232(2)(c) of the Act and in this connection, the following documents, inter alia, were presented/
placed before the Board:

@) the Scheme as approved by the Board pursuant to resolution dated October 24, 2019;

(ii) the report dated October 23, 2019 issued by B.B. & Associates, Chartered Accountants
recommending the share exchange ratios for the proposed Amalgamations and the share
entitlement ratio for the Demerger (“Share Exchange/ Entitlement Report”); and

(iii)  the addendum dated November 22, 2019 issued by B.B. & Associates, Chartered
Accountants to the Share Exchange/ Entitlement Report (“Addendum to the Share
Exchange/ Entitlement Report”).

Disclosure about the effect of t

A Jubilant Life Sciences Company

OUR VALUES

Annexure - 14

the Act;
1 Em / Ma Personnel of the C

In terms of Clause 6.1 of Part C of the Scheme, upon the Effective Date (as defined

under Clause 1.10  Part A the Scheme the of the LSIU as
Jubilant LSI Limited Regd Office:
1-A, Sector 16-A, Bhartiagram, Gajraula
Noida-201 301, UP, India Distt. Amroha - 244 223,
Tel:+91 120 4361000 UB India
Fax:+91 120 4234895-96 CIN : U24299UP2019PLC122657
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defined under Clause 1.14 of Part A of the Scheme) as on the Effective Date, if any,
shall be deemed to have become employees of the Company, without any interruption
of service and on the basis of continuity of service and on the same terms and conditions
as those applicable to them with reference to the Demerged Company as on the
Lffective Date. The services of such employees, if any, with the Demerged Company
up to the Lffective Date shall be taken into account for the purposes of all benefits to
which the employees, may be eligible under applicable law.

In terms of Clause 6.2 of Part C of the Scheme, upon the Effective Date, all
contributions to funds and schemes in respect of provident fund, employee state
insurance contribution, gratuity fund, superannuation fund, staff welfare scheme or any
other special schemes or henefits created or existing for the benefit of the employees
of the LSI Undertaking, if any, shall be made by the Company in accordance with the
provisions of such schemes or funds and applicable law.

In terms of Clause 6.3 of Part C of the Scheme, the existing provident fund, employee
state insurance contribution, gratuity fund, superannuation fund, the staff welfare
scheme and any other schemes or henefits created by the Demerged Company for the
employees of the LSI Undertaking, shall be continued on the same terms and conditions
and be transferred to the existing provident fund, employee state insurance
contribution, gratuity fund, superannuation fund, staff welfare scheme, etc., being
maintained by the Company without any requirement of any separate act or
deed/approval. In relation to the employees of the LSI Undertaking, for whom the
Demerged Company is making contributions to the government provident fund, the
Company shall stand substituted for the Demerged Company, for all purposes
whatsoever, including relating to the obligation to make contributions to the said fund
in accordance with the provisions of such fund, bye laws, etc. in respect of such
employees.

In terms of Clause 6.4 of Part C of the Scheme, notwithstanding the provisions of
Clauses 6.2 and 6.3 above, it is clarified that the assets of the Jubilant Employee
Welfare Trust (“JEWT”), an existing trust administering welfare benefit schemes for
the benefit of the employees of the Demerged Company and its group companies, shall
be appropriately split and apportioned on the basis of the remuneration of the
employees (General Manager and above) pertaining to the LSI Undertaking being
transferred and a portion of the funds from the JEWT along with the underlying
obligations in relation to employees transferred to the Company shall be transferred to
an employee welfare trust to be created by the Company and such employee welfare
trust created by the Company shall administer the employee benefit schemes for the
employees of the Company (including those employees of the Demerged Company
pertaining to the LSI Undertaking transferred to the Company pursuant to the demerger
contemplated under this Part C of the Scheme) by utilizing the funds transferred from
the JEWT.

Directors of the Company

There is no effect of the Scheme on the directors on the Board.

Equity shareholders: Promoters and non-promoter shareholders of the Company

The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of the Demerged Company.

In terms of Clause 11.2 of Part C of the Scheme, 59 n the Effective Date, the shares of
the Company held by the Demerged Company g all)ﬁ)e automatically cancelled and be

191



of no effect on and from the Effective Date. Simultaneously and concurrent with such
cancellation, the Company shall issue and allot the Demerger Shares (as defined under
Clause 1.9 of Part A of the Scheme) such that for every 1 (One only) fully paid-up
equity shares of Re. 1/- (Rupee One only) each of the Demerged Company held by the
shareholders of the Demerged Company as on the Demerger Record Date (as defined
under Clause 1.8 of Part A of the Scheme), 1 (One only) Demerger Share shall be issued
and allotted by the Company, free from all liens, charges, equitable interests,
encumbrances and other third party rights of any nature whatsoever, to each shareholder
of the Demerged Company whose name is recorded in the register of members of the
Demerged Company as holding shares as of the Demerger Record Date. Provided
however that, the number of Demerger Shares will be equitably adjusted to reflect
appropriately the effect of any share split, reverse share split, dividend, including any
extra-ordinary cash dividend, reotganization, recapitalization, reclassification,
combination, exchange of shares, or other like change with respect to the Company’s
shares on the books of the Company as on the Demerger Record Date.

Further, the Demerger Shares to be issued by the Company, in terms of Clause 11.2
will, subject to approval/ exemption from SEBI, be listed and/or admitted to trading on
the Stock Exchanges where the equity shares of the Demerged Company are listed

and/or admitted to trading in terms of Rule 19(7) of the Securities Contract (Regulation)
Rules, 1957 and other applicable rules/ regulations.

3. Share Exchange/ Entitlement

3.1 The Share Exchange/ Entitlement Report read with the Addendum to the Share Exchange/
Entitlement Report recommends a share entitlement ratio for the proposed Demerger as under:

the Scheme

“I(one) fully paid up equity share of face value of INR 1/- each of JLSI for every 1 (one) fully
paid equity share of face value of INR 1/- each held in JLL.”

32 No special valuation difficulties were reported by the valuers.
4. Adoption of the Report by the Board of Directors

4.1 The Board has adopted this report after noting and considering the information set forth in this

report.
By of the Board
DIN 435

Date: November 25, 2019
Place: Noida
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Charterad Accountants

Bth Floor, Tower - A, Plot # 07 Telephone: + 91 120 386 8000
Adant Havis Business 7 ark Fax:  +91 120 386 8999

Sector - 142, Noida Expressway
Moida - 201305, UP (India)

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Members of Jubilant Life Sciences Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the standalone financial statements of Jubilant Life Sciences Limited (“the Company”),
which comprise the standalone balance sheet as at 31 March 2020, and the standalone statement of profit and
loss (including other comprehensive income), standalone statement of changes in equity and standalone
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the standalone financial statements,
including a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter
referred to as “the standalone financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2020, and profit and other
comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10)
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the Standalone financial statements.

Emphasis of Matter
We draw attention to note 49 of the standalone financial statements which describes the accounting policy

followed by the Company related to the transfer of India Branded Pharmaceuticals Business to its subsidiary.
Our opinion is not modified in respect of aforesaid matter.

BSA&Co th Faypsstimteon Registered OHice
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BSR &Co. LLP
Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit
of the standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of
our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do
not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Investment in subsidiaries
See note 5 to the standalone financial statements

The key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

The Company’s investments in subsidiaries
represents 67.65% of total net assets. These
investments are reviewed at the end of the
reporting period to determine whether there is any
indication of impairment and the consequential
impairment loss, if any.

We have identified the assessment of impairment
(including evaluation of impairment indicators) in
respect of investment in subsidiaries as a key audit
matter because of its quantitative significance and
since it involves significant judgement and is
dependent on external factors such as future
market conditions and the economic environment

In view of the significance of the matter following
audit procedures were applied in this area, among
others to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence:

= Assessed the appropriateness  of
accounting policy for impairment of
investment in subsidiaries as per relevant
accounting standard.

= Evaluated the design implementation of

key internal financial controls with
respect to  impairment including
assessment of impairment indicators

and determination of recoverable value
and tested the operating effectiveness of
such controls.

=  Evaluated the impairment indicator
assessment performed by the Company
considering internal/ external sources of
information.

»  Where an impairment indicator was
identified, we:

» assessed the appropriateness of
the valuation methodology and
assumptions such as profit
forecast, growth rate, discount
rate, etc. used by the Company.

» challenged the appropriateness of
the various assumptions used in
the valuation model by the
Company, including forecasted
revenues, growth rate, costs,
discount rates, etc by evaluating
past  performances, = where
relevant, assessing historical
accuracy of the assumptions and
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» evaluating sensitivity analysis of
these key assumptions.

Impact of adopting the new income tax regime
See note 30 to the standalone financial
statements

The key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

With effect from financial year 2019-2020, the
Income Tax Act provides an option of paying
income taxes at a lower rate subject to complying
with certain prescribed conditions (‘new tax
regime’). The Company has opted to shift to the
new tax regime from a financial year in the future.

Accordingly, the deferred tax liabilities which are
expected to reverse subsequent to the Company
shifting to the new tax regime in the specified
future year was remeasured and the consequential
amount was recognised in the standalone statement
of profit and loss of the current year. This amount
is considered to be significant.

The determination of the point in time at which the
Company would shift to the new tax regime
involves significant judgement and estimation
regarding forecasting future taxable profits and
realisation of MAT credit entitlement (an item of
deferred tax assets). Since the impact of
remeasurement of deferred tax liabilities as stated
above is sensitive to these judgements and
estimates, it affects the amount of deferred tax
liabilities that are reversed in the standalone
statement of profit and loss of the current year.

Given the significant level of judgement involved
and the quantitative significance, we have
determined this to be a key audit matter.

In view of the significance of the matter we applied
the following audit procedures in this area, among
others to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence:

» Examined the implications of the new
provisions on the tax position of the
Company keeping in view the various
interpretations to assess the impact of
adopting the new tax regime from the
specified future financial year.

Tested the design, implementation and
operating effectiveness of the Company’s
key controls in relation to estimation of
amount of deferred tax assets to be carried
forward, including MAT  credit
entitlement.

Tested appropriateness of forecasts of
future taxable profits including revenue
growth rates, EBITDA growth rates and
other tax positions, based on our
knowledge of the business and the
observable market data of the industry.

Assessed the recoverability of MAT credit
entitlement (an item of deferred tax assets)
against the forecast future taxable profits.

Tested reliability of forecasts by
comparison of actual results of current
year with forecasts made in previous year.
Ascertained reasons for variance, if any,
and assessed whether the same have been
taken into considered in preparing future

forecasts.

= Assessed the adequacy of related
disclosures in the standalone financial
statements.
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Other Information

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s annual report, but does not include the
financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management's and Board of Directors’ Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5)
of the Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs, profit/loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding
of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that
were operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due

to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
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misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing
our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures in the standalone financial statements made by the Management and Board of
Directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a
going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditors’ Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government in terms of section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. (A) Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books
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¢) The standalone balance sheet, the standalone statement of profit and loss (including other
comprehensive income), the standalone statement of changes in equity and the standalone
statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified
under section 133 of the Act.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2020 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2020 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure B”.

(B) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

ii.

ii.

iv.

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2020 on its
financial position in its standalone financial statements - Refer Note 38 to the standalone
financial statements.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.

There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

The disclosures in the standalone financial statements regarding holdings as well as dealings
in specified bank notes during the period from 8 November 2016 to 30 December 2016 have
not been made in these financial statements since they do not pertain to the financial year ended
31 March 2020.

(C) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors’ Report under section 197(16):

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the
company to its directors during the current year is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the
Act. The remuneration paid to any director is not in excess of the limit laid down under Section 197 of the
Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under Section 197(16) which are
required to be commented upon by us.

Place: Delhi

ForBSR & Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 101248W/W-100022

Sd/-
Manish Gupta

Partner
Membership No. 095037

Date: 29 May 2020 ICAI UDIN No:20095037AAAABI2298
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date on standalone financial statements of
Jubilant Life Sciences Limited.

We report that:

(1)

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

™)

(a) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details
and situation of its fixed assets.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has a regular programme
of physical verification of its fixed assets by which fixed assets are verified in a phased manner
over a period of three years. In accordance with this programme, certain fixed assets were verified
during the year. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having regard
to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. As informed to us, the discrepancies noticed
on such verification were not material and have been properly adjusted in the books of account.

(¢) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the books of account, the title deeds of immovable property are held in the name of the Company.

The inventory, except goods-in-transit and stocks lying with third parties, has been physically verified
by the management during the year. In our opinion, the frequency of such verification is reasonable.
For stocks lying with third parties at the year-end, written confirmations have been obtained. As
informed to us, the discrepancies noticed on verification between the physical stocks and the book
records were not material and have been properly adjusted in the books of account.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us, during the year, the Company has
granted secured loan to a Body Corporate (an other party) covered in the register maintained under
section 189 of the Act. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
the terms and conditions of the grant of such loans are not prejudicial to the Company’s interest.

(b) The Company has granted loans that are either re-payable on demand or have a schedule for
repayment of interest and principal, to companies covered in the register maintained under section 189
of the Act. The payment of interest has been regular.

(¢) There is no amounts of loans granted to companies listed in the register maintained under section
189 of the Act which are overdue for more than ninety days.

Further, according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any
loans, secured or unsecured, to companies and limited liability partnerships covered in the register
maintained under section 189 of the Act. Also, as informed to us, there are no firms covered in the
register maintained under section 189 of the Act.

According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of loans and investments made
by the Company, the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act have been complied with. As
informed to us, the Company has not provided any guarantee or security as specified under Section 185
and 186 of the Act.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any deposits
as mentioned in the directives issued by Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of section 73 to 76
of the Act or any other relevant provision of the companies Act 2013, and the rules framed there under.
Accordingly, paragraph 3(v) of the order is not applicable.
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(vi) We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the rules
specified by the Central Government for maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of the Act,
in respect of its products and are of the opinion that prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records
have been made and maintained. However, we have not carried out a detailed examination of the
records with a view to determine whether these are accurate or complete.

(vii) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of

the records of the Company, amounts deducted / accrued in the books of account in respect of
undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, goods
and services tax (GST), duty of customs, cess and other material statutory dues have generally been
regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no amounts payable in respect of
undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, GST,
duty of customs, cess, and other material statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2020 for a
period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of sales-tax which

have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute. According to
the information and explanations given to us, the following dues of income-tax, service tax, duty
of customs, duty of excise and value added tax have not been deposited by the Company on account

of disputes:
Name of Nature Amount Amount paid Financial Forum where
the Statute of the involved* | under protest | year to which | dispute is pending
Dues (Rs. in (Rs. in the amount
million) million) relates
Income-tax
Act, Income 4.53 - 1988-89 | Income Tax
1961 Tax Appellate Tribunal
2001-02
243.25 - 2004-08 | High Court
Central
Excise Act, | Excise 15.01 9.05 2009-11 | Supreme Court
1944 Duty Custom, Central
Excise and Service
34.85 - 2012-17 | Tax Appellate
Tribunal
Finance Act, | Service Assistant
1994 Tax 1.25 - 2015-17 | Commissioner
Custom Excise and
Customs Custom Service Tax
Act, 1962 Duty 12.04 - 2012-14 | Appellate Tribunal
Deputy
7123 2015-16 | Commissioner
Assistant
0.01 - 2006-07 | Commissioner
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Name of the | Nature Amount | Amount paid Financial | Forum where
Statute of the involved* | under protest | year to which | dispute is pending
Dues (Rs. in (Rs. in the amount
million) million) relates
Customs Custom Assistant
Act, 1962 Duty 4.93 - 2016-17 | Commissioner
Uttar
Pradesh
Value
Added Tax | Value
Act, Added
2008 Tax 66.97 - 2010-18 | Supreme Court
The Delhi | Value Special Objection
Value Added 363 ) 2013-14 Hearing Authority
Added Tax | Tax Special Objection
Act 7.00 ) 2014-15 Hearing Authority
The Value
Rajasthan Added
Value Tax
Added Tax
Act Assistant
0.08 - 2015-17 | Commercial Tax
Officer
Mabharashtra Sale
The 0.27 - 2012-13 | Tax Tribunal
Maharashtra | Value
Value Added
Added Tax | Tax
Act, 2002 9.47 - 2014-15 | Joint Commissioner
The Central | Goods
Goods and | and
Service Tax | Service
Act, 2017 Tax 0.28 0.28 2018 | High Court
The Central | Goods
Goods and | and Uttar Pradesh
Service Tax | Service Goods and Service
Act, 2017 Tax 0.35 0.35 2018 | Tax Tribunal

* amount as per demand orders including interest and penalty, wherever indicated in the order.

(viii) According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and explanations given
to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to its bankers or to any
financial institutions and dues to debenture holders. The Company did not have any loans or borrowings
from government during the year.
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(ix)

(x)

(xi)

(xii)

(xii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

Based on our examination of books of account and according to the information and explanations given
to us, the Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments). Further the monies raised by way of term loans have been applied, on an
overall basis, for the purpose for which they are obtained.

Based on our examination of the books of account and according to the information and explanations
given to us, no fraud by the Company and no fraud on the Company by its officers or employees has
been noticed or reported during the course of our audit.

Based on our examination of the books of account and according to the information and explanations
given to us, the Company has paid / provided managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite
approvals mandated by the provision of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a nidhi company.
Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

Based on our examination of the books of account and according to the information and explanations
given to us, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of the
Act where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the standalone financial statements, as
required by the applicable accounting standards.

Based on our examination of the books of account and according to the information and explanations
given to us, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xiv) of the Order is
not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not entered into any non-
cash transactions with directors or persons connected with them. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the
Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required to be registered
under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

ForBSR & Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 101248W/W-100022

Sd/-
Manish Gupta
Partner

Place: Delhi Membership No. 095037
Date: 29 May 2020 ICAI UDIN No0:20095037AAAABI2298
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Annexure ‘B’ to the Independent Auditors’ report of even date on standalone financial statements of
Jubilant Life Sciences Limited.

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid standalone financial statements
under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013

Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements of Jubilant
Life Sciences Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference
to standalone financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31
March 2020, based on the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note”).

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial
statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred
to as “the Act”).

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
standalone financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements. Those Standards and
the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial
statements were established and maintained and whether such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls with reference to standalone financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of such internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Standalone Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's
internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements include those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of standalone financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition
of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the standalone financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Standalone Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements to future periods are subject to
the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

For BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 101248W/W-100022

Sd/-

Manish Gupta

Partner

Place: Delhi Membership No. 095037
Date: 29 May 2020 ICAI UDIN No:20095037AAAABI2298
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Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
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Jubilant Life Sciences Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2020
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Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2020
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Jubilant Life Sciences Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2020
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Jubilant Life Sciences Limited
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2020
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Jubilant Life Sciences Limited
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2020

* 3 135.39 million (31 March 2019: % 220.18 million) has restricted use.
**Refer note 16 (d) for changes in liabilities arising from financing activities and note 49 for non-cash activity during the year.

Notes:

1. Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in the Ind AS 7 "Statement of Cash Flows".
2. During the year, the Company paid in cash T 44.40 million (31 March 2019: ¥ 38.23 million) towards corporate social
responsibility (CSR) expenditure (included in donation-Refer note 42(a)).

212



Jubilant Life Sciences Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

Note 1. Corporate Information

Jubilant Life Sciences Limited (“the Company”) is a public limited company domiciled in India and incorporated under
the provisions of Companies Act, 1956. Its shares are listed on BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India
Limited. The registered office of the Company is situated at Bhartiagram, Gajraula, District Amroha, Uttar Pradesh —
244223,

The Company is an integrated global pharmaceutical and life sciences company engaged in pharmaceuticals, life science
ingredients and drug discovery and development solutions. The pharmaceuticals segment, through its wholly owned
subsidiary Jubilant Pharma Limited, is engaged in manufacture and supply of APIs, solid dosage formulations,
radiopharmaceuticals, allergy therapy products and contract manufacturing of sterile injectables and non-sterile products
through 6 USFDA approved manufacturing facilities in India, USA and Canada and a network of over 50 radio-
pharmacies in the US. The life science ingredients segment is engaged in specialty intermediates, nutritional products and
life science chemicals through 5 manufacturing facilities in India. The drug discovery and development solutions business
provides proprietary in-house innovation & collaborative research and partnership for out-licensing through 2 world class
research centers in India. The Company is well recognised as a ‘Partner of Choice’ by leading pharmaceuticals and life
sciences companies globally.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Company has filed with BSE Limited (BSE) and National Stock Exchange of
India Limited (NSE) the Composite Scheme of Arrangement for amalgamation of certain promoter controlled entities
into the Company and Demerger of the Life Science Ingredients business into the Resulting entity which shall be listed
on both the stock exchanges with a mirror shareholding. Upon receipt of no objection letters from BSE and NSE, in
January 2020 the Company has filed application for approval of the composite scheme of arrangement with National
Company Law Tribunal, Allahabad Bench. Pending approvals and other compliances, the financial statements of the
Company does not have impact of the composite scheme.

Note 2. Significant accounting policies

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements.
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year except for Ind AS 116 “Leases”
applied to all lease contracts existing on 1 April 2019 using the modified retrospective method and Appendix C,
“Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments” to Ind AS 12, “Income Taxes”. As a result, the comparative information has
not been restated which did not have any significant impact on the financial position or performance of the Company.
Also refer to respective accounting policies for further details.

(a)  Basis of preparation

6] Statement of compliance

These Standalone Financial Statements (“financial statements”) have been prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under Section
133 of the Companies Act, 2013, (“the Act”), relevant provisions of the Act and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India.
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All the amounts included in the financial statements are reported in millions of Indian Rupees (‘Rupees’ or ‘X’) and are
rounded to the nearest million, except per share data and unless stated otherwise.

The financial statements have been authorised for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on 29 May 2020.

(i)  Historical cost convention

These standalone financial statements have been prepared under historical cost convention on accrual basis, unless otherwise
stated.

(b)  Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current/ non-current classification.
An asset is treated as current when:

o Itis expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;

e [t is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

e tis expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period; or

e [t is cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting period.

The Company classifies all other assets as non-current.
A liability is current when:
e [t is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;
e It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;
o Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

e There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities respectively.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash
equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle for the purpose of current-non-current
classification of assets and liabilities.

(c) Property, plant and equipment (PPE) and intangible assets

(>i) Property, plant and equipment

Freehold land is carried at cost. All other items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, which includes
capitalised finance costs, less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment loss. Cost includes expenditure
that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. The cost of an item of a PPE comprises its purchase price
including import duty, and other non-refundable taxes or levies and any directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

working condition of its intended use. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.

Expenditure incurred on startup and commissioning of the project and/or substantial expansion, including the expenditure
incurred on trial runs (net of trial run receipts, if any) up to the date of commencement of commercial production are
capitalised. Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is
derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the reporting period in
which they are incurred.

Advances paid towards acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each Balance Sheet date, are shown
under other non-current assets and cost of assets not ready for intended use before the year end, are shown as capital work-
in-progress.

(i) Intangible assets

e Internally generated goodwill is not recognised as an asset. With regard to other internally generated intangible
assets:

- Expenditure on research activities, undertaken with the prospect of gaining new scientific or technical
knowledge and understanding, is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred.

- Development expenditure including regulatory cost and legal expenses leading to product registration/
market authorisation relating to the new and/or improved product and/or process development capitalised
only if development costs can be measured reliably, the product or process is technically and commercially
feasible, future economic benefits are probable, and the Company intends to and has sufficient resources to
complete development and to use the asset. The expenditure capitalised includes the cost of materials,
direct labour, overhead costs that are directly attributable to preparing the asset for its intended use, and
directly attributable finance costs (in the same manner as in the case of tangible fixed assets). Other
development expenditure is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred.

o Intangible assets that are acquired and implementation of software system are measured initially at cost.

e After initial recognition, an intangible asset is carried at its cost less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment loss. Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic
benefits from the specific asset to which it relates.
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(iii) Depreciation and amortisation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value

Depreciation is provided on straight line basis on the original cost/ acquisition cost of assets or other amounts substituted
for cost of fixed assets as per the useful life specified in Part 'C' of Schedule II of the Act, read with notification dated 29
August 2014 of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, except for the following classes of fixed assets which are depreciated
based on the internal technical assessment of the management as under:

Category of assets Management estimate of useful | Useful life as per Schedule
life I

Motor vehicles (Vehicles — Owned) 5 years 8 years

Motor vehicles under finance lease (Vehicles — Tenure of lease or 5 years 8 years

Leased) (before 31 March 2019) whichever is shorter

Computer servers and networks (included in 5 years 6 years

office equipment)

Dies and punches for manufacture of dosage 1-2 years 15 years
formulations (included in plant and equipment)

Employee perquisite related assets (except end 5 years, being the period of 10 years
user computers) (included in furniture and perquisite scheme
fixtures)

Leasehold land which qualifies as finance lease is amortised over the lease period on straight line basis (before 31 March 2019).

Software systems are being amortised over a period of five years being their useful life. Rights are amortised over the
useful life.

Depreciation and amortisation on property, plant and equipment and intangible assets added/disposed off during the year
has been provided on pro-rata basis with reference to the date/month of addition/disposal.

Depreciation and amortisation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and adjusted if appropriate.

(iv)  Derecognition

A property, plant and equipment and intangible assets is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use and disposal. Losses arising from retirement and gains or losses arising from disposal of a
tangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and
are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(d)  Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if it is highly probable that they will be recovered primarily through sale
rather than through continuing use. Such assets are generally measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value
less cost to sell. Losses on initial classification as held for sale and subsequent gains and losses on re-measurement are
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Once classified as held-for sale, property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are no longer amortised or depreciated.
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(e) Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company’s non-financial assets other than inventories and deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date to
determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount
is estimated.

For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows (i.e. corporate assets) are grouped together
into cash-generating units (CGUs). Each CGU represents the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows that are
largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs.

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the higher of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. Value in use
is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using a discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or CGU.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable amount.
Impairment loss recognised in respect of a CGU is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated
to the CGU, and then to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets of the CGU (or group of CGUs) on a pro rata basis.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not subsequently reversed. In respect of other assets for which impairment
loss has been recognised in prior periods, the Company reviews at reporting date whether there is any indication that the
loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. Such a reversal is made only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss
had been recognised.

® Financial instrument

A Financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity.

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market
place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the
asset.

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

e  Debt instruments at amortised cost

e  Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

e Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL)
e  Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)
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Debt instruments at amortised cost

A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to
hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
rate (EIR) method. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts
through the expected life of the financial instrument to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or the amortised
cost of the financial liability. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in other income in the Statement of
Profit and Loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. This category
generally applies to trade and other receivables.

Debt instrument at FVOCI

A ‘debt instrument’ is classified as at the FVOCI if the objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting
contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets, and the asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI.

Debt instruments included within the FVOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair
value. Fair value movements are recognised in the other comprehensive income (OCI). On derecognition of the asset,
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss. Interest earned
whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method.

Debt instrument at FVPL

FVPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorisation
as at amortised cost or as FVOCI, is classified as at FVPL. In addition, at initial recognition, the Company may
irrevocably elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortised cost or FVOCI criteria, as at FVPL.
However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency
(referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’).

Debt instruments included within the FVPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Equity investments

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading
and contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS 103 applies are
classified as at FVPL. For all other equity instruments, the Company may make an irrevocable election to present in other
comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The Company makes such election on an instrument-by-
instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument,
excluding dividends, are recognised in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to the Statement of Profit
and Loss, even on sale of investment. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss to retained
earnings.

Equity instruments included within the FVPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.
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Investments in subsidiaries

Equity investments in subsidiaries are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. Where an indication of
impairment exists, the carrying amount of the investment is assessed and written down immediately to its recoverable
amount. On disposal of investments in subsidiaries, the difference between net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amounts are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognises loss allowance using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financial assets which are not
fair valued through profit or loss. Loss allowance for trade receivables with no significant financing component is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. For all financial assets with contractual cash flows other than trade
receivable, ECLs are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL, unless there has been a significant increase in
credit risk from initial recognition in which case those are measured at lifetime ECL. The amount of ECL (or reversal) that
is required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date is recognised as an impairment gain or loss in the Statement of
Profit and Loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Company’s balance sheet) when:

e  The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

e The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to
pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’
arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the
Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement. In that
case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured
on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVPL. A financial liability is classified as at FVPL if it
is classified as held-for-trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities
at FVPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognised in Statement
of Profit and Loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss. Any gain
or loss on derecognition is also recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an
existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
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existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the
original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in
the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the Balance Sheet when, and only
when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a
net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

(g) Inventories

Inventories are valued at lower of cost or net realisable value except scrap, which is valued at net estimated realisable value.

The Company uses weighted average method to determine cost for all categories of inventories except for goods in transit
which is valued at specifically identified purchase cost. Cost includes all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition inclusive of non-refundable (adjustable)
taxes wherever applicable. The cost of work in progress and manufactured finished goods (manufactured) include direct
materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of variable and fixed production overheads, the latter being
allocated on the basis of normal operating capacity.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. The net realisable value of work-in-progress is determined
with reference to the selling prices of related finished products. Raw materials and other supplies held for use in the
production of finished products are not written down below cost, except in cases where material prices have declined and
it is estimated that the cost of the finished products will exceed their net realisable value. The comparison of cost and net
realisable value is made on an item-by-item basis.

(h)  Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent comprise cash at banks and on hand (including imprest) and short-term deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

(i) Provisions and contingencies

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation
that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected
future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the liability. Where discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is
recognised as a finance cost.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at
reporting date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When some or all of the
economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, the receivable is
recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be
measured reliably.
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Contingent liability

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but
probably will not, require an outflow of resources. When there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of
which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

3g) Revenue recognition

Effective 1 April 2018, the Company adopted IND AS 115 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” using the
cumulative catch-up transition method, applied to contracts that were not completed as at 1 April 2018. In accordance with
the cumulative catch-up transition method, the comparatives have not been retrospectively adjusted. There is no material
effect on adoption of Ind AS 115 on the financial statements.

Revenue from sale of products is recognised upon transfer of control of products to customers at the time of shipment to or
receipt of goods by the customers. Service income is recognised as and when the underlying services are performed. The
Company exercises judgment in determining whether the performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time or over a
period of time.

Revenues are measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, net of tax collected from customers and
remitted to government authorities such as Goods and services tax (GST), sales tax, excise duty, value added tax and
applicable discounts and allowances including expected sales return etc. The computation of these estimates using expected
value method involves significant judgment based on various factors including contractual terms, historical experience,
estimated inventory levels etc.

Contract assets are recognised when there is excess of revenue earned over billings on contracts. Contract assets are
classified as unbilled receivables (only act of invoicing is pending) when there is unconditional right to receive cash and
only passage of time is required as per contractual terms. Contract liabilities are recognised when there are billings in
excess of revenues. Contract liabilities relate to the advance received from customers and deferred revenue against which
revenue is recognised when or as the performance obligation is satisfied.

Income in respect of entitlement towards export incentives is recognised in accordance with the relevant scheme on
recognition of the related export sales. Such export incentives are recorded as part of other operating revenue.

(k)  Employee benefits

(i) Short-term employee benefits: All employee benefits falling due within twelve months from the end of the period
in which the employees render the related services are classified as short-term employee benefits, which include
benefits like salaries, wages, short term compensated absences, performance incentives, etc. and are recognised as
expenses in the period in which the employee renders the related service and measured accordingly.

(i)  Post-employment benefits: Post employment benefit plans are classified into defined benefits plans and defined
contribution plans as under:
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a) Gratuity

The Company has an obligation towards gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering eligible
employees. The plan provides for a lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death while in
employment or on termination of employment of an amount based on the respective employee's salary and
the tenure of employment. The liability in respect of gratuity is recognised in the books of account based on
actuarial valuation by an independent actuary. The gratuity liability for certain employees of the Company
is funded with Life Insurance Corporation of India.

b) Superannuation

Certain employees of the Company are also participants in the superannuation plan (‘the Plan'), a defined
contribution plan. Contribution made by the Company to the plan during the year is charged to Statement of
Profit and Loss.

c) Provident fund

e The Company makes contribution to the recognised provident fund - "VAM EMPLOYEES
PROVIDENT FUND TRUST" (a multiemployer trust) for most of its employees in India, which is a
defined benefit plan to the extent that the Company has an obligation to make good the shortfall, if
any, between the return from the investments of the trust and the notified interest rate. The Company's
obligation in this regard is determined by an independent actuary and provided for if the circumstances
indicate that the Trust may not be able to generate adequate returns to cover the interest rates notified
by the Government.

For other employees in India, provident fund is deposited with Regional Provident Fund
Commissioner. This is treated as defined contribution plan.

o Company's contribution to the provident fund is charged to Statement of Profit and Loss.

(iii)  Other long-term employee benefits:
Compensated absences:

As per the Company's policy, eligible leaves can be accumulated by the employees and carried forward to future periods
to either be utilised during the service, or encashed. Encashment can be made during service, on early retirement, on
withdrawal of scheme, at resignation and upon death of the employee. Accumulated compensated absences are treated as
other long-term employee benefits.

(iv)  Termination benefits:

Termination benefits are recognised as an expense when, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present obligation
that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation.

(v)  Actuarial valuation

The liability in respect of all defined benefit plans and other long term benefits is accrued in the books of account on the
basis of actuarial valuation carried out by an independent actuary using the Projected Unit Credit Method. The obligation
is measured at the present value of estimated future cash flows. The discount rates used for determining the present value
of obligation under defined benefit plans, is based on the market yields on Government securities as at the Balance Sheet
date, having maturity periods approximating to the terms of related obligations.
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Remeasurement gains and losses on other long term benefits are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year
in which they arise. Remeasurement gains and losses in respect of all defined benefit plans arising from experience
adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in other
comprehensive income. They are included in other equity in the Statement of Changes in Equity and in the Balance Sheet.
Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are
recognised immediately in profit or loss as past service cost. Gains or losses on the curtailment or settlement of any
defined benefit plan are recognised when the curtailment or settlement occurs. Any differential between the plan assets
(for a funded defined benefit plan) and the defined benefit obligation as per actuarial valuation is recognised as a liability
if it is a deficit or as an asset if it is a surplus (to the extent of the lower of present value of any economic benefits
available in the form of refunds from the plan or reduction in future contribution to the plan).

Past service cost is recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over the average
period until the benefits become vested. To the extent that the benefits are already vested immediately following the
introduction of, or changes to, a defined benefit plan, the past service cost is recognised immediately in the Statement of
Profit and Loss. Past service cost may be either positive (where benefits are introduced or improved) or negative (where
existing benefits are reduced).

a Share-based payments

The Company has adopted the policy to account for Employees Welfare Trust as a legal entity separate from the
Company but as a subsidiary of the Company. Any loan from the Company to the trust is accounted for as a loan in
accordance with its term.

The grant date fair value of options granted (net of estimated forfeiture) to employees of the Company is recognised as an
employee expense, and those granted to employees of subsidiaries is considered as the Company’s equity contribution
and is added to the carrying value of investment in the respective subsidiaries, with a corresponding increase in equity,
over the period that the employees become unconditionally entitled to the options. The expense is recorded for each
separately  vesting portion of the award as if the award was, in substance, multiple awards. The increase in equity
recognised in connection with share based payment transaction is presented as a separate component in equity under
“share based payment reserve”. The amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect the actual number of stock
options that vest. For the option awards, grant date fair value is determined under the option-pricing model (Black-
Scholes-Merton). Forfeitures are estimated at the time of grant and revised, if necessary, in subsequent periods if actual
forfeitures materially differ from those estimates.

Corresponding balance of a share based payment reserve is transferred to general reserve upon expiry of grants or upon
exercise of stock options by an employee, as the Company is operating the Employee Stock Option schemes through
Jubilant Employees Welfare Trust, which has purchased share from the secondary market.

(m) Finance costs

Finance costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Finance
cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the finance costs. Finance costs that are
directly attributable to the construction or production or development of a qualifying asset are capitalised as part of the cost
of that asset. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended
use or sale. All other finance costs are expensed in the period in which they occur.
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Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the finance costs eligible for capitalisation. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss over the period of the borrowings using
the effective interest method. Ancillary costs incurred in connection with the arrangement of borrowings are amortised over
the period of such borrowings.

Finance income consists of interest income. Interest income or expense is recognised using the effective interest method.
The ‘effective interest rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected
life of the financial instrument to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or the amortised cost of the financial
liability. In calculating interest income or expense, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of the
asset (when the asset is not credit-impaired) or to the amortised cost of the liability. However, for financial assets that have
become credit-impaired subsequent to initial recognition, interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate
to the amortised cost of the financial asset. If the asset is no longer credit-impaired, then the calculation of interest income
reverts to the gross basis.

(n)  Exceptional items

Exceptional items refer to items of income or expense within the statement of profit and loss from ordinary activities
which are non-recurring and are of such size, nature or incidence that their separate disclosure is considered necessary to
explain the performance of the Company.

(o) Income tax

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss except to the
extent that it relates to a business combination, or items recognised directly in equity or in OCI.

° Current tax:

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any
adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax payable or
receivable is the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after considering uncertainty
related to income taxes, if any. It is measured using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised
amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or simultaneously.

e Deferred tax:

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is not
recognised for:

- temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a
business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the time of the
transaction;

- temporary differences related to freehold land and investments in subsidiaries, to the extent that the
Company is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that
they will not reverse in the foreseeable future; and

- taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.
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Deferred tax assets (DTA) include Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws in India,
which is likely to give future economic benefits in the form of availability of set off against future income tax
liability.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible temporary differences
to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used. Deferred tax is
measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to the period when the asset is realised or the liability is
settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. The measurement
of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at
the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised
amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or simultaneously.

For operations carried out in SEZs, deferred tax assets or liabilities, if any, have been established for the tax
consequences of those temporary differences between the carrying values of assets and liabilities and their
respective tax bases that reverse after the tax holiday ends.

(p) Leases
Leases — Company as a lessee
Policy applicable from 1 April 2019

MCA vide its notification dated 30 March 2019, notified Ind AS 116 “Leases” which is effective for annual reporting
periods beginning on or after 1 April 2019. Ind AS 116 replaces existing lease guidance Ind AS 17 Leases. Ind AS 116
sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases for both lessees and lessors.
Ind AS 116 introduces a single, on-balance sheet lease accounting model for lessees. A lessee recognises a right-of-use
asset representing its right to use the underlying asset and a lease liability representing its obligation to make lease

payments.

The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if
the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.
To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether:
(1) the contact involves the use of an identified asset; (2) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from
use of the asset through the period of the lease; and (3) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

The Company’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for land, buildings, plant and machinery and vehicles which
typically run for a period of 3 to 25 years, with an option to renew the lease after that date. For certain leases, the
Company is restricted from entering into any sub-lease arrangements. At the date of commencement of the lease, the
Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a
lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-term leases). For these short-term leases, the
Company recognises the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.
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Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities includes the options to extend or terminate the lease when it is reasonably certain
that they will be exercised.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognised at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted
for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease
incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term
and useful life of the underlying asset. Right-of-use assets are tested for impairment whenever there is any indication that
their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. Impairment loss, if any, is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortised cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease
payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental
borrowing rates based on information available as at the date of commencement of the lease. Lease liabilities are
remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use asset if the Company changes its assessment of
whether it will exercise an extension or a termination option. Lease liability and right-of-use asset have been separately
presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have been classified as financing cash flows.

Ind AS 116 requires lessees to determine the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease adjusted with any option
to extend or terminate the lease, if the use of such option is reasonably certain. The Company makes an assessment on the
expected lease term on a lease-by-lease basis and thereby assesses whether it is reasonably certain that any options to
extend or terminate the contract will be exercised. In evaluating the lease term, the Company considers factors such as
any significant leasehold improvements undertaken over the lease term, costs relating to the termination of the lease and
the importance of the underlying asset to Company’s operations taking into account the location of the underlying asset
and the availability of suitable alternatives. The lease term in future periods is reassessed to ensure that the lease term
reflects the current economic circumstances.

Policy applicable before 1 April 2019

At the inception of each lease, the lease arrangement was classified as either a finance lease or an operating lease, based
on the substance of the lease arrangement.

Finance leases

Assets leased by the Company in its capacity as lessee where substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership vest in
the Company were classified as finance leases. A finance lease was recognised as an asset and a liability at the
commencement of the lease, at the lower of the fair value of the asset and the present value of the minimum lease
payments. Minimum lease payments made under finance leases were apportioned between the finance expense and the
reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance expense was allocated to each period during the lease term so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.
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Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership were not transferred to the Company as lessee
were classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the
lessor) were charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease unless the
payments were structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor’s expected
inflationary cost increases.

Transition to Ind AS 116

Effective 1 April 2019, the Company adopted Ind AS 116 “Leases” applied to all lease contracts existing on 1 April 2019
using the modified retrospective approach on the date of initial application. Consequently, the Company recorded the
lease liability at the present value of the lease payments discounted at the incremental borrowing rate and the right-of-use
asset an amount equal to the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to
that lease recognised in the Balance Sheet immediately before the date of initial application. Comparatives have not been
retrospectively adjusted.

On transition to Ind AS 116, the adoption of new standard resulted in recognition of right-of-use assets of ¥ 671.30
million and lease liabilities of ¥ 405.76 million with no material impact on the equity. The nature of expenses has
changed from lease rent in previous periods to depreciation expense for the right-of-use asset and finance cost for interest
accrued on lease liability. The effect of this adoption is insignificant on the profit for the year.

For transition, the Company has elected not to apply the requirements of Ind AS 116 to leases which are expiring within
12 months from the date of transition on a lease-by-lease basis. The Company also used practical expedient and therefore,
did not reassess, under Ind AS 116, whether a contracts is, or contains, a lease at the date of initial application. Further, as
a practical expedient, on a lease-by-lease basis, the Company relied on its assessment as at 31 March 2019 as to whether
leases are onerous applying Ind AS 37, Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets, as an alternative to
performing an impairment review. The Company has used a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with similar
characteristics. For leases that were classified as finance leases applying Ind AS 17, the carrying amount of the right-of-
use asset and the lease liability at the date of initial application is the carrying amount of the lease asset and lease liability
immediately before that date measured applying Ind AS 17. For those leases, the Company has accounted for the right-of-
use asset and the lease liability applying Ind AS 116 from the date of initial application.

(qQ) Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision
maker. The Chairman and Co-Chairman and Managing Director (CCMD) of the Company are responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, and accordingly, identified as the chief
operating decision maker. Revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, which are common to the enterprise as a whole and
are not allocable to segments on a reasonable basis, have been treated as "unallocated revenues/ expenses/ assets/
liabilities", as the case may be.
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(r) Foreign currency translation
(i) Functional and presentation currency

The functional currency of the Company is the Indian rupee. These financial statements are presented in Indian
rupees.

(ii) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at balance sheet date exchange rates are
generally recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was determined. Translation differences on assets and liabilities carried at fair value are reported
as part of the fair value gain or loss. For example translation differences on non-monetary assets such as equity
investments classified as FVOCI are recognised in other comprehensive income (OCI).

(s) Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and the Company will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to income are deferred and recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss over the period
necessary to match them with the costs that they are intended to compensate and presented within other operating revenue.

Government grants relating to the purchase of property, plant and equipment are included in non-current liabilities as
deferred income and are credited to Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over the expected lives of the
related assets and presented within other income.

(t) Earnings per share

@) Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:
o the profit attributable to owners of the Company

e by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for
bonus elements in equity shares issued during the year.

(i)  Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to take
into account:

o the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential equity
shares, and
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o the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming
the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares

(u)  Measurement of fair values

A number of the accounting policies and disclosures require measurement of fair values, for both financial and non-
financial assets and liabilities.

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation
techniques as follows:

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e.
as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

The Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. This includes a finance
team that has overall responsibility for overseeing all significant fair value measurements, including Level 3 fair values.

The finance team regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If third party information is
used to measure fair values, then the finance team assesses the evidence obtained from the third parties to support the
conclusion that these valuations meet the requirements of Ind AS, including the level in the fair value hierarchy in which
the valuations should be classified.

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as possible. If the
inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the
fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input
that is significant to the entire measurement.

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during
which the change has occurred.

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values used in preparing these financial statements is
included in the respective notes.

(v) Critical estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected. In particular, information
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about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting policies that have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements is included in the following notes.

. Assessment of useful life of property, plant and equipment and intangible asset — Note 2(c)
. Valuation of inventories — Note 2(g)

e Recognition of revenue and related accruals— Note 2(j)

. Fair value measurement — Note 2(u)

. Estimation of assets and obligations relating to employee benefits — Note 2(k) and 32

e Recognition and estimation of tax expense including deferred tax— Note 2(0), 8 and 30

. Estimated impairment of financial assets and non-financial assets — Note 2(e) and 2(f)

. Recognition and measurement of contingency: Key assumption about the likelihood and magnitude of an outflow
of resources — Note 38

. Lease term: whether the Company is reasonably certain to exercise extension options — Note 2(p) and 40.

The Company has considered the possible effects that may result from the pandemic relating to COVID-19 on the
carrying amounts of receivables, inventories, property, plant and equipment and intangible assets. In developing the
assumptions relating to the possible future uncertainties in the global economic conditions, the Company, as at the date of
approval of these financial statements, has used internal and external sources of information, including economic
forecasts and estimates from market sources, on the expected future performance of the Company. On the basis of
evaluation and current indicators of future economic conditions, the Company expects to recover the carrying amounts of
these assets and does not anticipate any impairment to these financial and non-financial assets. However, the impact
assessment of COVID-19 is a continuing process, given the uncertainties associated with its nature and duration. The
Company will continue to monitor any material changes to future economic conditions.
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Note 4: Other intangible assets and intangible assets under development

Notes:
(1) Refer note 39(a) for disclosure of contractual commitments for the acquisition of intangibles assets.
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Note 5: Non-current investments
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Note 6: Loans

Note 7: Other financial assets

Note:
(1) These deposits have restricted use.

(2) Including due by directors and private companies having common director aggregating to ¥ 9.54 million (31 March
2019: % 5.17 million)
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Note 8. Deferred tax

Deferred income tax reflect the net tax effects of temporary difference between the carrying amount of asset and liabilities

for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax purposes. Significant components of the Company’s
net deferred income tax are as follows:

Deferred tax assets:

Deferred tax liabilities:

Reflected in the Balance Sheet as follows:
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Reconciliation of deferred tax (liabilities) /assets (net):

DTA has not been recognized on temporary differences in relation to indexation benefit of investment in subsidiaries and
freehold land amounting to ¥ 4,472.50 million (31 March 2019: ¥ 4,205.51 million) and ¥ 76.65 million (31 March 2019:
% 72.61 million) respectively, as the Company is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference and
it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in foreseeable future.

Tax related contingencies- Refer note 38

Note 9: Other non-current assets

Note 10: Inventories
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Note 11: Trade receivables

Note 12 (a): Cash and cash equivalents

Note:
(1) % 54.97 million (31 March 2019: ¥ 54.73 million) has restricted use.

Note 12 (b): Other bank balances

Note:
(1) % 6.50 million (31 March 2019: ¥ 160.44 million) has restricted use.

Note 13: Other current assets

Note:

(1) Represents property, plant and equipment which are not considered for active use and are expected to be sold in due
course.
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Note 14: Equity share capital

Movement in equity share capital:

Terms and rights attached to equity shares:

The Company has only one class of shares referred to as equity shares having par value of ¥ 1 each. Holder of each equity
share is entitled to one vote per share. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be
entitled to receive any of the remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The
distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company:

Otbhers:

a) 114,835 (31 March 2019: 114,835) equity shares of I 1 each allotted on exercise of the vested stock options in
accordance with the terms of exercise under the "Jubilant Employees Stock Option Plan, 2005".

b) Under the Jubilant Employees Stock Option 2011 Plan as at 31 March 2020 — Nil (31 March 2019: 9,628) outstanding
options are convertible into Nil (31 March 2019: 9,628) shares. (Refer note 46).
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Note 15: Nature and purpose of other equity

e Capital reserve
Accumulated capital surplus not available for distribution of dividend and expected to remain invested
permanently and includes excess/shortfall of consideration over book value of net assets/liabilities transferred
under a common control transaction.

e  Securities premium
The unutilized accumulated excess of issue price over face value on issue of shares. This reserve is utilised in
accordance with the provisions of the Act.

e Capital redemption reserve
Capital redemption reserve represents the unutilized accumulated amount set aside at the time of redemption of
preference shares. This reserve is utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Act.

e Amalgamation reserve
Amalgamation reserve represents the unutilized accumulated surplus created at the time of amalgamation of
another company with the Company. This reserve is not available for distribution of dividend and is expected to
remain invested permanently.

e General reserve
This represents appropriation of profit by the Company and is available for distribution of dividend.

e Debenture redemption reserve
The Company is required to create a debenture redemption reserve out of the profits prior to the redemption of
debentures. This reserve is available for distribution of dividend post redemption of debentures.

e Share based payment reserve

The fair value of the equity settled share based payment transactions with employees is recognised in Statement
of Profit and Loss with corresponding credit to share based payment reserve. Further, equity settled share based
payment transaction with employees of subsidiary is recognised in investment of subsidiaries with
corresponding credit to Share based payment reserve. Corresponding balance of a share based payment reserve
is transferred to general reserve upon expiry of grants or upon exercise of stock options by an employee, as the
Company is operating the Employee Stock Option schemes through Jubilant Employees Welfare Trust, which
has purchased share from the secondary market.

e Retained earnings
Retained earnings represent the amount of accumulated earnings of the Company and re-measurement
differences on defined benefit plans.

e Equity instrument through OCI
The Company has elected to recognize changes in the fair value of certain investments in equity securities in
other comprehensive income. These changes are accumulated within the equity instrument through OCI within
equity. The Company transfers amount therefrom to retained earnings when the relevant equity securities are
derecognized.
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Note 16 (a): Non-current borrowings

Note 16 (b): Current borrowings

16 a. Nature of security of non-current borrowings and other terms of repayment

16(a)(i) Indian rupee term loans amounting to I 7,450.00 million (31 March 2019: to ¥ 1,575 million) from The
Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited, HDFC Limited, ICICI Bank Limited, Axis Bank
Limited and Non-Convertible Debentures amounting to ¥ Nil (31 March 2019: to ¥ 7,450 million) are secured by
a first pari-passu charge created/to be created amongst the lenders by way of:

1) First pari passu charge on all the immovable fixed assets owned by the Company, situated at
Bhartiagram, Tehsil Dhanora, District Amroha, Uttar Pradesh, India (“Immovable Secured Assets™),
but excluding the immovable fixed assets described in (A) below (“Excluded Immovable Assets™). The
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A.

2)

3)

details of the Immoveable Secured Assets to be charged/mortgaged to secure the Facilities is more
particular described in (B) below.

Excluded Immovable Assets:

(1) Land measuring 90,124.24 square meters together with all the buildings and structures thereon situated
in the revenue estate of Village Naipura Khadar and Tigariya Bhoor, Tehsil Dhanora, District Amroha, Uttar
Pradesh, India, which land is covered under common title deeds with other group companies of the
Company;

(2) Land measuring 5.56 acres (equivalent to 2.253 hectares) together with all the buildings and structures
thereon situated in the revenue estate of Village Fazalpur Gosai, Tehsil Dhanora, District Amroha, Uttar
Pradesh, India; and

(3) Leasehold land, being plot no. A-4/2 measuring 157,509 square meters, together with all the buildings
and structures thereon situated in UPSIDC Industrial Area II, Gajraula, Tehsil Dhanora, District Amroha,
Uttar Pradesh, India, which land is covered under common lease deed with other group companies of the
Company;

Immovable Secured Assets:

(1) Land admeasuring 32.77 Acres or 13.268 Hectares situated in the revenue estate of Villages Naipura
Khader, Tehsil Hasanpur (now Pargana & Tehsil Dhanora), District Moradabad (now District Amroha),
Uttar Pradesh, together with buildings and structures thereon and all plant and machinery attached to the
earth or permanently fastened to anything attached to the earth;

(2) Land admeasuring 154.28 Acres or 62.448 Hectares situated in the revenue estate of Village Tigariya
Bhoor, Tehsil Dhanera, District Amroha, Uttar Pradesh, together with buildings and structures thereon and
all plant and machinery attached to the earth or permanently fastened to anything attached to the earth;

(3) Land admeasuring 95.46 Acres or 38.648 Hectares situated in the revenue estate of Village Shahbajpur
Dor, Tehsil & Pargana Hasanpur (now Dhanera), District Amroha (early in Moradabad), Uttar Pradesh,
together with buildings and structures thereon and all plant and machinery attached to the earth or
permanently fastened to anything attached to the earth;

(4) Land admeasuring 28.904 Hectares or 71.39 Acres, situated in the revenue estate of Village Rasoolpur
Khader, Tehsil Dhanaura, District Moradabad (now District Amroha), Uttar Pradesh, together with
buildings and structures thereon and all plant and machinery attached to the earth or permanently fastened to
anything attached to the earth;

(5) Land admeasuring 48,576 Sq.Mts. or 12 Acres or 4.856 Hectares situated in the revenue estate of
Villages Sadullapur, Naipura Khadar, Sahabazpur Dor, Tehsil Hasanpur (now Pargana & Tehsil Dhanora,),
District Amroha, Uttar Pradesh, together with buildings and structures thereon and all plant and machinery
attached to the earth or permanently fastened to anything attached to the earth.

First pari passu charge over entire movable fixed assets of the company, both present and future
excluding movable assets of Indian Branded Pharmaceuticals (IBP) ,

First pari passu charge over the land and building of the office premises located at 1A, Sector 16A, Noida-
Uttar Pradesh-201301.
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16(a)(ii) Indian rupee term loan amounting to ¥ 3750 million (31 March 2019: ¥ Nil) from ICICI Bank Limited is
repayable in 16 structured quarterly installments from March 2021.

16(a)(iii) Indian rupee term loan amounting to I 1350 million (31 March 2019: ¥ Nil) from The Hongkong and Shanghai
Banking Corporation Limited is repayable in 16 equal quarterly installments from April 2021.

16(a)(iv) Indian rupee term loan amounting to ¥ 2350 million (31 March 2019: ¥ Nil) from HDFC Limited is repayable in
8 structured half yearly installments from July 2022.

16(a)(v) Non-convertible debentures amounting to ¥ Nil (31 March 2019: ¥ 3,950.00 million repayable in three yearly
installments) has been fully redeemed during the year as given below
a.  8.47% Non-convertible debentures of 31,000 million has been repaid during the year.
b.  8.65% Non-convertible debentures of I 1,500 million has been repaid during the year.
c.  8.88% Non-convertible debentures of ¥ 1,450 million has been repaid during the year.

16(a)(vi) Non-convertible debentures amounting to ¥ Nil (31 March 2019: ¥ 3,500 million repayable in three yearly
installments) has been fully redeemed during the year. as given below
a.  8.95% Non-convertible debentures of ¥ 1,000 million has been repaid during the year.
b.  9.10% Non-convertible debentures of ¥ 1,000 million has been repaid during the year.
c.  9.26% Non-convertible debentures of I 1,500 million has been repaid during the year

16(a)(vii) Indian rupee term loan amounting to ¥ Nil (31 March 2019: ¥ 1,575.00 million repayable in three half yearly
installments from March 2021) from Axis Bank Limited has been fully repaid during the year.

16(a)(viii) Term loans from subsidiaries are repayable up to five years from the date of respective disbursement and carry
interest rate ranging from 6.25% to 8.75% (31 March 2019: 6.75 % to 8.75% per annum).

16(a)(ix) Finance lease obligations are secured by hypothecation of specific assets taken under such lease. The same are
repayable within five years (before 31 March 2019).

16(a)(x) The term loans carry floating interest rate calculated in accordance with the terms of the arrangement which is a
specified benchmark rate (reset at periodic intervals), adjusted for agreed spread. During the year ended 31
March 2020, the interest rate on Indian currency loans range from 8.45% to 9.90% per annum (31 March 2019:
8.00 % to 10.09% per annum).

16 b. Nature of security of Current borrowings and other terms of repayment

16(b)(1) Working capital facilities (including cash credit) sanctioned by consortium of banks and notified financial
institutions are secured by a first charge by way of hypothecation, ranking pari-passu inter-se banks, of the entire
book debts and receivables and inventories both present and future, of the Company wherever the same may be
or be held. Working capital loans are repayable as per terms of agreement within one year

16(b)(ii) Short term loans are availed in Indian rupees and in foreign currency which carry floating interest rate calculated

in accordance with the terms of the arrangement which is a specified benchmark rate (reset at periodic intervals),
adjusted for agreed spread. During the year ended 31 March 2020, the interest rate on Indian currency loans and
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foreign currency loans range from 5.34% to 13.55% per annum (31 March 2019: 6.10 % to 10.60% per annum)
and 2.55% to 5.52% per annum (31 March 2019: 1.44% to 5.58% per annum) , respectively

The composition of property, plant and equipment and current assets as mentioned above are defined in detail in

the respective financing/credit arrangements.

16 c. Assets pledged as security

Assets with following carrying amounts are pledged as collateral/security against loans and borrowings at year end.

16 d. Reconciliation of movements of liabilities to cash flows arising from financing activities

Note 17: Provisions
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Note 18: Trade payables

Note 19: Other current financial liabilities

* Includes outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises of ¥ 21.89 million (31 March 2019: ¥ 63.38 million).

Note 20: Other current liabilities
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Note 21: Revenue from operations

Disaggregation of revenue

In the following table, revenue is disaggregated by primary geographical market and major products & service lines.

Reconciliation of the disaggregated revenue with the Company’s reportable segments (refer note 36).

Contract Balances

The amount of ¥ 55.27 million and ¥ 71.77 million recognised in contract liabilities at the beginning of the year has been
recognised as revenue for the year ended 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019, respectively.
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Reconciliation of revenue recognized with the contracted price is as follows:

The reduction towards variable consideration comprises of volume discounts, price discounts etc.

Note 22: Other income

Note 23: Cost of materials consumed

Note 24: Purchase of stock-in-trade
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Note 25: Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock-in-trade and work-in-progress

Note 26: Employee benefits expense

Note 27: Finance costs

Note:
(1) Refer note 44 for finance costs capitalised.

Note 28: Depreciation and amortisation expense
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Note 29: Other expenses

Note 29(a): Details of payment to statutory auditors (excluding applicable taxes and including out of pocket expenses)

Note 29 (b) Research and development expenses (excluding finance cost, depreciation and amortisation) comprises
as mentioned here under:
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Note 30: Income tax

The major components of income tax expense for the years ended 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019 are:

Reconciliation between average effective tax rate and applicable tax rate for the year ended 31 March 2020 and
31 March 2019:

*During the current year, in accordance with Taxation Laws (Amendment) Act, 2019, the Company has evaluated the net
deferred tax liability as at 31 March 2019, and, based on estimates, has written back an amount to the extent of ¥ 500.11
million to the statement of profit and loss.
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Note 31: Micro, small and medium enterprises

There are no micro, small and medium enterprises, to whom the company owes dues, which are outstanding for more
than 45 days as at the end of year. The information as required to be disclosed in relation to micro, small and medium
enterprises has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with
the Company.

Note 32: Employee benefits in respect of the Company have been calculated as under:

(A) Defined Contribution Plans

The Company has certain defined contribution plan such as provident fund, employee state insurance, employee pension
scheme, employee superannuation fund wherein specified percentage is contributed to these plans. During the year, the
Company has contributed following amounts to:

(1) For certain employees where Provident Fund is deposited with government authority e.g. Regional Provident Fund
Commissioner.

(B) Defined Benefit Plans

i.  Gratuity
In accordance with Ind AS 19 “Employee Benefits”, an actuarial valuation has been carried out in respect of gratuity.
The discount rate assumed is 6.80% p.a. (31 March 2019: 7.65% p.a.) which is determined by reference to market
yield at the Balance Sheet date on Government bonds. The retirement age has been considered at 58 years (31 March
2019: 58 years) and mortality table is as per [ALM (2012-14) (31 March 2019: TALM (2006-08)).
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The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation is 10% p.a. for first three years and 6% p.a.
thereafter (31 March 2019: 10% p.a. for first three years and 6% p.a. thereafter), taking into account of inflation,
seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.

The plans assets are maintained with Life Insurance Corporation of India in respect of gratuity scheme for certain
employees of a unit of the Company. The details of investments maintained by Life Insurance Corporation are not
available with the Company, hence not disclosed. The expected rate of return on plan assets is 6.80 % p.a. (31 March

2019: 7.65 % p.a.).

Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of the present value of the defined benefit obligation:

Fair value of plan assets**:

** In respect of one location, the plan assets were invested in insurer managed funds.

Reconciliation of the present value of defined benefit obligation and the fair value of the plan assets:

The Company’s best estimate of contribution during next year is ¥ 95.39 million (31 March 2019: ¥ 93.92 million)
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Expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss under employee benefits expense:

Amount recognised in the other comprehensive income:

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective
assumptions occurring at the end of the year and may not be representative of the actual change. It is based on a
change in the key assumption while holding all other assumptions constant.
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The table below summarises the maturity profile of the defined benefit obligation:

ii. Provident Fund:

The Company makes monthly contributions to provident fund managed by trust for qualifying employees. Under the
scheme, the Company is required to contribute a specified percentage of the payroll costs to fund the benefits. As per
Ind AS 19 on “Employee Benefits”, employer established provident fund trusts are treated as defined benefit plans,
since the Company is obliged to meet interest shortfall, if any, with respect to covered employees. The total liability
of ¥ Nil (31 March 2019: % Nil) as worked out by the actuary has been allocated to each entity based on the corpus
value of each entity as at 31 March 2020. Accordingly, liability of ¥ Nil (31 March 2019: ¥ Nil) has been allocated to
Company and ¥ Nil (31 March 2019: % Nil) has been charged to Statement of Profit and Loss during the year.

Actuarial assumptions made to determine interest rate guarantee on exempt provident fund liabilities are as
follows:

The Company has contributed ¥ 96.29 million to provident fund (31 March 2019: ¥ 92.82 million) for the year.

(C) Other long term benefits (Compensated absences):
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Note 33.Fair value measurements

The following methods / assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

(a) Fair valuation of financial assets and liabilities with short term maturities is considered as approximate to
respective carrying amount due to the short term maturities of these instruments. Further, for the current year
the fair value disclosure of lease liabilities is not required.

(b) Fair valuation of non-current financial assets has been disclosed to be same as carrying value as there is no
significant difference between carrying value and fair value.

(c) Fair value of quoted financial instruments (listed debentures) is based on quoted market price at the reporting
date. The fair value of other long-term borrowings is estimated by discounting future cash flows using current
rates (applicable to instruments with similar terms, currency, credit risk and remaining maturities) to discount
the future payouts.

(d) The fair value is determined by using the valuation model/technique with observable/non-observable inputs and
assumptions.

There are no transfers between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 during the year ended 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019.

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurement:
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Note 34. Financial risk management

Risk management framework

The Company’s board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk
management framework.

The Company, through three layers of defense namely policies and procedures, review mechanism and assurance aims to
maintain a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles and
obligations. The Audit committee of the Board with top management oversees the formulation and implementation of the
risk management policies. The risks are identified at business unit level and mitigation plan are identified, deliberated
and reviewed at appropriate forums.

The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:
- credit risk (see (1));

- liquidity risk (see (ii)); and
- market risk (see (iii)).

i. Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet
its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Company’s receivables from customers, loans and investments.

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit risk exposure.
Trade receivables and other financial assets

The Company has established a credit policy under which each new customer is analysed individually for
creditworthiness before the payment and delivery terms and conditions are offered. The Company’s review includes
external ratings, if they are available, financial statements, credit agency information, industry information and business
intelligence. Sale limits are established for each customer and reviewed annually. Any sales exceeding those limits
require approval from the appropriate authority as per policy.

In monitoring customer credit risk, customers are grouped according to their credit characteristics, including whether they
are an individual or a legal entity, whether they are an institutional, dealers or end-user customer, their geographic
location, industry, trade history with the Company and existence of previous financial difficulties.

Expected credit loss with respect to trade receivables:

With respect to trade receivables, based on internal assessment which is driven by the historical experience/ current facts
available in relation to default and delays in collection thereof, the credit risk for trade receivables is considered low. The
Company estimates its allowance for trade receivable using lifetime expected credit loss. The balance past due for more
than 6 month (net of expected credit loss allowance), excluding receivable from group companies is ¥ 5.32 million
(31 March 2019: % 2.01 million).

Movement in the expected credit loss allowance of trade receivables are as follows:

* Assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery, such as a debtor declaring bankruptcy or
failing to engage in a payment plan with the Company.
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Expected credit loss with respect to other financial asset:

With regards to all financial assets with contractual cash flows other than trade receivable, management believes these to
be high quality assets with negligible credit risk. The management believes that the parties, from which these financial
assets are recoverable, have strong capacity to meet the obligations and where the risk of default is negligible and
accordingly no provision for excepted credit loss has been provided on these financial assets. Break up of financial assets
other than trade receivables have been disclosed in Balance Sheet.

ii. Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its
financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company’s approach to managing
liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due, under
both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s
reputation.

The Company’s treasury department is responsible for managing the short term and long term liquidity requirements.
Short term liquidity situation is reviewed daily by treasury department. Longer term liquidity position is reviewed on a
regular basis by the Board of Directors and appropriate decisions are taken according to the situation.

Exposure to liquidity risk

The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date. The amounts are gross
and undiscounted and exclude the impact of netting agreements.

Note:

(1) Carrying amount presented as net of unamortised transaction cost.
(2) Contractual cash flows exclude interest payable.
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iii. Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates that will affect the
Company’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to
manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return.

Currency risk

The Company is exposed to currency risk to the extent that there is a mismatch between the currencies in which sales,
purchases and borrowings are denominated and the functional currency of the Company. The currencies in which the
Company is exposed to risk are USD, EUR, CAD and Other.

The Company follows a natural hedge driven currency risk mitigation policy to the extent possible. Any residual risk is
evaluated and appropriate risk mitigating steps are taken, including but not limited to, entering into forward contract and
interest rate swap.

Exposure to currency risk

The summary quantitative data about the Company’s exposure to currency risk as reported to the management of the
Company is as follows:

Sensitivity analysis

A reasonably possible strengthening (weakening) of the EUR, USD, CAD and other against all other currencies at year
end would have affected the measurement of financial exposure denominated in a foreign currency and affected profit or
loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain
constant and ignores any impact on forecast sales and purchases.
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Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. The Company is exposed to interest rate risk because funds are borrowed at both fixed
and floating interest rates. Interest rate risk is measured by using the cash flow sensitivity for changes in variable interest
rate. The borrowings of the Company are principally denominated in INR and USD with a mix of fixed and floating rates
of interest. The Company has exposure to interest rate risk, arising principally on changes in base lending rate and
LIBOR rates. The risk is managed by the Company by maintaining an appropriate mix between fixed and floating rate

borrowings.
Exposure to interest rate risk

The interest rate profile of the Company’s interest-bearing financial instruments as reported to the management of the

Company is as follows:

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on the exposure to interest rates for floating rate liabilities
assuming the amount of the liability outstanding at the year-end was outstanding for the whole year.

If interest rates had been 25 basis points higher / lower and all other variables were held constant, the Company’s profit
before tax for the year ended 31 March 2020 would decrease / increase by ¥ 28.62 million (31 March 2019: ¥ 13.86
million). This is mainly attributable to the Company’s exposure to interest rates on its floating rate borrowings.
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Note 35.Capital management
(a) Risk management
The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to:

e safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for its shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders, and

e maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt. Consistent with others in the industry, the
Company monitors capital on the basis of the following gearing ratio:

‘Net debt’ (total borrowings net of cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances) divided by ‘Total equity’ (as
shown in the Balance Sheet).

The gearing ratios were as follows:

(b) Dividends

Note 36. Segment information

Business Segments

The Chairman and Co-Chairman and Managing Director of the Company have been identified as the Chief Operating
Decision Maker (CODM) as defined by Ind AS 108, Operating Segments. Operating Segments have been defined and
presented based on the regular review by the CODM to assess the performance of each segment and to make decision
about allocation of resources. Accordingly, the Company has determined reportable segment by nature of its products and
services, which are as follows:

a. Life Sciences Ingredients: (i) Specialty Intermediates, (ii) Nutritional Products and (iii) Life Science
Chemicals.
b. Pharmaceuticals: India Branded Pharmaceuticals.
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The Company prepares its segment information in conformity with the accounting policies adopted for preparing and
presenting the financial statements of the Company as a whole.

No operating segments have been aggregated to form the above reportable operating segments.

Common allocable costs are allocated to each segment according to the relative contribution of each segment to the total
common costs.

Revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities which relate to the Company as a whole and not allocable to segments on
reasonable basis have been included under ‘unallocated revenue / expenses / assets / liabilities’.

Finance costs and fair value gains and losses on financial assets are not allocated to individual segments as the underlying
instruments are managed on a Company basis.

Borrowings, current taxes, deferred taxes and certain financial assets and liabilities are not allocated to the segments and
have been included under ‘unallocated assets / liabilities’.

Information related to each reportable segment is set out below. Segment results (profit/(loss) before interest and tax) is

used to measure performance because management believes that this information is most relevant in evaluating the results
of the respective segments relative to other entities that operate in the same industries.
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*Non-current assets are excluding financial instruments and deferred tax assets.
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Note 37. Related Party Disclosures
1. Related parties where control exists or with whom transactions have taken place.

a) Subsidiaries including step-down subsidiaries

Jubilant Pharma Limited, Draximage Limited, Cyprus, Draximage Limited, Ireland, Jubilant DraxImage (USA) Inc.,
Jubilant DraxImage Inc.,6981364 Canada Inc., Draximage (UK) Limited, Jubilant Pharma Holdings Inc., Jubilant
Clinsys Inc., Cadista Holdings Inc. (Merged into Jubilant Pharma Holdings Inc. w.e.f. 31 March 2020),Jubilant
Cadista Pharmaceuticals Inc., Jubilant Life Sciences International Pte. Limited, HSL Holdings Inc.(Merged into
Jubilant Pharma Holdings Inc. w.e.f. 31 March 2020), Jubilant HollisterStier LLC, Jubilant Life Sciences (Shanghai)
Limited, Jubilant Pharma NV, Jubilant Pharmaceuticals NV, PSI Supply NV, Jubilant Life Sciences (USA) Inc.,
Jubilant Life Sciences (BVI) Limited, Jubilant Biosys (BVI) Limited (Merged into Jubilant Life Sciences (BVI)
Limited w.e.f. 14 November 2019), Jubilant Biosys (Singapore) Pte. Limited (Amalgamated with Jubilant Drug
Development Pte. Limited w.e.f. 27 March 2020), Jubilant Biosys Limited, Jubilant Discovery Services LLC, Jubilant
Drug Development Pte. Limited, Jubilant Chemsys Limited, Jubilant Clinsys Limited, Jubilant Infrastructure Limited,
Jubilant First Trust Healthcare Limited, Jubilant Pharma Trading Inc. (Merged into Jubilant Pharma Holdings Inc.
w.e.f. 14 December 2018), Jubilant Innovation Pte. Limited, Jubilant DraxImage Limited, Jubilant Innovation (India)
Limited, Jubilant Innovation (USA) Inc., Jubilant HollisterStier Inc., Draxis Pharma LLC, Drug Discovery and
Development Solutions Limited, TrialStat Solutions Inc. (Formerly Jubilant Drug Discovery & Development Services
Inc.), Vanthys Pharmaceutical Development Private Limited, Jubilant Generics Limited, Jubilant Life Sciences NV,
Jubilant Pharma Australia Pty Limited, Jubilant Draximage Radiopharmacies Inc., Jubilant Pharma SA (Pty) Limited
(w.e.f. 14 February 2019), Jubilant Therapeutics India Limited (w.e.f. 20 March 2019), Jubilant Therapeutics Inc.
(w.e.f. 19 February 2019), Jubilant Business Services Limited (w.e.f. 28 March 2019), Jubilant Episcribe LLC (w.e.f.
28 March 2019), Jubilant Epicore LLC (w.e.f. 28 March 2019), Jubilant Prodel LLC (w.e.f. 28 March 2019), Jubilant
Epipad LLC (w.e.f. 28 March 2019), Jubilant Pharma UK Limited (w.e.f. 17 April 2019), Jubilant LSI Limited (w.e.f.
23 October 2019), Jubilant Employee Welfare Trust.

b) Other entities where control exists:

Jubilant HollisterStier General Partnership Canada, Draximage General Partnership Canada (controlled through
subsidiaries/step down subsidiaries).

¢) Key management personnel (KMP) and related entities:

Mr. Hari S. Bhartia, Mr. S Sridhar, Ms. Sudha Pillai, Dr.Ashok Misra, Mr. Sankaraiah Rajagopal, Mr. Rajesh Kumar
Srivastava, Mr. Sushil Kumar Roongta, Mr. Vivek Mehra, Mr. Arun Seth (w.e.f. 22 October 2018), Mr. Anant Pande
(w.e.f. 22 October 2018), Mr. Rajiv Shah.

Jubilant Enpro Private Limited, JOGPL Private Limited, Jubilant FoodWorks Limited, Jubilant Industries Limited,
Jubilant Agri and Consumer Products Limited, Jubilant Consumer Private Limited.

d) Others:

Vam Employees Provident Fund Trust, Jubilant Bhartia Foundation, Vam Officers Superannuation Fund.
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2. Transactions with related parties
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* As the liabilities for the gratuity and compensated absences are provided on an actuarial basis, and calculated for the
Company as a whole, the said liabilities pertaining specifically to KMP are not known and hence, not included in the

above table.

Breakup of remuneration to key management personnel were as follows:-

# Commission payable is subject to the approval of shareholders in the annual general meeting.
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Note 38.Contingent liabilities to the extent not provided for:

Claims against the Company, disputed by the Company, not acknowledged as debt:

The above does not include all other obligations resulting from claims, legal pronouncements having financial impact
in respect of which the Company generally performs the assessment based on the external legal opinion and the
amount of which cannot be reliably estimated.

Future cash outflows in respect of the above matters are determinable only on receipt of judgments/decisions pending
at various stages/forums.

Additionally, the Company is involved in other disputes, lawsuits, claims, governmental and/ or regulatory
inspections, inquiries, investigations and proceedings, including commercial matters that arise from time to time in the
ordinary course of business.

The Company believes that none of above matters, either individually or in aggregate, are expected to have any
material adverse effect on its financial statements.

Note 39. Commitments as at year end

a) Capital Commitments:

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account (net of advances) ¥ 241.16 million and
% 54.73 million (31 March 2019: % 724.00 million and ¥ Nil) for property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets, respectively.

b) Other Commitments:

Export obligation under Advance License Scheme on duty free import of specific raw materials, remaining
outstanding is ¥ 1,029.61 million (31 March 2019: ¥ 2,213.31 million).
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Note 40.Leases
Leases under Ind AS 116 for the year ended 31 March 2020

The details of the right-of-use assets held by the Company is as follows:

Additions to the right-of-use assets during the year ended 31 March 2020 were I 76.72 million.

Amount recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss:

Amount recognised in statement of cash flows:

The weighted average incremental borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities as at 1 April 2019 is 9.16%.

The difference between the operating lease commitments disclosed applying Ind AS 17 as at 31 March 2019 in the
financial statements for the year then ended and the lease liabilities recognised as at 1 April 2019 in these financial
statements is primarily on account of inclusion of extension and termination options reasonably certain to be exercised
and exclusion of short-term leases for which the Company recognises the lease payments as an operating expense on a
straight-line basis over the term of the lease, in measuring the lease liability in accordance with Ind AS 116
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Leases under Ind AS 17 for the year ended 31 March 2019:

(i)

(i)

(1i1)

Operating lease payments under cancellable leases:

The Company has significant operating lease arrangements which are non-cancellable for a period up to 25 years.
The leases have varying terms, escalation clauses and renewal rights. On renewal, the terms of the leases are
renegotiated.

The schedule of future minimum lease rental payments in respect of non-cancellable operating leases is set out
below:

Assets acquired under finance lease:

Future minimum lease payments and their present values under finance leases in respect of vehicles are as follows:

There is no element of contingent rent or sub lease payments. The Company has option to purchase the assets at
the end of the lease term. There are no restrictions imposed by these lease arrangements regarding dividend,
additional debt and further leasing.
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Note 41.Disclosure pursuant to section 186(4) of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of unsecured loans to subsidiary
companies [Refer note 37]:

Note 42.(a) Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) expense

(1) Included in donation — refer note 29

(b) Donation includes ¥ 55.00 million (31 March 2019 ¥ 30.00 million) to Prudent Electoral Trust and ¥ 30.00 million
(31 March 2019 ¥ Nil) towards purchase of Electoral Bonds during the year.

Note 43.Government grant recoverable ¥ 112.39 million (31 March 2019: ¥ 126.04 million) and government grant
recognized < 335.96 million (31 March 2019: ¥ 290.35 million) in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Note 44. During the year, finance costs amounting to I 105.45 million (31 March 2019: ¥ 115.82 million) has been
capitalized in property, plant and equipment, calculated using capitalisation rate of 7.85% (31 March 2019: 8.40%).

Note 45.The Company has established a comprehensive system of maintenance of information and documents as
required by the transfer pricing legislation under sections 92-92F of the Income-tax Act, 1961. Since the law requires
existence of such information and documentation to be contemporaneous in nature, the Company is in the process of
updating the documentation for the specified domestic transactions entered into with the specified persons and the
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international transactions entered into with the associated enterprises during the financial year and expects such records to
be in existence before the due date of filing of income tax return. The management is of the opinion that its specified
domestic transactions and international transactions are at arm’s length so that the aforesaid legislation will not have any
impact on the financial statements, particularly on the amount of tax expense and that of provision for taxation.

Note 46. Employee Stock Option Scheme
The Company has a stock option plan in place namely “JLL Employees Stock Option Plan, 2011” (“Plan 20117).

The Nomination, Remuneration and Compensation Committee (‘Committee’) of the Board of Directors which comprises
a majority of Independent Directors is responsible for administration and supervision of the Stock Option Plans.

Under Plan 2011, each option, upon vesting, shall entitle the holder to acquire one equity share of I 1 each. Options
granted will vest gradually over a period of 3 years from the grant date. Vesting of Options is a function of achievement
of performance criteria or any other criteria, as specified by the Committee and communicated in the grant letter.

There were no options granted during the year ended 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019, accordingly disclosures as
required under Ind AS 102 w.r.t. weighted average fair value of stock options granted during the year is not applicable.

Up to 31 March 2019, the Trust has purchased 6,363,506 equity shares of the Company from the open market, out of
interest free loan provided by the Company, of which 2,879,277 shares were transferred to the employees on exercise of
Options. Further, during the year ended 31 March 2019, in order to comply with SEBI (Share Based Employee Benefits)
Regulations, 2014, Jubilant Employees Welfare Trust sold 3,474,601 equity shares of the Company representing shares
which were not backed by stock option grants to employees. The Trust is also holding as at 31 March 2020 Nil (31 March
2019: 170,364) equity shares of Jubilant Industries Limited issued to it in accordance with the Scheme of Amalgamation
and Demerger amongst the Company, Jubilant Industries Limited and others, which were sold during the year ended 31
March 2020.

The movement in the equity shares held by trust:
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The movement in the stock options under “Plan 2011”, during the year, is set out below:

Under Plan 2011

The weighted average share price for share options exercised during the year ended 31 March 2020 is ¥ 536.92 (31 March
2019:% 765.19).

The Company has granted following stock options to certain senior executives of its subsidiaries/step down subsidiaries
under these stock option schemes:

Under Plan 2011, options outstanding at the end of the year:

* Represents options outstanding out of options granted to employees of the Company which were transferred to Jubilant
Generics Limited on account of sale of businesses.

Fair value of option granted

The weighted average fair value of options granted for Plan 2011 was ¥ 84.90 per option. The fair value at grant date is
determined using the Black-Scholes-Merton model which takes into account the exercise price, the term of the option, the
share price at grant date, expected price volatility of the underlying share, the expected dividend yield and the risk free
interest rate for the term of the option. The following tables list the inputs to models used for fair valuation of the plans:
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Expected volatility has been based on an evaluation of the historical volatility of the share price, particularly over the
historical period commensurate with the expected term. The expected term of the instruments has been based on historical
experience and general option holder behaviour.

Share options outstanding at the end of the year:

Note 47.0n 31 January 2019, 6,200,000 8% convertible non-cumulative redeemable preference shares of ¥ 10 each of
Jubilant Chemsys Limited held by the Company have been converted into 6,200,000 equity shares of ¥ 10 each.

Note 48.0n 31 January 2019, 186,620,000 12% convertible non-cumulative redeemable preference shares of ¥ 10 each of
Jubilant Biosys Limited have been converted into 186,620,000 equity shares of ¥ 10 each. During the year ended
31 March 2020, Jubilant Biosys (Singapore) Pte. Limited, Promoters and Promoters entities have transferred equity
shares held in the Jubilant Biosys Limited to the Company, accordingly the Jubilant Biosys Limited has become wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company.

Note 49. The Company has transferred its India Branded Pharmaceuticals (IBP) Business to Jubilant Generics Limited, a
wholly owned indirect subsidiary in India, against a consideration of ¥1,285.00 million. The Company has recognised the
excess of consideration over book value of net assets/liabilities transferred, net of related tax, amounting to ¥ 1,005.63
million in capital reserve since the transfer is a result of internal reorganisation and the Company continues to control IBP
business.

Note 50. During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Board of Directors of the Company approved the early redemption of

Non-Convertible Debentures ("NCDs") of ¥ 7,450.00 million. The exceptional items represent debt initiation costs of
% 17.03 million on early redemption of NCDs.
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Note 51.Earnings per share

Note 52. Previous year figures have been regrouped/ reclassified to conform to the current year’s classification.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Jubilant Stock Holding Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Jubilant Stock
Holding Private Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March
31, 2020, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year
then ended and notes to the financial statements including a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of
the Company as at March 31, 2020, its profit and its cash flows for the year ended on that
date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described
in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone financial statements section
of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI") together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and Rules thereunder and we have fulfiled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of
the Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a
true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including
the Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act, read with relevant rules
issued thereunder. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively forensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

¢
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In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of this
standalone financial statements. As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of
the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company
has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in
place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial
statements represent the underlying transactions in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.
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Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the annual financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative
materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating
the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the
financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

(1) As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure
1", a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent
applicable.

(2) As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:
a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Statement of Cash
Flows dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account;

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act read with relevant rules
issued thereunder;

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2020, and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on March 31, 2020 from being appointed as a director in terms of
section 164(2) of the Act;

f.  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, reporting
under clause (i) of sub-section (3) of section 143 of the Act on adequacy of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting of the company and the operating
effectiveness of such controls is not applicable to the company as per Notification no.
GSR 683(E), dated 13th June, 2017 issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs.

g. According to the information and explanations given to the Company being a

private limited company, the provisions of Section 197 V to the Act
are not applicable to the Company
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h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

(i) The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its
financial position;

(i) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts
Hence, the question of any material foreseeable losses does not arise;

(i) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

PLACE : NEW DELHI FOR K.N. GUTGUTIA & CO.
DATE : 18™ JUNE, 2020 CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FRN304153E

GOYAL)

PARTNER

M. NO. 12172

GU UDIN : 20012172AAAAMJ9660

* NEWDELH %
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ANNEXURE 1 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

[Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in
the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of Jubilant Stock Holding
Private Limited on the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020]

(i)

(ii)

(i)

(iv)

(v)

(viii)

(ix)

(@)

(b)

The Company does not have any fixed assets. Accordingly, paragraph 3(i) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company does not hold any inventory. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (ii) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, during the year Company
has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of
the Act. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (iii)(a), 3 (iii)(b) and 3 (iii)(c) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanation given to us, the provisions of Section
185 of the Act are not applicable to the Company. Further, the Company has complied
with the provisions of the Section 186 of the Act.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the provisions of
Sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the rules framed there under.

The Central Government of India has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records
for any of the products/ activities of the Company under sub-section (1) of Section 148
of the Act and the rules framed there under.

The Company is generally regular in depositing with appropriate authorities,
undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees’ state insurance,
income tax, sales tax, service tax, value added tax, customs duty, excise duty, cess,
Goods and service tax and any other material statutory dues applicable to it, however,
there have been slight delay in one case.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts
payable in respect of provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income tax, sales
tax, service tax, value added tax, customs duty, excise duty, cess, Goods and service
tax and any other material statutory dues applicable to it, were outstanding, at the year
end, for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

According to the information and explanation given to us, there are no dues with
respect to income tax, sales tax, service tax, value added tax, customs duty, excise
duty and Goods and service tax which have not been deposited on account of any
dispute.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not taken
any loans or borrowings from any financial institution or bank or government. There
are no debenture holders. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (viii) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

The Company has neither raised money by way of public issue offer nor has obtained
any term loans. Accordingly, paragraph 3(ix) of the Order  not applicable to the
Company GU
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)

(xi)

(xii

(xiii)

K.N. GUTGUTIA & COMPANY
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company,
carried out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and
according to the information and explanations given to us, we have neither come
across any instance of fraud by the Company or any fraud on the Company by its
officers or employees, noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been informed
of any such instance by the management.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company being a
private limited company, the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act
are not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xi) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanation given to us, all transactions entered into
by the Company with the related parties are in compliance with Sections 177 and 188
of Act, where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the Financial
Statements etc., as required by the applicable accounting standards.

The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares
or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under review. Accordingly,
paragraph 3(xiv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him.

According to the information and explanation given to us the Company is not required
to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

PLACE : NEW DELHI FOR K.N. GUTGUTIA & CO.
DATE : 18™ JUNE, 2020 CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

FRN 304153E

(  GOYAL)
GU PARTNER
¢ M.NO. 12172
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JUBILANT STOCK HOLDING PRIVATE LIMITED

Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020

(Amount in Rs Lac.)

Particulars Note No. As at March As at March
31,2020 31,2019
FQUITY AND I1.TABILITIES
Shareholders’ funds
Share capital 2 1.00 5,691.00
Reserves and surplus 3 16,515.43 9,587.54
16.516.43 15,278.54
Current liabilities
Other current liabilities 4 6748 128
TOTAL 16,583.91 15,279.82
ASSETS
Non current assets
Non-current investment 5 15,097 58 15,107 34
Long -term loans and advances 299 46.42
15,100.57 15.153.76
Current assets
Current investment 7 115.31
Cash and cash equivalents 8 1,483 34 10 65
Short-term loans and advances 9 0.10
1,483.34 126.06
TOTAL 16,583.91 15.279.82
Significant Accounting Policies 1
Notes to Financial Statements 2-25
The notes form an integral part of Financial Statements
For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Jubilant Stock Holding Private Limited
BR Priyavrat Bhartia Takesh Mathur
Partner Managing Director Director
DIN : 00020603 DIN : 00009338
Place: N ) G- Noida
Pac: {3|06)2p2-0 Date: { .06 20 [2.94 2220
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JUBILANT STOCK HOLDING PRIVATE LIMITED
Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2020

Particulars
Revenue:
Other income 10

Total Revenue
Expenses

Employee cost
Finance cost 11
Other expenses 12

Total Expenses
Profit /(Loss ) before prior period and tax
Prior period items (Net) 13

Profit /(loss ) before tax
Tax expense

Current tax

Earlier years

Profit/(Loss) for the year

Earnings per equity share (in Rupees)
(1) Basic 15
(2) Diluted
(3) Nominal value

Significant Accounting Policies

Notes to Financial Statements

The accompanying notes form an integral part of financial statements
As per our report of even date attached

FOR KN GUTGUTIA & CO.

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number - 304153E

GuU
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Note No.

For the year ended
March 31, 2020

7.815.75

7,815.75

786.19

99.45

6,928.36

0.47

6,927.89
69,278.90

69,278.90
10

(Amount in Rs Lac.)

For the year ended
March 31, 2019

1,051.91

1,051.91

1.44
78.79
42.55

122.78

929.13

928.82

90.16
14.94

823.72

8,237.20

1.45
10

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Jubilant Stock Holding Private Limited

Priyavrat Bhartia
Managing Director

DIN : 00020603

Place : No OV

Date : 4 .} 52&/20

[
=

Takesh Mathur

Director

DIN : 00009338
g
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JUBILANT STOCK HOLDING PRIVATE LIMITED

Standalone Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2020

Particulars

Cash Flow From Operating Activities
Profit before tax

Adjustment for:

Interest expenses

Net gain on sale of non-current investments
Net gain on sale of current investment
(Profit) / Loss sharing on investment in LLP
Dividend Received

Tnterest income
Operating Profit/ Loss Before Changes in Assets & Liabilities
Adjustment for:-

(Increase)/ Decrease in loans & advances

in other current liabilities

Generation from Operating Activities
Less: Direct taxes paid
Cash Inflow/(Outflow)

Cash Flow From Investing Activities
Contribution in LLP
Sale of long term investment
Purchase of long term investment
Inter corporate deposits given and repaid
Inter corporate deposits given
Purchase of units of mutual funds (investment)
Sale of units of mutual funds (investment)
Dividend received
Profit / (Loss) sharing on investment in LLP
Interest received
Net Cash Inflow/(Outflow) From Investing Activities

Cash Flow From Financing Activities

Redemption of Preference Share capital

Long term loans repaid

Interest paid on Loans

Net Cash Inflow/(Outflow) From Financing Activities

Net cash increase/(decrease) in cash & cash equivaient (A+B+C)
Cash & cash equivalent as at April 01, 2019 (opening)
Cash & cash equivalent as at March 31, 2020 (closing)

Note
Cash & Cash Equivalents

Balance with Bank - In Current Accounts
- In FDRs with original maturity upto 3 months
b) Cash on hand

Cash and cash equivalents as at end of year

For the year ended March

31.2020

6,928 36

(3,710 26)
(19 48)

(2,081.59)
(0 26)
(883.23)

010
66 20

(816.93)
(42 96)
(773.97)

5,720 02

(2,065 00)
2,199 79
2,081 59

026
7.936.66

(5,690 00)

(5,690.00)

1 7269

1065
1.483 34
1.483.34

182 00
1,300 26
108

1,483.34

(Amount in Rs Lac.)
For the year ended
March 31. 2019

928 82
7879

(2 35)
017
(656 16)
(393 37)
(44.10)

(22 83)

(66.93)
88 04
(154.97)

017

(4,988 47)
7,555 00
(625 00)
(969 00)
856 05
656 16
017
93328
3.418.02

(3,203 50)
(78 79)
(3.282.29)

(1923)
2988
1065
10.65

10.65

The cash flow statement has been prepared in accordance with the 'Indirect Method' specified in Accounting Standard 3, Cash Flow Statement, notified

by Central Government in the Companies Accounting Standard Rules,2006.

As per our report of even date attached

FOR K N GUTGUTIA & CO.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number - 53E

BR

Partner *
Memb 172 *

Place :

Date 1% lvé )20
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on behalf of Board of Directors of
Stock Holding Private Limited

Priyavrat Bhartia
Managing Director

DIN :
Place
Date :

Takesh Mathur
Director

DIN : 00009338
Place ANQ % QLQ
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Jubilant Stock Holding Private Limited

Notes to

the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Note -1 Significant Accounting Policy

A.

B.

n

m

iv

Background

The Company is a Private Limited company incorporated on 15th December, 2008 under the
provision the Companies Act, 1956 and having its registered office at Plot No - 1A, Sector - 16A,
Noida, Uttar Pradesh - 201 301. The Company's main business activity is to carry on the Business
of an Investment Company.

Summary of significant accounting policies

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements have been prepared to comply in all material respects with the
Accounting Standards notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act”),
read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. The financial statements have
been prepared under the historical cost convention on an accrual basis. The accounting
policies have been consistently applied by the Company and are consistent with those used in
the previous year.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities at the reported date and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Although these estimates are
based on the management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, actual results could
differ from these estimates. Any revision in accounting estimate is recognised prospectively
in current and future periods

Revenue Recognition
Dividend income is accounted when right to receipt is established.

Interest is recognized on time proportion basis.

Investments

Investments that are readily realisable and intended to be held for not more than a year are
classified as current investments. All other investments are classified as long-term
investments. Current investments are carried at the lower of cost and fair value determined on
individual investment basis. Long-term investments are carried at cost. However, provision
for diminution in value is made to recognise a decline other than temporary in the value of the
investments.

Income Taxes
Tax expense comprises of current and deferred tax.

Current income- tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in
accordance with the Income Tax Act. Deferred income taxes reflect the impact of current

year timing differences between taxable income and accounting income for the year and
reversal of timing differences of earlier

NEW /Q‘
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Jubilant Stock Holding Private Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

vi.

vii

viii.

Deferred tax is measured based on the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that
there is reasonable certainty that sufticient tuture taxable income will be available against
which such deferred tax asscts can be rcalised. Tf thc Company has carry forward of
unabsorbed depreciation and tax losses, deferred tax are recognized only if there is virtual
certainty that such deferred tax assets can be realised against future taxable profits.
Unrecognized deferred tax assets of earlier years are re-assessed and recognized to the extent
that it has become reasonably certain that future taxable income will be available against
which such deferred tax assets can be realised.

Minimum alternative tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws, Accordingly, MAT
Credit is recognized as an asset in the balance sheet when it is probable that the future
economic benefit associated with it will flow to the company and shall be adjusted with
future normal tax liability.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provision
The Company creates a provision when there is present obligation as a result of a past event
that probably requires an outflow of resources and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of obligation.

Contingent liabilities

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present
obligation that probably will not require an outflow of resources or where a reliable estimate
of the obligation cannot be made.

Contingent assets
Contingent assets are neither recorded nor disclosed in the financial statements

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, demand deposits with banks, other short
term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year
attributable to equity sharcholders by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the year. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the year are adjusted for events such as bonus issue, share split or consolidation of
shares.

For calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to
equity shareholders is divided by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the year after adjusting the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares, if any, except
when the results will be anti-dilutive.

Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition or construction or production of assets

which takes substantial period of ready for its intended use are included as cost of
* NEWDELHI % . /h,
*
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Jubilant Stock Holding Private Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

XI.

such assets to the extent they relate to the period till such assets are ready to be put to use.
Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Leases:

Where the Company is lessee

Finance leases, which effectively transfer to the Company substantially all the risks and
benefits incidental to ownership of the leased item, are capitalized at the inception of the
lease term at the lower of the fair value of the leased property and present value of minimum
lease payments. Finance charges are recognised as finance costs in the Statement of Profit
and Loss. Lease management fees, legal charges and other initial direct costs of lease are
capitalised.

A leased asset is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the useful life of the asset as
determined by the management or the useful life envisaged in Schedule II to the Act,
whichever is lower. However, if there is no reasonable certainty that the Company will obtain
the ownership by the end of the lease term, the capitalised asset is depreciated on a straight-
line basis over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset, the lease term and the
useful life envisaged in Schedule IT to the Act.

Leases, where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of
ownership of the leased item, are classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are
recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over the

lease term.

Employee benefit

Long term employee benefits
Presently, the provision of payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 are not applicable to the company
There are no other long term benefits.

Short term employee benefits:
All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are
classified as short term employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages, and bonus etc
are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which the employee
renders the related service.
6U /(L
¢
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JUBILANT STOCK HOLDING PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the linancial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Note 2- Share
(Amount in Rs Lac.)

Particulars As at March 31,2020 As at March 31, 2019
(P Y. 2,00.000) Equity Shares of Rs 10 each 2000 2000
ce Share Capital

,30,000 (P Y 57.30,000) Preference Shares of Rs 100 each 5,730 00 5.730 00

10,000 (P Y 10.000) Equity Shares of Rs 10 each fully paid up 100 100

Nil (PY 11.20,000) 6% Non-Cumulative Non Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs 100 each fully paid up 1,120 00

issued on November 12. 2013, convertible into equity shares on or before November 11, 2023 *

Nil (PY 11.40.000) 8% Non-Cumulative Non Conveitible Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs 100 each fully paid up 1,140 00
issued on December 29, 2014. convertible into equity shares on or before December 28, 2024 **

Nil (PY 11.30.000) 8% Non-Cumulative Non Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs 100 each fully paid up 1,130 00
issued on October 05, 2015, convertible into equity shares on or before October 04, 2025 **

Nil (PY 23.00.000) 8% Non-Cumulative Non Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs 100 each fully paid up 2,300 00
issued on 28th December, 2017, convertible into equity shares on or before December 27, 2027 **

Total 1.00 5,691.00
* The Terms of 6% Non Cumulative Compulsory Convertible Preference shares have been changed to 6% Non Cumutative Non Convertible Redeemable Preference
shares vide resolution dated October 21, 2019 passed in the Extra Ordinary General Meeting of the Preference Shareholders of the Company Further, the said Preference
Shares were redeemed by the Company on November 20, 2019

** The Terms of 8% Non Cumulative Compulsory Convertible Preference shares have been changed to 8% Non Cumulative Non Convertible Redeemable Preference
shares vide resolution dated October 21, 2019 passed in the Extra Ordinary General Meeting of the Preference Shareholders of the Company Further, the said Preference
Shares were redeemed by the Company on November 20, 2019

Note-2.1 Terms/ rights attached to each class of share

(a) Equity Shares

The company has only one class of equity share Each holder of equity shaie is entitled to one vote pet share The dividend proposed by the board ( if any) is subject to
approval by the shareholders in the following annual general meeting In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of the equity shares shall be entitled to
receive remaining assets of the company, after adjustment of all preferential payments The distribution will be made in the proportion of holding of equity shares

b) 6% Non-Cumulative Non Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares

Each holder of preference share is entitled to attend the general meetings of the Company and vote on the resolutions directly affecting the rights attached to preference
shares In case of winding up of the Company before redemption of preference shares, the holder of these preference shares will have the preferential right to repayment of
capital Each holder of preference shares have preferential right to dividend, if declared and will carry a rate of 6% per annum However, the said preference shares were
redeemed by the Company on November 20, 2019

¢) 8% Non-Cumulative Non Counvertible Redeemable Preference Shares

Each holder of preference share is entitled to attend the general meetings of the Company and vote on the resolutions directly affecting the rights attached to preference
shares In case of winding up of the Company before redemption of preference shares, the holder of these preference shares will have the preferential right to repayment of
capital Each holder of preference shares have preferential right to dividend, it declared and will carry a rate of 8% per annum However, the said preference shares were
redeemed by the Company on November 20, 2019.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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JUBILANT STOCK HOLDING PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

and the amount of share
As at March 31, 2020

Note 2.2-The reconciliation of the number of shares

Equity share Number {Amount in Rs Lac)
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 10,000 100
Shares issued during the year

Shares bought back during the vear

Shares outstanding at the end of the vear 10,000 100

6 % Non cumulative Non Convertible Redeemable As at March 31, 2020

Preference share Number (Amount in Rs Lac)
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 11,20,000 1.120 00
Shares issued during the year

Shares redeemed during the year* 11,20,000 1,120 00

Shares outstanding at the end of the vear
* The preference shares were redeemed by the Company on November 20, 2019

8 % Non cumulative Non Convertible Redeemable As at March 31, 2020

Preference share Number (Amount in Rs Lac)
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 45,70,000 4,570 00
Shares issued during the year

Shares redeemed during the year* 45,70,000 4,570 00

Shares outstanding at the end of the year
* The preference shares were redeemed by the Company on November 20, 2019

are as under
As at March 31, 2020
No. of Shares held % of Holding

Note 2.3- Name of shareholders mere than 5% of shares in the

Name of Shareholder

Equity Shares
JSPL Life Science Services and Holdings Private Limited 5,000
JCPL Life Science Ventures and Holdings Private Limited 5,000

50%
50%

6 % Non cumulative Non Convertible Redeemable
Preference share
SSB Consultants & Management Services Private Limited

HSB Corporate Consultants Private Limited
8 " Non cumulative Non Convertible Redeemable

Preference share
SSB Consultants & Management Services Private Limited
HSB Corporate Consultants Private Limited

Note-3 Reserve &

Particulars

(A) Capital Redemption Reserve
Opening Balance

Add: Transfer during the year
Closing Balance

(C) Profit & Loss Account

Opening Balance

(+) Surplus/(Deficit) for the year

Less: Transfer to Capital Redemption Reserve

Total (A+B)

Note 4- Other current liabilities
Particulars

Statutory dues payable
Expenses payable

Total

GU
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as at March 31, 2020 and March

2019 is set out

As at March 31, 2019
Number (Amount in Rs Lac)
10,000 100
10,000 100

As at March 31, 2019

Number (Amount in Rs Lac)
11,20,000 1.120 00
11,20,000 1,120 00

As at March 31, 2019

Number (Amount in Rs Lac)
45,70.,000 4,570 00
45.70.000 4.570 00

As at March 31, 2019

No. of Shares held % of Holding

5,000 50°
5,000 50%
5,60,000 50%
5,60,000 50%
22.85.,000 50%
22.85.000 50%

(Amount in Rs Lac.)
As at March 31,2020 As at March 31, 2019

5,690 00

5,690.00

9.587 54 8,763 82

6,927 89 82372
(5.690 00)
10,825.43 9.587.54
16.515.43 9,587.54

(Amount in Rs Lac.)
As at March 31,2020 As at March 31, 2019

64 67 o7
281 057
67.48 1.28



JUBILANT STOCK HOLDING PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Note 5- Non current investment
(Amount in Rs Lac.)

Particulars As at March 31, As at March
2020 31.2019

a) Investments in equity Instruments (Fully paid up)

(i) Unquoted (Non trade investment)
In Joint Ventures

BT Telecom India Private Limited 26,00,000 (P.Y. 26,00,000) shares of Rs. 10 each 260.65 260.65
In Others

Jubilant Biosys Limited Nil (P.Y. 1) share of Rs. 10 each

(During the year 99 no. of Equity shares were received as gift from Mr. Takesh Mathur and
subsequently 100 no. of Equity shares were gifted to Jubilant Life Sciences Limited) (Please
refer Note no. 16)

(ii) Quoted (Non trade investment)

Jubilant Life Sciences Limited. 213,61,992 (P.Y. 225,21,992) shares of Rs. I each 14,332.35 14,332.35

b) Investment in LLP

Unquoted (Non trade investment)

Jubilant Advisors LLP* 9.76
¢) Investments in Preference Share Capital (Fully paid up)

Unquoted (Non trade investment)

In joint venture

BT Telecom India Private Limited 50,33,236 (P.Y. 50,33,236) Cumulative Compulsorily 504.58 504.58
Convertible Preference shares of Rs. 10 each

Total 15,097.58 15,107.34
* Ceased to be partner w.e.f. August 19, 2019

Aggregate Cost of Quoted Investments 14,332.35 14,332.35
Market Value of Quoted Investments 53,234.08 1,49,726.20
Aggregate Cost of Unquoted Investments 765.23 774.99

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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JUBILANT STOCK HOLDING PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Note-6 term and

(Amount in Rs Lac.)
Particulars As at March 31,2020 As at March 31, 2019
Advance tax & Tax deducted at source (Net of provision) 299 46 42
Total 2.99 46.42

Note-7 Current Investment
{Amount in Rs Lac.)

Particulars As at March 31,2020 As at March 31, 2019

Investment in mutual funds (Quoted)

Axis Liquid Fund- Growth 11531

Nil units (PY 5603 423)

Total 115.31

Aggregate book value of quoted investments 11531
11572

Aggregate market value of quoted Investments

Note-8 Cash & cash
(Amount in Rs Lac.)

Particulars As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019
Cash on hand 108 011
182 00 10 54

Balance with Bank - In Current Accounts

- In FDRs with origzinal maturity upto 3 months 1,300 26
Total 1.483.34 10.65
Note-9 Short term loans and advances
(Amount in Rs Lac.)
Particulars As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019

Unsecured considered Good
Advance receivable in cash or in kind or for value to be received

Total 0.10

Note 10- Other income
(Amount in Rs Lac.)

For the year ended For the year ended

Farticulars March 31,2020 March 31,2019
Interest Income 026 393.37

Dividend Income 2,081 59 656 16

Net gain on sale of current investments 2000 235

Net gain on sale of non-current investments 5,710 26

Interest on Income tax Refund 364 003
Total 7.815.75 1,051.91

Note 11- Finance costs
(Amount in Rs Lac.)

. For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Interest on Inter Corporate Loans 78 79

Total 78.79
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JUBILANT STOCK HOLDING PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Note 12- Other
. For the year ended
1}

Particulars March 31, 2020
Rent 0.14
Fees & Subscription 0.25
Demat Charges 0.05
Filling Fees 0.10
Bank Charges 0.02
Legal & Professional Charges 85.58
Auditor Remuneration 0.24
Share of loss in LLP -
Penalty 10.02
Loss on Sale of Current Investment 0.52
Interest others 220
Travelling expenses 0.26
Miscellaneous Expenses 0.07
Total 99.45
Note 13- Prior items
Particulars For the year ended

March 31, 2020
Prior period expenses -Legal & Professional Charges 1.75
Prior period income
Net 1.75
Note 14- of
Particulars For the year ended

March 31, 2020
Payments to the auditor as :
i) Statutory audit fees 0.18
ii) Tax Audit Fee 0.06
iii} For other services (certification expenses) 0.35
iv) Reimbursement of out of pocket expenses
Total 0.59
Note 15- share
Particulars For the year ended

March 31, 2020
Nominal Value of equity shares (in Rs.) 10
Net Profit/(Loss) for the year 6,927.89
Profit /(Loss) attributable to equity shareholders 6,927.89
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year 10,000
Basic earnings per share (in Rs.) 69.278.90
Add: Weighted number of potential equity share on account of non-cumulative compulsory convertible preference share.

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding (Inclusive dilutive non-cumulative compulsory convertible
preference share outstanding). 10,000
Diluted earnings per share (in Rs) 69,278.90
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(Amount in Rs Lac.)
For the year ended
March 31,2019

0.14
0.35
0.13
0.04
0.02
41.40
0.24
0.17

0.05

001
42.55

(Amount in Rs Lac.)
For the year ended
March 31, 2019

031

0.31

(Amount in Rs Laec.)
For the year ended
March 31,2019

0.18
0.06
0.23
0.01
0.48

(Amount in Rs Lac.)
For the year ended
March 31, 2019

10
82372
823.72
10,000

8,237.20

5,69,00,000

5.69.10.000
1.45



JUBILANT STOCK HOLDING PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes Lo the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
Note 16- Related party disclosure

Relationship
Investment in Joint Venture

Company in respect of which reporting company is an associate

Directors / Key Personnel Management

Other related parties where reporting company is directly or
indirectly interested

Name of related party
BT Telecom India Private Limited

JSPL Life Science Services and Holdings Private Limited
JCPL Life Science Ventures and Holdings Private Limited

Mr Hari Shanker Bhartia (Managing Director)-Appointed w e f. 1st
August, 2019

Mr. Priyavrat Bhartia (Managing Director)- Appointed w e f. st June,
2019

Ms Aashti Bhartia (Wholetime Director)- Appointed w e f. 1st June, 2019
Mr. Takesh Mathur (resigned as Director w.e.f 1st November, 2019 and
reappointed w.e.f. Ist January, 2020)

Mr. Parveen Kumar Goyal (resigned as Director w e.f 1st November, 2019

and reappointed w e.f. 1st January, 2020)
Ms Anchal Goyal, Company Secretary (Resigned w e f. 31st December,

2019)

Jubilant Consumer Private Limited

Jubilant Enpro Private Limited

Jubilant Advisors LLP

Jubilant Life Sciences Limited

HSB Corporate Consultants Private Limited

SSB Consultants & Management Services Private Limited

(This spuce has been intentionally left blunk)
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JUBILANT STOCK HOLDING PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Related transactions arem in Rs
. Transaction for the year As at March 31, 2020
Related t t
elated party transactions ended March 31, 2020
Tnvestment Pavable Receivable
(625 00)
(7,555.00)
(393 37)
2,845 00
2,845 00
'Jubilant Advisors LLP
(9 76)
Investment
Jubilant Life Sciences Limited 14,332 35
(14,332 35)
BT Telecom India Private Limited 76523
(765 23)
Gift received
Mr Takesh Mathur (99 no of Equity shares of Jubilant Biosys
Limited received as gift)
Gift given
Jubilant Life Sciences Limited (100 no of Equity shares of
Jubilant Biosys Limited given as gift)
Share in loss of LLP
Jubilant Advisors LLP
017
Dividend Income
Jubilant Life Sciences Limited 2,081 59
(656 16)
Salarvy paid
Ms Anchal Goyal 129
(144)
Mr Hari Shanker Bhartia 306 67
Mr Priyavarat Bhartia 37500
Ms Aashti Bhartia 103 24
Rent paid
Jubilant Enpro Private Limited 014 014
014
Note-17

A Composite Scheme of Arrangement involving HSB Corporate Consultants Private Limited (the “Transferor Company 17) and Jubilant Stock Holding Private Limited
(~Transferor Company 2” or "The Company") and SSB Consultants & Management Services Private Limited (“Transferor Company 3”) and JCPL Life Science Ventures
and Holdings Private Limited (“Transferor Company 4™) and JSPL Life Science Services and Holdings Private Limited (“Transferor Company 5) and Jubilant Life
Sciences Limited (“Transferee Company™ or “JLL” or “Demerged Company”) and Jubilant LSI Limited (“Resulting Company™) and their respective shareholders and
creditors under Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred o as the “Scheme™) has been filed with the National
Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), Allahabad Bench on February 28, 2020

Pursuant to the Scheme, it is proposed to amalgamate the Transferor Company 1, Transferor Company 2, Transferor Company 3, Transferor Company 4 and Transferor
Company 5 (together hereinafter referred to as “Transferor Companies™) in to and with the Transferee Company, on a going concern basis

Pursuant to the effectiveness of the Scheme and with effect from the merger appointed date, the Company alongwith other Transferor Companies shall stand amalgamated
and all their respective assets, liabilities, rights and obligations, as applicable, be transferred and vested in the Transferee Company, on a going concern basis without any
requirement of a further act or deed so as to become as and from the merger appointed date, the assets, liabilities, interest and obligations, as applicable of the Transferee

Company
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JUBILANT STOCK HOLDING PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Note-1 Information in of Joint Venture
For the year ended
March 31, 2019
of ownership interest 26%
of Incorporation or registration India
Assets 33551
Liabilities 100 1
Income

i) The above details represent proportionate amount of the Company’s share in the Joint Ventures
ii) In the absence of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020, disclosure in respect of the Joint Venture has been given as per audited financial statements
for the year ended March 31,2019 There is no change in ownership interest

Note-18(b)

Jubilant Stock Holding Private Limited ("JSHPL™) owns 26% of the issued share capital of BT Telecom India Private Limited (“BT India”), a joint venture between
JSHPL and BT Global Communications (Mauritius) Limited JSHPL has executed a share purchase agreement dated October 30, 2019 with BT Global Communications
(Mauritius) Limited (“BT Mauritius™) for the transfer of JSHPL’s sharcholding in BT India to BT Mauritius for a total consideration of INR 129,92,53,100/-, subject to
receipt of applicable approval under India’s foreign direct investment regulations. For this purpose, BT Mauritius filed an application on the Foreign Investment
Facilitation Portal, Government of India (“FIFP™) on January 13, 2020. The application was processed by the Department of Telecommunications (“DOT"), which, by its
letter dated 31 March 2020 has advised the applicant to approach the Department of Economic Affairs (“DEA™) BT Mauritius is preparing the requisite application for
secking the approval of DEA for the proposed transaction

(This spuce has been intentionally lefi blank)
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JUBILANT STOCK HOLDING PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Note-19
Disclosure  rsuant to section 1 of the 2013 in of unsecured loans:

(Amount in Rs Lac.)
Particulars Purpose/ Term of loan

As at March 31,2020 As at March 31, 2019

(& | busi
Jubilant Enpro Private Limited eneral business purpose

Outstanding as at the beginning of year

° e gty Interest rate 8 25% p a 0,930 00
Given during the year 625 00
Repaid during the year 7,555 00

Outstanding as at the end of vear

Note-20
Additional information pursuant to schedule 11T of Companies Act, 2013 is either nil or not applicable

Note-21
The Company had no contingent liabilities and capital commitment as on March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019
Note-22

The company believes that they have not entered any transaction with the paities coveted under Micro. Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act. 2006 except
disclosed in respective notes Hence, no further disclosures are required to be given under the Act

Note-23
The Company has taken premises fot official purpose on operating lease The lease term for office premises is for a period of eleven months, which is renewable at the

mutual agreement of both the parties The lease is cancellable lease The rent expense in respect of all operating lease agreement for the year debited to the statement of
profit and loss is Rs 0 14 lacs {Previous year Rs 0 14 lacs)

Note-24
Provisions of PF, EST and Gratuity are presently not applicable to the Company

Note-25
Previous year figures have been regrouped and/ or rearranged wherever necessary to make it comparable with current year figures

As per our report of even date attached
FOR KN GUTGUTIA & CO. For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Stock Holding Private Limited

Firm Registration Number - 304153E

B R GOYAL Priyavrat Bhartia Takesh Mathur
Partner Managing Director Director
Membership Number- 12172 DIN : 00020603 DIN : 00009338

Place: pAet® Pe )b Place:N g ‘Ad\ﬂ PlaceJ\}q‘AQ,\g\
Date : )%'06/2_0,_“ Date.l%ongw Date:l&&)-é,l(z)lb
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B S R & CO LLP Annexure - 21

Charterad Accountants

Bth Floor, Tower - A, Plot # 07 Telephone: + 91 120 386 8000
Aduae Manls: Business: Fark Fax: +91 120 386 8999

Sector - 142, Noida Expressway
Moida - 201305, UP, (India)

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Members of Jubilant LSI Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Jubilant LSI Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the
Balance sheet as at 31 March 2020, and the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
(loss)), Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the period 23 October 2019 to 31
March 2020, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of the significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the financial statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2020, and loss and other comprehensive (loss),
changes in equity and its cash flows for the period 23 October 2019 to 31 March 2020.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10)
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance
with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the
Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statements.

Other Information
The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s annual report, but does not include the

financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.
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BSR & Co. LLP

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management's and Board of Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5)
of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs, loss and other comprehensive (loss), changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of
the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application
of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are responsible for assessing
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing
our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.
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o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures in the financial statements made by the Management and Board of Directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by the Companies (Auditors’ Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government in terms of section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on the

matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. (A) As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books

¢) The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive (loss)), the
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under section
133 of the Act.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2020 taken

on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2020 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.
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f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure B”.

(B) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. The disclosures in the financial statements regarding holdings as well as dealings in specified
bank notes during the period from 8 November 2016 to 30 December 2016 have not been made
in these financial statements since they do not pertain to the period ended 31 March 2020.

(C) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors’ Report under section 197(16):

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
paid any remuneration to its directors during the current period and accordingly the requirement as
stipulated under section 197(16) of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

ForBSR & Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 101248W/W-100022

Sd/-
Manish Gupta
Partner
Place: New Delhi Membership No: 095037
Date: 27 May 2020 UDIN: 20095037AAAABE7865
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Annexure A referred to in our Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of Jubilant LSI Limited
on the Financial Statements for the period 23 October 2019 to 31 March 2020

(1) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not hold any fixed assets.
Accordingly, paragraph 3 (i) of the Order is not applicable

(i1) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not hold any inventories.
Accordingly, paragraph 3 (ii) of the Order is not applicable

(i11) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any loans,
secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the
register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (iii) of the
Order is not applicable.

(iv) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any loans,
made any investments and provided any guarantees and securities covered under Sections 185 and 186
of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, paragraph 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable.

v) According to information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any deposits
from the public. Accordingly, the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provision of
Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and rules framed thereunder, are not
applicable.

(vi) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not prescribed
the maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act for activities carried out
by the Company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(vii) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, there are no amounts that were required to be deducted/ accrued in the books
of account in respect of statutory dues. Accordingly, paragraph 3(vii)(a) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues in respect income-tax,
sales-tax, service tax, duty of custom, duty of excise, goods and services tax and value added tax
which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute.

(viii)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not have any loans or
borrowings from bankers, financial institutions, government or dues to debenture holders during the
year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable.

(ix) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has no term loans. Further, the
company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer / further public offer (including debts
instruments) during the period. Accordingly, paragraph 3(ix) of the Order is not applicable.

(x) According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company
by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the period.

(xi) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records

of the Company, the Company has not paid/provided for managerial remuneration. Accordingly,
paragraph 3(xi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company
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(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a
Nidhi Company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records
of'the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Section 188 of the Act where
applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required
by the applicable accounting standards. Further, according to the information and explanations given to
us and based on our examination of the records of the Company, provision of Section 177 of the Act are
not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of the records
of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares
or fully or partly convertible debentures during the period. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xiv) of the Order
is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records
of the Company, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons
connected with them. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required to be registered
under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xvi) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

ForBSR & Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 101248W/W-100022

Sd/-
Manish Gupta
Partner
Place: New Delhi Membership No: 095037
Date: 27 May 2020 UDIN: 20095037AAAABE7865
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditors’ report on the financial statements of Jubilant LSI Limited
for the period 23 October 2019 to 31 March 2020.

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid financial statements under
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013

(Referred to in paragraph 2(A)(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section
of our report of even date)

Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Jubilant LSI Limited
(“the Company”) as of 31 March 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the
Company for the period ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2020,
based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India (the “Guidance Note”).

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred
to as “the Act”).

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and
the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were
established and maintained and whether such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of such internal financial
controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and procedures that (1) pertain
to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that
could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

ForBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 101248W/W-100022

Sd/-
Manish Gupta
Partner
Place: New Delhi Membership No: 095037
Date: 27 May 2020 UDIN: 20095037AAAABE7865
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Jubilant LSI Limited

Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2020

( in thousands)

As at

Notes 31 March 2020
ASSETS
Current assets
Financial assets
i.  Cash and cash equivalents 3 500
Total current assets 500
Total assets 500
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity 4
Equity share capital 500
Other equity (1,657)
Total equity (1,157)
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
i. Trade payables 6
Total outstanding dues to micro enterprises and small enterprises )
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises
and small enterprises
1,657
Total current liabilities 1,657
Total liabilities 1,657
Total equity and liabilities 500

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm registration number: 101248W/W-100022

Sd/-

Manish Gupta
Partner
Membership No: 095037

Place : New Delhi
Date : 27 May 2020

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Jubilant LSI

Limited

Sd/-

Rajesh Kumar Srivastava
Director
DIN: 02215055

Place: Noida
Date: 27 May 2020
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Jubilant LSI Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the period 23 October 2019 to 31 March 2020

(X in thousands)

For the period
Notes 23 October 2019 to
31 March 2020

Income
Revenue from operations -

Other income -

Total income -

Expenses

Other expenses 7 1,657
Total expenses 1,657
Profit/(loss) before tax (1,657)

Tax expense -

Profit/(loss) after tax (1,657)

Other comprehensive (loss) -

Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the period (1,657)
Loss per equity share of ¥ 1 each 12
Diluted ) (3.31)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date attached

For BSR & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Jubilant LSI
Chartered Accountants Limited
ICAI Firm registration number: 101248W/W-100022

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-

Manish Gupta Rajesh Kumar Srivastava Arun Kumar Sharma
Partner Director Director

Membership No: 095037 DIN: 02215055 DIN: 06991435

Place : New Delhi Place: Noida

Date : 27 May 2020 Date: 27 May 2020
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Jubilant LSI Limited

Statement of changes in equity for the period 23 October 2019 to 31 March 2020

A) Equity share capital ( in thousands)
Issued during the period 500
Balance as at 31 March 2020 500
B) Other equity (? in thOllSﬁIldS)
Retained earnings
Loss for the period (1,657)
Balance as at 31 March 2020 (1,657)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For BSR & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Jubilant LSI

Chartered Accountants Limited

ICAI Firm registration number: 101248W/W-100022

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-

Manish Gupta Rajesh Kumar Srivastava Arun Kumar Sharma

Partner Director Director

Membership No: 095037 DIN: 02215055 DIN: 06991435

Place : New Delhi Place: Noida

Date : 27 May 2020 Date: 27 May 2020
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Jubilant LSI Limited

Statement of Cash Flows for the period 23 October 2019 to 31 March 2020

( in thousands)
For the period
23 October 2019 to

31 March 2020

A. Cash flow from operating activities
(Loss) before tax (1,657)

Increase in trade payables 1,657
Net cash generated from operating activities -
B. Cash flow from investing activities -
C. Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of share capital 500
Net cash generated from financing activities 500
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 500
Add: cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of period -
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 500
Components of cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks:
- On current accounts 500

Notes:

Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in the Ind AS 7 "Statement of Cash

Flows".

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm registration number: 101248W/W-100022

Sd/-

Manish Gupta
Partner
Membership No: 095037

Place : New Delhi
Date : 27 May 2020

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Jubilant LSI
Limited

Sd/- Sd/-

Rajesh Kumar Srivastava Arun Kumar Sharma
Director Director

DIN: 02215055 DIN: 06991435

Place: Noida
Date: 27 May 2020
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Jubilant LSI Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the period 23 October 2019 to 31 March 2020

Note 1. Corporate Information

Jubilant LSI Limited (“the Company”) is a public limited company domiciled in India and incorporated under the
provisions of Companies Act, 2013. The registered office of the Company is situated at Bhartiagram, Gajraula, District
Amroha, Uttar Pradesh — 244223. The Company was incorporated on 23 October 2019 to undertake the business of
life science ingredients. Also refer note no. 11.

Note 2. Significant accounting policies

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements.
The Company has adopted Ind AS 116 “Leases” and Appendix C, “Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments”, to Ind
AS 12, Income which did not have any impact on the financial position or performance of the Company.

(a)  Basis of preparation
(i) Statement of compliance

These Financial Statements (“financial statements”) have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under Section
133 of the Companies Act, 2013, (“the Act"), relevant provisions of the Act and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India. All the amounts included in the financial statements are reported in thousands of

Indian Rupees (‘Rupees’ or T') and are rounded to the nearest thousands, except per share data and unless stated
otherwise.

The financial statements have been authorised for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on 27 May 2020

(ii) Historical convention

The financial statements have been prepared under historical cost convention on accrual basis, unless
otherwise stated.

(b)  Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current/ non-current classification.

An asset is treated as current when:

o [t is expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;

e [t is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

e [t is expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period; or

e [t is cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting period.

The Company classifies all other assets as non-current.
A liability is current when:

e Itis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;

e [t is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

e [t is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

e There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period.
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Jubilant LSI Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the period 23 October 2019 to 31 March 2020

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities respectively

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash
equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle for the purpose of current-non-current
classification of assets and liabilities.

(c) Financial instrument

A Financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity.

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the
market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase
or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

e Debt instruments at amortised cost

e  Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

e Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL)
e  Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

Debt instruments at amortised cost

A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if the asset is held within a business model whose objective is
to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate (EIR) method. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or
the amortised cost of the financial liability. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in other
income in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables.

Debt instrument at FVOCI

A “debt instrument’ is classified as at the FVOCI if the objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting
contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets, and the asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI.

Debt instruments included within the FVOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair
value. Fair value movements are recognised in the other comprehensive income (OCI). On derecognition of the asset,
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Jubilant LSI Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the period 23 October 2019 to 31 March 2020

cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss. Interest
earned whilst holding FVOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method.

Debt instrument at FVPL

FVPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for
categorisation as at amortised cost or as FVOCI, is classified as at FVPL. In addition, at initial recognition, the
Company may irrevocably elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortised cost or FVOCI
criteria, as at FVPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or
recognition inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’).

Debt instruments included within the FVPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Equity investments

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for
trading and contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS 103 applies
are classified as at FVPL. For all other equity instruments, the Company may make an irrevocable election to present
in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The Company makes such election on an
instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument,
excluding dividends, are recognised in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to the Statement of
Profit and Loss, even on sale of investment. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss to
retained earnings.

Equity instruments included within the FVPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Investments in subsidiaries

Equity investments in subsidiaries are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. Where an indication
of impairment exists, the carrying amount of the investment is assessed and written down immediately to its
recoverable amount. On disposal of investments in subsidiaries, the difference between net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amounts are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognizes loss allowance using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financial assets which
are not fair valued through profit or loss. Loss allowance for trade receivables with no significant financing component
is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. For all financial assets with contractual cash flows other than trade
receivable, ECLs are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL, unless there has been a significant increase
in credit risk from initial recognition in which case those are measured at lifetime ECL. The amount of ECL (or reversal)
that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date is recognised as an impairment gain or loss in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
primarily derecognized (i.e., removed from the Company’s balance sheet) when:

e  The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

381



Jubilant LSI Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the period 23 October 2019 to 31 March 2020

e The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-
through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the
Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement. In that
case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVPL. A financial liability is classified as at FVPL
if it is classified as held-for-trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial
liabilities at FVPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognised
in Statement of Profit and Loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in Statement of Profit
and Loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When
an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms
of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of
the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Derivative financial instruments

The Company uses various types of derivative financial instruments to hedge its currency and interest risk etc. Such
derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered
into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is
positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the Balance Sheet when, and only
when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them
on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

(d) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent comprise cash at banks and on hand (including imprest) and short-term deposits with an
original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

(e) Provisions and contingencies

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation
that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
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Jubilant LSI Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the period 23 October 2019 to 31 March 2020

obligation. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected
future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the liability. Where discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time
is recognized as a finance cost.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation
at reporting date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When some or all of the
economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, the receivable is
recognized as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable
can be measured reliably.

Contingent liability

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but
probably will not, require an outflow of resources. When there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in
respect of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

(f) Income tax

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognized in profit or loss except to the extent that it
relates to a business combination, or items recognized directly in equity or in OCL

o Current tax:

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any
adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax payable or
receivable is the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after considering that reflects
uncertainty related to income taxes, if any. It is measured using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date.

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised
amounts, and it is intended to realize the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or simultaneously.

e Deferred tax:

Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is not
recognised for

- temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a
business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the time of the transaction;

- temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries, to the extent that the Company is able to control
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that they will not reverse in the
foreseeable future; and

Deferred tax assets (DTA) include Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws in India,
which is likely to give future economic benefits in the form of availability of set off against future income tax
liability.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible temporary differences
to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences when they reverse,
using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. The measurement of deferred tax reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised
amounts, and it is intended to relies the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or simultaneously.
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Effective 1 April 2019, the Company has adopted Appendix C of IND AS 12, “Uncertainty over Income Tax
treatments” which clarifies how the recognition and measurement requirements of IND AS 12 “Income taxes”, are
applied where there is uncertainty over income tax treatments. There is no significant impact on account of
adoption of this amendment.

(g)  Earnings per share
@) Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:
o the profit attributable to owners of the Company

e by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for
bonus elements in equity shares issued during the year.

(i)  Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to
take into account:

e the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential
equity shares, and

o the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming
the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares

(h)  Measurement of fair values

A number of the accounting policies and disclosures require measurement of fair values, for both financial and non-
financial assets and liabilities.

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation
techniques as follows:

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
(i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

The Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. This includes a
finance team that has overall responsibility for overseeing all significant fair value measurements, including Level 3
fair values.

The finance team regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If third party
information is used to measure fair values, then the finance team assesses the evidence obtained from the third parties
to support the conclusion that these valuations meet the requirements of Ind AS, including the level in the fair value
hierarchy in which the valuations should be classified.

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as possible. If
the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy,
then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest
level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during

which the change has occurred. Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values used in
preparing these financial statements is included in the respective notes.
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Note 3: Cash and cash equivalents
(R in thousands)

As at 31 March 2020

Balances with banks

- in current account 500

Total cash and cash equivalents 500

Note 4: Equity share capital
R in thousands)

(a) Equity share capital As at 31 March 2020
Authorised
200,000,000 equity shares of ¥ 1 each 200,000

Issued, subscribed and fully paid up
500,000 equity shares of ¥ 1 each 500

(b) Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding as at beginning and at end of reporting period

As at 31 March 2020

Number of shares held R in thousands)
Shares issued during the period 500,000 500
Number of shares at the end of the period 500,000 500

(¢) Term/Rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of shares referred to as equity shares having par value of ¥ 1 each. Holder of each
equity share is entitled to one vote per share. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity
shares will be entitled to receive any of the remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential
amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.
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(d) Equity shares held by holding company is set out below

As at 31 March 2020
Number of shares held

Jubilant Life Sciences Limited 500,000 *

* All the shares are held by Jubilant Life Sciences Limited (the holding company) singly, except 6 shares, each of
which is held jointly with one Individual as second named shareholder.

(e) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

As at 31 March 2020

Equity shares of ¥ 1 each fully paid-up held by Number of shares held % of total shares

Jubilant Life Sciences Limited 500,000 * 100%

* All the shares are held by Jubilant Life Sciences Limited (the holding company) singly, except 6 shares, each of
which is held jointly with one Individual as second named shareholder.

Note 5: Nature and purpose of other equity

Retained earnings
Retained earnings represent the amount of accumulated earnings of the Company

Other equity
Retained earnings (R in thousands)
Loss for the period (1,657)

Balance as at 31 March 2020
(1,657)

( in thousands)
Note 6: Trade payables

As at 31 March 2020

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and -
small enterprises

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 1,657
enterprises and small enterprises

Total trade payables 1,657

Amount payable to related party included in the above (refer note no.8) 1,657
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Note 7: Other expenses

( in thousands)

For the period

23 October 2019 to

31 March 2020

Rates and taxes 1,632
Payments to statutory auditors (refer note 7(a) below) 25
Total other expenses 1,657

Note 7(a): Details of payments to statutory auditors (excluding applicable taxed and out of pocket expenses)

(R in thousands)

For the period
23 October 2019 to
31 March 2020

As auditor:
For statutory audit 25
Total payments to statutory auditors 25

Note 8: Related Party Disclosures

1. Related parties where control exists or with whom transactions have taken place.

1. Name of the Related Parties

Particulars

As at 31 March 2020

Holding Company

Jubilant Life Sciences Limited

Key Managerial Persons

Mr. Rajesh Kumar Srivastava

Mr. Anant Pande

Mr. Arun Kumar Sharma

2. Transaction with Related Party (R in thousands)
Particulars Holding Company Total

Expenses Reimbursement :

Jubilant Life Sciences Limited 1,657 1,657
Issue of equity share capital

Jubilant Life Sciences Limited 500%* 500%*

*includes 1 share each issued to Key Managerial Personnel Mr. Anant Pande and Mr. Arun Kumar Sharma
which are held by them jointly with Jubilant Life Sciences Limited (the holding company)
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3. Outstanding balances with Related Party ( in thousands)
Particulars Holding Company Total
Trade Payable:
Jubilant Life Sciences Limited 1,657 1,657
Share Capital:
Jubilant Life Sciences Limited 500%* 500*

*includes 1 share each held with Key Managerial Person i.e. Mr. Rajesh Kumar Srivastava (Also refer # below) and
Mr. Arun Kumar Sharma which are held by them jointly with Jubilant Life Sciences Limited (the holding company)

as on 31 March 2020.

# During the period, 1 share held originally issued to Key Managerial Personnel i.e. Mr. Anant Pande was transferred

to Mr. Rajesh Kumar Srivastava

Note 9: Fair value measurements

(R in thousands)

Note 31 March 2020

FVPL Amortised cost
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents (a) - 500
Total financial assets - 500
Financial liabilities
Trade payables (a) - 1,657
Total financial liabilities - 1,657

a) Fair valuation of financial assets and liabilities with short term maturities is considered as approximate to
respective carrying amount due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

Note 10: Segment Reporting

Based on the guiding principles given in the Ind AS 108 on “Operating Segments”, the Company is of opinion that
its primary business segment is Life Sciences Ingredients. As the Company’s business activity falls within a single
primary segment, the disclosure requirements of the said of Ind AS 108 in this regard are not applicable.

Note 11. During the period ended 31 March 2020, the Holding Company Jubilant Life Sciences Limited has filed
with BSE Limited (BSE) and National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE) the Composite Scheme of
Arrangement for amalgamation of certain promoter controlled entities into the Holding Company and Demerger of
the Life Science Ingredients business into the Company which shall be listed on both the stock exchanges with a
mirror shareholding. Upon receipt of no objection letters from BSE and NSE, in January 2020 the Holding Company
has filed application for approval of the composite scheme of arrangement with National Company Law Tribunal,
Allahabad Bench. Pending approvals and other compliances, the financial statements of the company does not contain
any impact of the composite scheme.
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Note 12. Earnings per share

(R in thousands)

For the period
23 October 2019 to
31 March 2020
(Loss) for basic and diluted earnings per share of ¥ 1 each % in thousands (1,657)
Weighted average number of equity shares used in computing loss per share:
No. of shares for basic earnings per share Nos. 500,000
No. of shares for diluted earnings per share Nos. 500,000
Loss per share (face value of ¥ 1 each)
Basic (3.31)
Diluted (3.31)
Note 13 This being the first year of operations of the Company, previous year figures are not applicable.
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date attached
For BSR & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Jubilant LSI
Chartered Accountants Limited
ICAI Firm registration number: 101248W/W-100022
Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Manish Gupta Rajesh Kumar Srivastava Arun Kumar Sharma
Partner Director Director
Membership No: 095037 DIN: 02215055 DIN: 06991435
Place : New Delhi Place: Noida
Date : 27 May 2020 Date: 27 May 2020
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S &ColL

Chartered Accountants

6th Floor, Tower- A, Plot # 07 Telephone + 91 120 386 8000
Advant Navis Business Park Fax + 91 120 386 8999
Sect Noida E sway
Noid 05, UP, {

To,

The Board of Directors,

Jubilant Life Sciences Limited
Bhartiagram Gajraula,

Jyotiba Phoolay Nagar,

Uttar Pradesh - 244223

22 November 2019

Independent Auditor’s Certificate on the proposed accounting treatment specified in the Draft
Composite Scheme of Arrangement

1. This Certificate is issued in accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 26 November
2018 and addendum to the engagement letter dated 25 October 2019.

2. We, the statutory auditors of Jubilant Life Scien
treatment specified in Clause 11 of Part B of the

or Company 3”) and JCPL Life Science Ventures and

shareholders and creditors under section 230 to 2
Act 2013 Act), with reference to its compl
notified u Section 133 of the Act read w
Accounting Principles in India.
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i in the A1 re A to this Ce ate and been
0 n.

Management’s Responsibility

4. The responsibility for the preparation of the Draft Scheme and its compliance with the relevant laws

d d

c e
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and maintenance of internal controls relevant to th e
ng an r basis of preparation; and making estimates and judgements that are

in the t es.
Auditor’s Responsibility

5.0u is
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Principles in India. Nothing contained in this Certi

rs of any financial statements of the Transferee
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stration kshmi
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Restriction on Use
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Date: 22 November 2019

ote on

Accoun

1e Code
to r
JR a
be d

ForBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration No.: 101248W/W-100022

(\
W

Gaurav Mah

Partner

Membership No.: 507857
UDIN: 19507857AAAADAS225

Encl: Annexure A, prepared by the Transferee Company’s management, initialed by us for

identification purpose only
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Annexure A

PART B

11, Accounting treatment in the books of the Transferee Company

111 Pursuant to Part B of this Scheme coming into effect on the Effective Date, and with effe
Date, the Transferee Company shall account for the
Transferee Company in its books of accounts in acc

Merger Appointed
mation of the Transferor with and into the
e with Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under

Section 133 of the Act, as may be amended from time to time and other generally accepted accounted principles in
India as under:

@)

of the
inthe b

es vested in it
- Companies,

The Transferee Company shall record the Assets and
pursuant to this Scheme, at their respective book values as

(ii) The Transferee Company shall aggregate all th
Securities premiuvm or reserves of any other natu
Transferor Companies with and
books of accounts of the Transfe
manner as it treals its own reserves,

(3ii) The Transferee Company shall issue and allot its equity shares to the shareholde

Clause 10.2 of of this Scheme. to the
the share capit unt of the Transfe would
ty shares issued

(iv) The loans and advances or payables or receivables or any other investment or arrangement of any kind, held inter
se, if any, between the Transferor Companies and the T ransferee Company shall stand cancelled:

(v) The difference between the book value of Assets, Liabilities, reserves as reduced by the fuce value of the equity
sha by the ee Company and after considering the cancellut of inter-company balances in
ace ith Clau v) above, shall be recorded within “Other Equity’  the Transferee Company, and

vi) In n the Companies and the ree
Co of the Other Equity” of the ree
Co financ ect the financial position on the

basis of consistent accounting policy.

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Jubilant Life Sciences Limited

Autho

Place : Noida
Date : 22 November 2019

A Jubilant Bhartia Compa
OQUR VALLES

Jubilant Life Sciences Limited
L-A, Secior |€-A,

Noida-201 300, U India

Tel: =91 120 4361000

Fax: +91 120 4234895-6¢

www jubl com
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S Co L

Chartered Accountants

6th Floor, Tower- A, Plot # 07 Telephone + 91 120 386 8000
Advant Navis Business Park Fax + 91 120 386 8999
Noida E sway
05, UP, (

To,

The Board of Directors,
Jubilant Life Sciences Limited
Bhartiagram Gajraula,

Jyotiba Phoolay Nagar,

Uttar Pradesh - 244223

22 November 2019

Independent Auditor’s Certificate on the proposed accounting treatment specified in the Draft
Composite Scheme of Arrangement

1. This Certificate is issued in accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 26 November
2018 and addendum to the engagement letter dated 25 October 2019.

2. We, the statutory auditors of Jubilant Life Scien
treatment specified in Clause 13 of Part C of the

or Company 3”) and JCPL Life Science Ventures and

shareholders and creditors under section 230 to
Act 2013 Act), with refe to its li
notified u Section 133 o Actr it
Accounting Principles in India.

3. Part the Draft Sch duly authenticated on
in th exure A to th rtificate and has been
on.

Management’s Responsibility

4. The responsibility for the preparation of the Draft Scheme and its compliance with the relevant laws
Accounting Standards read with the rules issued

ti les in 1 the
s lity incl ion
e nand p 1 me
ng an r basis of preparation; and making estimates and judgements that are
in the t s.
Anuditor’s Responsibility
5.0u ity is
13 f the
un 133 0
Principles in India. Nothing contained in this Certi
ion with the services that are cttot
in our capacity of the stat auditors of any financial statements of the Demerged
Registered Office:
BSR&Co.(a i with Registration 5th Floor, Lodha Excelus
No. BA61223) SR&Co. LLP Apollo Milis Comnpound
fal d Liability P istration N M. Joshi Marg, Mahalakshmi
i No. -8181) with 2013 Mumbai - 400 011
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BSR & Co. LLP

ote on Re s
Accoun fl
1e Code ics e
7. We hav ied with the relevant app re
Quality | for Firms that Perform al
other Assurance and Rel Serv Enga
other parts and aspects of ~ lorp  ietary
Conclusion
Restriction on Use
to
)R
be

For BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration No.: 101248W/W-100022

[
(5,

Gaurav Mahaj
Place: Noida Partner
Membership No.: 507857
UDIN: 19507857AAAADB5625

Date: 22 November 2019

Encl: Annexure A, prepared by the Demerged Company’s management, initialed by us for
identification purpose only
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T

Annexure A

Relevant extract of Composite Scheme of Arrangement (the Draft Scheme) between HSB Corporate

Consultants Private Limited (“Transferor y 17) and Jubilant Stock Holding Private Limited
(“Transferor Company 2”) and SSB Consu Management Services Private Limited (“T'rans(eror
Company 3”) and JCPL Life Science Ventures and Holdings ompany
4”y and JSPL Life Science Services and Holdings Private L 5”) and
Jubilant Life Scie (“Transferce Company / Demerg ant LS]
Timited (“Resultin and their respective shareholders and creditors under section 230 (o
232 ol e Cutnpan the Act)
PARTC

13. Accounting Treatment in the books of the Demerged Company

13.1

(i) Cor ues ts and ties of the LSI
s at imn ly prec the Demerger
ein

(i)

the Retained Earnings under the head O

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Jubilant Life Sciences Limited

”1
Aut]L‘n‘ ignatory
Place : Noida
Date : 22 November 2019

A Jubilant Bhartia Company

IHHOVATEON

OUR VALUES

Jubilant Life Sciences Limited Regd Office:

| A, Seclor 16 A, Bhartiagram, Gajraula
Norda-201 301, UP India Distt Amroha - 244 223,

Tel: 191120 4361000 UPR India

Fax:-1 91 120 4234895-96 CIN : L241 16UP1978PLL0O04624

vavi jubl com
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S &Co

Chartered Accountants

6th Floor, Tower- A, Plot # 07 Telephone + 91 120 386 8000
Advant Navis Business Park Fax + 91 120 386 8999
Sect Noida E ssway
Noid 05, UP, ( )

To,

The Board of Directors,

Jubilant LSI Limited

Bhartiagram Gajraula,

Jyotiba Phoolay Nagar,

Uttar Pradesh -244223

22 November 2019

Indepen Auditor’s Cer on the proposed accounting treatment specified in the Draft

Compos heme of Arran

1. This Certificate is issued in accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated DD Month 2019
and addendum to the engagement letter dated DD Month 2019.

(“Transferor Company 5”) and Jubilant Life S
Company”) and Jubilant LSI Limited (“Resultin

on i e provisions of the Companies Act 2013
to I le Indian Accounting Standards notified u
A reunder and other Generally Accepted Accounting

Principles in India
3. For ease of reference, the extract of Clause 14 of Part C of the Draft Scheme, duly authenticated on
of the Resulting Co , 1S ced in the Annexure A to this Certificate and has been
d by us, only for the e of cation.

Management’s Responsibility

4. The responsibility for the preparation of the Draft Scheme and its compliance with the relevant laws

ing pl t  Stan S u
ene cc 1 esin 1a t
eC es s ityin es e I
and maintenance of internal controls relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Draft Scheme
ying an a r basis of preparation; and making estimates and judgements that are
le in the ci t s.

Auditor’s Responsibility

5.0u is
14 e i
un o 1
Principles in India. Nothing contained in this Certi
ion with the ices are st ct to this Certificate, will extend duty of care
in our cap of statut auditors of any financial state  ts of the R
Registered Office:
BSR &Co.({a shi with Registration 5th Floor, Lodha Excelus
No. BA81223) ed SR&Co.LLP Apollo Mills Compound
aL Liability LLP i n N M Joshi Marg, Mahalakshmi
No. 181) wit tobe Mumbai - 400 011
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BSR & Co. LLP

6. i e on S
i ccoun .
m Code e
nt

7. We have co  ied with the relevant app
Quality Cor | for Firms that Perform

other Assurance and Rel Serv Enga
other parts and aspects of  lorp  ietary
Conclusion
8. d on our ni onandacco g to the information and explanations given to us, we confirm
the accou g  tment contai in Clause 14
in An A ificate is in compliance w
Requi s) s, 2015 and circulars is

Accounting Standards notified by the Central Government under section 133 of the Act read with the
rules issued thereunder and other Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in India.

Restriction on Use

9. iss to nt
er }R 15
to be 0

purpose without our prior written consent.

For BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 101248W/W-100022

r\
[y S

Gaurav Mahajan
Place: Noida Partner

Date: 22 November 2019 Membership No.: 507857
UDIN: 19507857AAAACZ9596

Encl: Annexure A, prepared by the Resulting Company’s management, initialed by us for
identification purpose only
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Annexure A

PART C
14 Accounting Treatment in the books of the Resulting Company

14.1  Upon Part C of this Scheme
the Demerger Appointed D
and vesting of the LSI Unde
in accordance with the In

Rules,
j ounted
(i) The g Company shall record the Assets and of the LSI
Unde vested in it pursuant to this Scheme at the book values
appearing in the books of accounts of the Demerged Company;
(ii)  The Resulting Company shall credit its share capital account with
face value of the Denerger Shares issued by it 1o the shareh
Demerged Company,
(iii)  The e between 14.1(i) and 14.1(ii) above shall be recorded within

“Ot y"” of the R Company.

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Jubilant LSI Limited

Authorised Signatory
Place : Noida
Date : 22 November 2019

Q
‘\tﬁf"

A Jubilant Life Sciences Company

Jubilant LSI Limited Regd Office:

A e G Bhartiagram, Gajraula

Distt Amroha - 244 223

1P Inclia

CIN - U24269UP20 [ 9PLC 22657

e
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Pre and Post Shareholding Pattern and Expected Capital Structure Annexure - 23

The Pre & Post arrangement (Expected) shareholding pattern of Resulting Company / Transferee Company as on March 31,
2020 is given below:

Transferee Company - Pre Arrangement as on March 31, 2020

Sr. No. Category of Shareholders Nos. No. of Equity | Percentage (%)
Shares to Equity
1 Promoter & Promoter Group 19 8,07,17,056 50.68
Sub Total (A) 19 8,07,17,056 50.68
2 Banks/Mutual Funds/Indian / Financial Institutions
Mutual Funds 6 21,60,130 1.36
Venture Capital Funds 0 0 0.00
Alternate Investment Funds 6 6,34,303 0.40
Foreign Venture Capital Investors 0 0 0.00
Foreign Portfolio Investors 167 4,44,49,164 27.91
Financial Institutions / Banks 7 1,34,965 0.08
Insurance Companies 1 61,458 0.04
Provident Funds/ Pension Funds 0 0 0.00
Any Other (Specity) 0 0 0.00
Sub Total (B) 187 4,74,40,020 29.78
3 Central Government/ State Government(s)/ President of India 0 0 0.00
Sub Total (C) 0 0 0.00
4 Individuals
i. Individual shareholders holding nominal share capital up to 45,159 1,36,24,504 8.55
Rs. 2 lakhs
ii. Individual shareholders holding nominal share capital in 4 78,49,509 493
excess of Rs. 2 lakhs
Sub Total (D) 45,163 2,14,74,013 13.48
5 | Any Others
Non-resident Indians 1,307 6,77,337 0.43
Trusts 8 75,763 0.05
Clearing Members 125 4,59,042 0.29
Individual (HUF)/NBFC Registered with RBI 1,014 10,29,189 0.64
Bodies Corporate 438 51,93,676 3.26
JLL-Unclaimed Suspense Account 1 2,44,630 0.15
Investor Education and Protection Fund 1 19,70,413 1.24
Sub Total (E) 2,894 96,50,050 6.06
Grand Total (A+B+C+D+E) 48,263 15,92,81,139 100.00
Statement showing shareholding of persons belonging to the category “Promoter and Promoter Group”

Sr. No. Promoter & Promoter Group No.s(;lfa]:jgsulty Perti)e;;aliet;%)
1 |Shyam Sunder Bhartia 13,99,925 0.88
2 Hari Shanker Bhartia 3,60,885 0.23
3 Kavita Bhartia 10,285 0.01
4 |Priyavrat Bhartia 3,085 0.00
5 Shamit Bhartia 1,29,245 0.08
6 Jaytee Private Limited 7,600 0.00
7 | Nikita Resources Private Limited 35,04,540 2.20
8  |Jubilant Stock Holding Private Limited 2,13,61,992 13.41
9 HSB Corporate Consultants Private Limited 1,92,78,979 12.10
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No. of Equity

Percentage (%)

Sr. No. Promoter & Promoter Group Shares to Equity
10 | SSB Consultants and Management Services Private Limited 2,15,87,665 13.56
11 | MAV Management Advisors LLP 50,11,400 3.15
12 |Jubilant Enpro Private Limited 28,31,000 1.78
13 | Miller Holdings PTE. Ltd. 52,30,455 3.28
14  |Jubilant Consumer Private Limited - 0.00
15 |Jubilant Advisors LLP - 0.00
16 | Torino Overseas Limited - 0.00
17 | Cumin Investments Limited - 0.00
18 |Rance Investment Holdings Limited - 0.00
19 | Vam Holdings Limited - 0.00
Total 8,07,17,056 50.68
Resulting Company - Pre Arrangement as on March 31, 2020
Sr. No. Category of Shareholders Nos. No. of Equity | Percentage (%)
Shares to Equity

1 Promoter & Promoter Group* 1 5,00,000 100.00
Sub Total (A) 1 5,00,000 100.00

2 Banks/Mutual Funds/Indian / Financial Institutions 0 0 0.00
Mutual Funds 0 0 0.00
Venture Capital Funds 0 0 0.00
Alternate Investment Funds 0 0 0.00
Foreign Venture Capital Investors 0 0 0.00
Foreign Portfolio Investors 0 0 0.00
Financial Institutions / Banks 0 0 0.00
Insurance Companies 0 0 0.00
Provident Funds/ Pension Funds 0 0 0.00

Any Other (Specify) 0 0 0.00

Sub Total (B) 0 0 0.00

3 Central Government/ State Government(s)/ President of India 0 0 0.00
Sub Total (C) 0 0 0.00

4 |Individuals 0 0 0.00
i.  Individual shareholders holding nominal share capital up to 0 0 0.00

Rs. 2 lakhs
ii. Individual shareholders holding nominal share capital in 0 0 0.00
excess of Rs. 2 lakhs

Sub Total (D) 0 0 0.00

5 | Any Others 0 0 0.00
Non-resident Indians 0 0 0.00
Trusts 0 0 0.00
Clearing Members 0 0 0.00
Individual (HUF)/NBFC Registered with RBI 0 0 0.00
Bodies Corporate 0 0 0.00
JLL-Unclaimed Suspense Account 0 0 0.00
Investor Education and Protection Fund 0 0 0.00

Sub Total (E) 0 0 0.00
Grand Total (A+B+C+D+E) 1 5,00,000 100.00

*Equity shares are held by Jubilant Life Sciences Limited jointly with 6 individual employees as joint holders.
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Statement showing shareholding of persons belonging to the category “Promoter and Promoter Group”

Sr. No. Promoter & Promoter Group No. of Equity | Percentage (%)
Shares to Equity
1 Jubilant Life Sciences Limited* 5,00,000 100.00
*Equity shares are held by Jubilant Life Sciences Limited jointly with 6 individual employees as joint holders.
Resulting Company / Transferee Company- Post Arrangement shareholding pattern (Expected)
Transferee Company - Post Arrangement
Sr. No. Category of Shareholders Nos. No. of Equity | Percentage (%)
Shares to Equity
1 Promoter & Promoter Group 18 8,07,17,056 50.68
Sub Total (A) 18 8,07,17,056 50.68
2 Banks/Mutual Funds/Indian / Financial Institutions
Mutual Funds 6 21,60,130 1.36
Venture Capital Funds 0 0 0.00
Alternate Investment Funds 6 6,34,303 0.40
Foreign Venture Capital Investors 0 0 0.00
Foreign Portfolio Investors 167 4,44,49,164 27.91
Financial Institutions / Banks 7 1,34,965 0.08
Insurance Companies 1 61,458 0.04
Provident Funds/ Pension Funds 0 0 0.00
Any Other (Specify) 0 0 0.00
Sub Total (B) 187 4,74,40,020 29.78
3 Central Government/ State Government(s)/ President of India 0 0 0.00
Sub Total (C) 0 0 0.00
4 Individuals
i.  Individual shareholders holding nominal share capital up to | 45,159 1,36,24,504 8.55
Rs. 2 lakhs
ii.  Individual shareholders holding nominal share capital in 4 78,49,509 4.93
excess of Rs. 2 lakhs
Sub Total (D) 45,163 2,14,74,013 13.48
5 | Any Others
Non-resident Indians 1,307 6,77,337 0.43
Trusts 8 75,763 0.05
Clearing Members 125 4,59,042 0.29
Individual (HUF) 1,014 10,29,189 0.64
Bodies Corporate 438 51,93,676 3.26
JLL-Unclaimed Suspense Account 1 2,44,630 0.15
Investor Education and Protection Fund 1 19,70,413 1.24
Sub Total (E) 2,894 96,50,050 6.06
Grand Total (A+B+C+D+E) 48,262 15,92,81,139 100.00
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Statement showing post arrangement Expected shareholding of persons belonging to the category “Promoter and Promoter

Group”
Sr. No. Promoter & Promoter Group No. of Equity | Percentage (%)
Shares to Equity
1 Shyam Sunder Bhartia 13,99,925 0.88
2 | Hari Shanker Bhartia 3,60,885 0.23
3 | Kavita Bhartia 10,285 0.01
4 Priyavrat Bhartia 3,085 0.00
5 | Shamit Bhartia 1,29,245 0.08
6 |Jaytee Private Limited 7,600 0.00
7 | Nikita Resources Private Limited 35,04,540 2.20
8 | MAV Management Advisors LLP 50,11,400 3.15
9 Jubilant Enpro Private Limited 28,31,000 1.78
10 | Miller Holdings PTE. Ltd. 52,30,455 3.28
11  |Jubilant Consumer Private Limited - 0.00
12 |Jubilant Advisors LLP - 0.00
13 | Torino Overseas Limited - 0.00
14 | Cumin Investments Limited - 0.00
15 | Rance Investment Holdings Limited - 0.00
16 | Vam Holdings Limited - 0.00
17 |SPB Trustee Company Private Limited and SS Trustee Company Private 3,22,68,661 20.26
Limited on behalf of Shyam Sunder Bhartia Family Trust
18 |HSB Trustee Company Private Limited and HS Trustee Company Private 2,99,59,975 18.80
Limited on behalf of Hari Shanker Bhartia Family Trust
Total 8,07,17,056 50.68
Resulting Company - Post Arrangement
Sr. No. Category of Shareholders Nos. No. of Equity | Percentage (%)
Shares to Equity
1 | Promoter & Promoter Group 18 8,07,17,056 50.68
Sub Total (A) 18 8,07,17,056 50.68
2 | Banks/Mutual Funds/Indian / Financial Institutions
Mutual Funds 6 21,60,130 1.36
Venture Capital Funds 0 0 0.00
Alternate Investment Funds 6 6,34,303 0.40
Foreign Venture Capital Investors 0 0 0.00
Foreign Portfolio Investors 167 4,44,49,164 27.91
Financial Institutions / Banks 7 1,34,965 0.08
Insurance Companies 1 61,458 0.04
Provident Funds/ Pension Funds 0 0 0.00
Any Other (Specify) 0 0 0.00
Sub Total (B) 187 4,74,40,020 29.78
3 Central Government/ State Government(s)/ President of India 0 0 0.00
Sub Total (C) 0 0 0.00
4  |Individuals
i.  Individual shareholders holding nominal share capital up to | 45,159 1,36,24,504 8.55
Rs. 2 lakhs
ii. Individual shareholders holding nominal share capital in 4 78,49,509 4.93
excess of Rs. 2 lakhs
Sub Total (D) 45,163 2,14,74,013 13.48
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2.

Sr. No. Category of Shareholders Nos. No. of Equity | Percentage (%)
Shares to Equity
5 | Any Others
Non-resident Indians 1,307 6,77,337 0.43
Trusts 8 75,763 0.05
Clearing Members 125 4,59,042 0.29
Individual (HUF) 1,014 10,29,189 0.64
Bodies Corporate 438 51,93,676 3.26
JLL-Unclaimed Suspense Account 1 2,44,630 0.15
Investor Education and Protection Fund 1 19,70,413 1.24
Sub Total (E) 2,894 96,50,050 6.06
Grand Total (A+B+C+D+E) 48,262 15,92,81,139 100.00

Statement showing post arrangement Expected shareholding of persons belonging to the category “Promoter and Promoter

Group’-
Sr. No. Promoter & Promoter Group No. of Equity | Percentage (%)
Shares to Equity
1 Shyam Sunder Bhartia 13,99,925 0.88
2 Hari Shanker Bhartia 3,60,885 0.23
3 Kavita Bhartia 10,285 0.01
4 Priyavrat Bhartia 3,085 0.00
5 Shamit Bhartia 1,29,245 0.08
6 Jaytee Private Limited 7,600 0.00
7 Nikita Resources Private Limited 35,04,540 2.20
8 MAV Management Advisors LLP 50,11,400 3.15
9 Jubilant Enpro Private Limited 28,31,000 1.78
10 Miller Holdings PTE. Ltd. 52,30,455 3.28
11 Jubilant Consumer Private Limited - 0.00
12 Jubilant Advisors LLP - 0.00
13 Torino Overseas Limited - 0.00
14 Cumin Investments Limited - 0.00
15 Rance Investment Holdings Limited - 0.00
16 Vam Holdings Limited - 0.00
17 SPB Trustee Company Private Limited and SS Trustee Company Private 3,22,68,661 20.26
Limited on behalf of Shyam Sunder Bhartia Family Trust
18 HSB Trustee Company Private Limited and HS Trustee Company Private 2,99,59,975 18.80
Limited on behalf of Hari Shanker Bhartia Family Trust
Total 8,07,17,056 50.68

The Pre Arrangement shareholding list of Transferor Company 1 as on March 31, 2020 is as per the table below:

HSB Corporate Consultants Private Limited

Sr. No. Name No. of Equity Percentage (%)
Shares to Equity
JSPL Life Science Services and Holdings Private Limited 9,999 99.99
2 |Mr. Hari Shanker Bhartia 1 0.01
(on the behalf of JSPL Life Science Services and Holdings Private
Limited)
Total 10,000 100.00
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The Pre Arrangement shareholding list of Transferor Company 2 as on March 31, 2020 is as per the table below:

Jubilant Stock Holding Private Limited

Sr. No. Name No. of Equity Percentage (%)
Shares to Equity
JSPL Life Science Services and Holdings Private Limited 5,000 50.00
2 |JCPL Life Science Ventures and Holdings Private Limited 5,000 50.00
Total 10,000 100.00

The Pre Arrangement shareholding list of Transferor Company 3 as on March 31, 2020 is as per the table below:

SSB Consultants & Management Services Private Limited

Sr. No. Name No. of Equity Percentage (%)
Shares to Equity
1 |JCPL Life Science Ventures and Holdings Private Limited 9,999 99.99
2 | Mr. Shyam Sunder Bhartia 1 0.01
(on the behalf of JCPL Life Science Ventures and Holdings Private
Limited)
Total 10,000 100.00

The Pre Arrangement shareholding list of Transferor Company 4 as on March 31, 2020 is as per the table below:
JCPL Life Science Ventures and Holdings Private Limited

Sr. No. Name No. of Equity Percentage (%)
Shares to Equity
1 SPB Trustee Company Private Limited & SS Trustee Company Private 58,57,488 100.00
Limited (Jointly on behalf of Shyam Sunder Bhartia Family Trust)
2 | Mr. Shyam Sunder Bhartia 1 0.00
(On behalf of Shyam Sunder Bhartia Family Trust)
Total 58,57,489 100.00

The Pre Arrangement shareholding list of Transferor Company 5 as on March 31, 2020 is as per the table below:
JSPL Life Science Services and Holdings Private Limited

Sr. No. Name No. of Equity Percentage (%)
Shares to Equity
1 |HSB Trustee Company Private Limited & HS Trustee Company Private 89,45,408 100.00
Limited (Jointly On behalf of Hari Shanker Bhartia Family Trust)
2 Mr. Hari Shanker Bhartia 20 0.00
(On behalf of Hari Shanker Bhartia Family Trust)
Total 89,45,428 100.00

The Post-Arrangement (expected) capital structure of Transferee Company will be as follows (assuming the continuing capital
structure as on March 31, 2020):

Particulars

Amount (Rs.)

Authorized Share Capital
1,43,02,00,000 Equity Shares of Re. 1 Each

1,43,02,00,000

Issued, Subscribed and Paid up Share Capital
15,92,81,139 Equity Shares of Re. 1 Each

15,92,81,139
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JUBILANT LIFE SCIENCES LIMITED
Route Map for the venue for the NCLT Convened Meeting of Secured Creditors

Day : Saturday

Date : August 8, 2020
Time : 2.00 p.m.

Venue : Registered Office

Bhartiagram, Gajraula,
District Amroha - 244 223,

Uttar Pradesh
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BEFORE THE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL
ALLAHABAD BENCH
In the matter of Companies Act, 2013
And

In the matter of Sections 230-232, read with Section 66 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016

And
IN THE MATTER OF
HSB CORPORATE CONSULTANTS PRIVATE LIMITED
...Applicant Co. No. 1/ “Transferor Company 17
And
JUBILANT STOCK HOLDING PRIVATE LIMITED
.. Applicant Co. No. 2/ “Transferor Company 2”
And

SSB CONSULTANTS & MANAGEMENT SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
...Applicant Co. No. 3/ “Transferor Company 3”
And
JCPL LIFE SCIENCE VENTURES AND HOLDINGS PRIVATE LIMITED
...Applicant Co. No. 4/ “Transferor Company 4”
And
JSPL LIFE SCIENCE SERVICES AND HOLDINGS PRIVATE LIMITED
...Applicant Co. No. 5/ “Transferor Company 5”
And
JUBILANT LIFE SCIENCES LIMITED

.....Applicant Co. No. 6/ “Transferee Company/Demerged Company”

And
JUBILANT LSI LIMITED

>

.....Applicant Co. No. 7/ “Resulting Company’
And

their respective Shareholders and Creditors

JUBILANT LIFE SCIENCES LIMITED
(CIN: L24116UP1978PLC004624)
A Company incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956, having its Registered Office at Bhartiagram, Gajraula,
District Amroha - 244223, Uttar Pradesh, India
......... Applicant Company No. 6/ “Transferee Company/Demerged Company”

MEETING OF THE SECURED CREDITORS
FORM NO. MGT-11

PROXY FORM

[Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management and Administration)
Rules, 2014]

1. Name of the Secured Creditor

Registered Address
E-mail id

W W

Principal amount due as on January 31, 2020




I/We being Secured Creditor(s) of Applicant Company No. 6/“Transferee Company/Demerged Company”, hereby appoint:

) \\F: V5 s V= OO Ermail ID: oottt st aenea

e La L OO

Or, failing him/her,
B \\F: o s =SOSR E-mail ID: oottt
AATESS: ...ttt ettt et ettt e s a e et s ettt e s et e s eae et eae s et e e s es e Rt es e A e s eae et s e et et eAt et eAe s eAe s et easerent et et et esens et eaeereaseseaeserenserenes

Or, failing him/her,
T \\F: o V- OTUTRNY E-mail ID: oottt s e re e

ALALESS: ..ttt ettt et a et bRt st ea et e Rt et ea et e b e Rt et e R bt e R et eae At et e Rt et e Rt b e R et ea e At eseRe st e Rt et e R e st eaen s et ene st en st ere s eaenterenes

as my/our proxy to attend and vote for me/ us and on my/ our behalf at the Meeting of the secured creditors of the Applicant
Company No. 6/ “Transferee Company/Demerged Company”, convened as per the directions of the National Company Law
Tribunal, Allahabad Bench pursuant to Order dated June 9, 2020, as corrected by Order dated June 15, 2020 passed in Company
Application No. 101/ALD/2020 to be held on Saturday, August 8, 2020 at 2:00 p.m. at its registered office at Bhartiagram, Gajraula,
District Amroha - 244223, Uttar Pradesh, India and at any adjournment thereof in respect of the resolution as is indicated below:

Sr. | Particulars of Resolution Vote (Optional)

No. (Please put a (V) mark)
For Against

L. Resolution for approval of the Composite Scheme of Arrangement between HSB

Corporate Consultants Private Limited, Jubilant Stock Holding Private Limited,
SSB Consultants & Management Services Private Limited, JCPL Life Science
Ventures and Holdings Private Limited, JSPL Life Science Services and Holdings
Private Limited, Jubilant Life Sciences Limited and Jubilant LSI Limited and their
respective shareholders and creditors under sections 230-232 and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

Affix
Signed this day of 2020. Revenue
Signature of Secured Creditor Stamp of

Re. 1

Signature of Proxy

Notes:

1. This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office of the Applicant
Company No. 6/“Transferee Company/Demerged Company” not later than 48 hours before the commencement to the
Meeting.

2. Itis optional to indicate your voting preference. If you leave the ‘For’ or ‘Against’ column blank, your proxy will be entitled to
vote in the manner as he/she may deem appropriate.

3. In case the Secured Creditor is an entity, the duly completed Proxy form should be accompanied by a certified copy of the
Board Resolution/Authority and preferably with attested specimen signature(s) of the duly authorized signatory(ies) giving
requisite authority to the Proxy holder.

4. Please paste a Re. 1/- Revenue Stamp in the space provided. Signature of Creditor should be across the Revenue stamp of
Re. 1.
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MEETING OF THE SECURED CREDITORS

ATTENDANCE SLIP

(Please complete this attendance slip and hand over at the entrance of the meeting venue)

Name and Address of the Secured
Creditor

Vendor Code

Value of Debt as on January 31, 2020
(Rs.)

Full name of Proxy /
Authorized Representative

I/We hereby record my / our presence at the Meeting of the secured creditors of Applicant Company No. 6/“Transferee Company/
Demerged Company”, convened as per the directions of the National Company Law Tribunal, Allahabad Bench, pursuant to
the Order dated June 9, 2020, as corrected by Order dated June 15, 2020 passed in Company Application No. 101/ALD/2020
being held on Saturday, August 8, 2020 at 2:00 p.m. at its registered office at Bhartiagram, Gajraula, District Amroha - 244223,
Uttar Pradesh, India.

Signature of Secured Creditor / Proxy/ Authorised Representative

NOTES:

1. Secured Creditor / proxy / authorized representative needs to furnish duly signed ‘Attendance Slip’ along with a valid identity proof
such as PAN card, Passport, Aadhaar card or Driving License to enter the Meeting hall.

2. Secured Creditor / Proxy / authorized representative is requested to bring his / her copy of the Notice for reference at the meeting.
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POSTAL BALLOT FORM FOR NCLT CONVENED MEETING OF SECURED CREDITORS
[Pursuant to the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 9 of the Companies
(Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016]

Serial No.

1. |Name(s) of Secured Creditor(s)
(in block letters)

2. | Address of the Secured Creditor(s)

3. | Value of Debt as on January 31, 2020 (Rs.)

I/ we hereby exercise my / our votes in respect of the resolution to be passed at the NCLT convened Meeting scheduled to be held
on Saturday, August 8, 2020 at 2.00 p.m. at Bhartiagram, Gajraula, District Amroha - 244223, Uttar Pradesh, India pursuant to
Order dated June 9, 2020, as corrected by Order dated June 15, 2020 of National Company Law Tribunal, Allahabad Bench, passed
in Company Application No. 101/ALD/2020, by sending my/our Assent (FOR) or dissent (AGAINST) to the said Resolution by
placing a tick mark (V) at the appropriate box below:

Sr. |Brief Description of Resolution I/ We assent to the I/We dissent to the
No. resolution (FOR) resolution (AGAINST)

1. |Resolution for approval of the proposed Composite Scheme of
Arrangement between HSB Corporate Consultants Private Limited,
Jubilant Stock Holding Private Limited, SSB Consultants & Management
Services Private Limited, JCPL Life Science Ventures and Holdings
Private Limited, JSPL Life Science Services and Holdings Private
Limited, Jubilant Life Sciences Limited, and Jubilant LSI Limited and
their respective shareholders and creditors

Date: (Signature of Secured Creditor/ Power of
Place: Attorney holder/ Authorised Representative)
Notes:-

1. Please read the instructions carefully before filling this Postal Ballot Form.

2. The last date for the receipt of Postal Ballot Form by the Scrutinizer is August 7, 2020 (5.00 p.m. IST).



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

INSTRUCTIONS

Pursuant to Order dated June 9, 2020 as corrected by Order dated June 15, 2020 of the National Company Law Tribunal,
Allahabad Bench, passed in Company Application No. 101/ALD/2020, approval of Secured Creditors of Jubilant Life Sciences
Limited, the Applicant Company No. 6/ “Transferee Company/Demerged Company” is also sought through Postal Ballot
Form for the Composite Scheme of Arrangement between HSB Corporate Consultants Private Limited, Jubilant Stock Holding
Private Limited, SSB Consultants & Management Services Private Limited, JCPL Life Science Ventures and Holdings Private
Limited, JSPL Life Science Services and Holdings Private Limited, Jubilant Life Sciences Limited, and Jubilant LSI Limited and
their respective shareholders and creditors, at the NCLT convened meeting scheduled to be held on Saturday, August 8, 2020
at 2.00 p.m. at Bhartiagram, Gajraula, District Amroha- 244223, Uttar Pradesh, India.

A Secured Creditor desiring to exercise vote by Postal Ballot should complete this Postal Ballot Form and send it to the
Scrutinizer, Shri S. K. Gupta, Practicing Company Secretary in the enclosed postage pre-paid envelope. Postage will be borne
and paid by the Company. No other Form or photocopy of the Postal Ballot Form shall be permitted/ accepted.

Envelopes containing Postal Ballot Form, if sent by Courier, Registered post, Speed post or delivered in person at the expenses
of the Secured Creditor will also be accepted.

The Postal Ballot Form should be completed and signed by the Secured Creditor in person. Incomplete, unsigned, improperly
or incorrectly tick marked Postal Ballot Form will be rejected. Postal Ballot Form bearing tick marks in both the columns will
render the Postal Ballot Form invalid.

The consent must be accorded by recording the assent in the column ‘FOR’ and dissent in the column AGAINST’ by placing
tick mark (V) in the appropriate column.

You are requested to carefully read these instructions and return the Postal Ballot Form duly completed, in the enclosed self-
addressed postage pre-paid envelope, so as to reach the Scrutinizer on or before August 7, 2020 (5.00 PM. IST).

Postal Ballot Form received after August 7, 2020 (5.00 P.M. IST) will be strictly treated as if the reply from the Secured Creditor
has not been received.

Postal Ballot Forms signed in a representative capacity must be accompanied by a requisite certified true copy of the Power of
Attorney / Resolution of Board of Directors or any other valid authorization along with attested specimen signature of the duly
authorised signatory(ies) who is authorised to vote, failing which the Postal Ballot Form will be treated as invalid.

In case a Secured Creditor is desirous of obtaining a Duplicate Postal Ballot Form, he or she may send an e-mail to
investors@jubl.com. However, the duly filled in duplicate Postal Ballot Form should reach the Scrutinizer not later than the
date and time specified in instruction 6 above.

Voting rights shall be reckoned on the value of debt due in the name of the Secured Creditor on the cut-off date i.e. January 31,
2020.

The votes of a Secured Creditor shall be considered invalid, inter-alia, on any of the following grounds:
a.  if the Postal Ballot Form is unsigned, incomplete or incorrectly filled.

b.  if the Postal Ballot Form is received torn or defaced or mutilated such that it is not possible for Scrutinizer to identify the
Secured Creditor or as to whether the vote is for ‘Assent’ or ‘Dissent; or if the signature could not be verified or one or
more of the above grounds.

c.  if the Postal Ballot Form is other than issued by the Company.

Secured Creditors are requested not to send any other paper along with the Postal Ballot Form in the enclosed self-addressed
postage prepaid envelope and any extraneous paper found in such postage prepaid envelops would be destroyed by the
Scrutinizer.

The Postal Ballot Form shall not be exercised by a Proxy.

Scrutinizer’s decision on the validity of the Postal Ballot Form shall be final. The Scrutinizer will submit his report to the
Chairperson after scrutiny of the postal ballots.
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